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Five Color
Inspection

is one of the diagnostic techniques
in traditional Chinese medicine. It
involves the diagnosis of disease
based on the change of body colour

Stock code Bfr{Uik : 8138

/ . ( , Red, , and
I L\ Black) with reference to the theory
7]-_ of five elements in traditional
\ m ’ Chinese medicine. Five Colour
«in chi inspection is mostly used in facial
diagnosis, which is also called

Facial Five Colour inspection. \
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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE EXCHANGE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid

market in the securities traded on GEM. 3 \
BREAEBE R - BRE  WEBAL D
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange EEE EWEM#& &
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no o BEEFEEREZR > HAWNKE  ZAHBESH -
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and There are excess and deficiency syndromes of heat. In

expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part

excess heat, the entire face is red, while in deficiency / \
of the contents of this report.

heat the cheeks are rosy. Additionally, in critical
cases of illness when the face appears as if
dabbed by rouge, many cases are ascribed to Red

This report, for which the directors of Beijing Tong Ren Tang
true cold and false heat (manifesting in an

Chinese Medicine Company Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in “upcast yang” red complexion). ;
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Exchange for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Black is the colour of yin-cold and exuberant water. When
kidney yang is deficient, water and fluids cannot

transform. An abundance of yin-cold in the interior causes J ‘ ‘ \
the blood to lack warmth and nourishment, leading to
spasms in the channels and inhibited movement of Qi () Black (

and blood; thus, the face appears dark. /: : ‘
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{Implies cold syndromes, Qi (%)
stagnation and blood stasis.}
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A pale bluish or bluish-black complexion is

often ascribed to yin-cold in the interior. Cold
> /\ can lead to intense pain, such as in patterns of |
> cold stagnation with pain in the stomach and
/\ abdomen. |
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{Implies heat syndromes and syndromes of true cold disease
with false heat manifestation (or 'upcast yang syndromes').}
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Qi (] ) and blood move with warmth; when heat is exuberant the blood in the
vessels is full. The blood rises and the face appears red. There are deficiency
and excess patterns of heat. In excess heat, the entire face is red, while in
deficiency patterns only the cheeks are rosy. Additionally, in critical cases of
illness when the face appears as if dabbed by rouge, it is often ascribed to a
pattern of "upcast yang". It indicates that the essence and Qi (5 ) are depleted
and yin cannot constrain yang, so deficient yang rises to the surface.
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Conditioning Ingredients
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{Implies syndromes of dampness and deficiency.}

A yellow complexion is a manifestation of spleen deficiency
and dampness. The spleen governs movement and
transformation of fluids; if impaired, then water and dampness
are not transformed. If the spleen is deficient and loses its
ability to transform, then the essence of food and water fails
to transform into Qi ( & ) and blood. The skin is deprived of
nourishment so the complexion is yellow.
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@ D)) 2B A MNE EE {Implies syndromes of cold and pain.}
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B2 KB QE{E Black is the colour of the kidney, and is primarily associated with
=/ \ R gg meg - ;'g kidney deficiency, cold and pain patterns, fluid retention, stasis of
i ﬁ m o A F 0=z blood, and kidney diseases. When kidney yang is deficient, fluids
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Corporate Profile
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Founded in 1669 (Eighth year on the throne of Emperor Kangxi, Qing Dynasty),
Beijing Tong Ren Tang was the only one serving the royal families with Chinese
medicine for 188 years over the reign of eight emperors since 1723. Beijing
Tong Ren Tang was renowned in the Chinese medicine industry nationally.
Inheriting the Tong Ren Tang's corporate motto of “Complexity and quality are

not to be forfeited by costs” over 348 years, we are self-disciplined to offer

products and services with quality. We are cautious in our manufacturing process CO t t N
and look for excellence, our products are famous and hereditary with its unique n en S W,

efficacy.

formulas, superior raw materials, superb technical skills and distinguished

“From commitment since its establishment to being the sole Chinese medicine
provider to royal families; from recession to recovery, and to the invasion of

the enemies; and from the rebirth as the People’s Republic of China to forge Tong Ren Tang at a Glance in 2017

reform and be innovative. Tong Ren Tang, an enduring national brand that 2 2017 ER-E—8

overcame vicissitude, is the symbol of quality and credibility.” T
Quote from “Tong Ren Tang: Inherit. d ” } i 4 HEMRE

g Ren Tang: Inheritance and Development” by Bian Dong Zi
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Tong Ren Tang at a Glance in 2017
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March =H

Francisco, the United States
REBE=FTRARTEDREPL
Opened one retail outlet each in
Singapore and Melbourne, Australia
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> Attended the 3rd Maritime Silk Road

3

e International Forum on Traditional

% Chinese Medicine

3 SMPEBERTHESES L HE 2 5%
2 B SR 15 B

=

~

Opened a Chinese medical clinic in San
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June NH

Participated in the “Health Expo” held in the Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre

Z2NREBEFERREPLEBN(RERE)
Held “Capital State-owned Enterprises Open Day” at Tai
Po Production Base and at the flagship store in Hong Kong
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August J\J

Opened one retail outlet in Hong Kong
EEBER-—RTELR
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September JuH

Participated in “16+1” 2nd China-Central &
Eastern European Countries Capital City Mayors
Forum 2017 in Podgorica (the Capital City of
Montenegro)
ZMREBLEHRERBERETNI16+11E=]E
HE - PREBEEREH T RmE2017
Attended the event “Days of Beijing” in Belgrade
held in Serbia
HEREBAEDENERBHBTHNILRA ES
Carried out large-scale free Chinese medical
consultation activities in Montenegro, Serbia, the
Czech Republic and Poland
ERBL ZEEAD  BRIAKMETABEENHE
BDED
Opened one retail outlet in Hong Kong
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October H

Held the “Tong Ren’s Stroke Awareness 2017”
Carnival at Hollywood Plaza in Hong Kong
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November -—H

Opened one retail outlet in Vancouver, Canada
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December 1 —H

Opened a Chinese medical clinic in Switzerland
RIETHR—KPEDEH O
Opened one retail outlet in Toronto, Canada
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Financial Highlights

Revenue

WA

16.8%

1,500,000 | HK$’ 000
FiBxT
1,265,994
1,250,000
970,477
1,000,000
761,051
750,000
613,963
500,000
0 2013 2014 2015 2016

Gross Profit

T

1,000,000
800,000
600,000
400,000

200,000

0

15.3%

HK$’ 000 916,433
TR

420,043

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group

for the past five financial years.

Financial Summary W75 #{ %

Revenue &t A
Gross profit 7
Profit for the year &£ E |8

Profit attributable to owners of the Company &2 T & A E{L R 8

Total assets HEE

Total liabilities 2 & &

Net assets EEFE

Financial Metrics Bt ¥ 152

Gross profit margin £ F/=

Net profit margin #iF| 2

Current ratio R &tk %

Return on equity B A E k=

Return on assets & & @ %

Earnings per share (HK$) 8 EFI (&)
Dividend per share (HK$) Z IR E (B 7T)

600,000

500,000

400,000

300,000

200,000

0

HK$’ 000
TR 505,512

439,880 /

374,578

/

A 25 4 2

Profit Attributable

to Owners of the Company

A wl i NEASAUTE

16.6%

500,000 | HK$’ 000
TR

400,000

300,000 287,124

489,967

227,548 /

200,000

2013 2014

2017 HK$’000
2017F T#&

1,265,994
916,433
505,512
489,967

2017 HK$’000
2017 TE T

2,760,655
152,478
2,608,177

72.4%
39.9%
16.0
19.4%
18.3%
0.59
0.19

2015 2016

2016 HK$’000
2016 F THE T

1,084,280
795,087
439,880
420,315

2016 HK$’000
2016 F T#& T

2,354,822
127,585
2,227,237

73.3%
40.6%
15.9
19.8%
18.7%
0.50
0.16

0

2015 HK$°000
2015%F T#& T

970,477
680,877
374,578
354,249

2015 HK$’000
2015F FB T

2,026,985
118,070
1,908,915

70.2%
38.6%
14.7
19.6%
18.5%
0.42
0.13

220,001

_

2013 2014

2014 HK$’000
20144 T8 T

761,051
543,031
294,698
287,124

2014 HK$’000
2014 % &t

1,632,541
95,680
1,536,861

71.4%
38.7%
14.5
19.2%
18.1%
0.35
0.10

2016 2017

UTAXEEBARAMRFEFENC AMMEEUREERGERE -

For the year ended 31 December HEZ 12 B 31 HILFE

2013 HK$’000
2013%F &

613,963
420,043
227,548
220,001

2013 HK$’000
2013F THB T

1,410,115
100,396
1,309,719

68.4%
37.1%
12.1
17.4%
16.1%
0.29
0.08
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Chairman’s Statement

‘ ‘ TCM is a time-honored practice that can be traced back
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to the prehistoric era, when Shen Nong (Divine Farmer) researched on
hundreds of plants and the Yellow Emperor composed the Inner and
Outer Canons of Medicine.

In the turmoil of the Ming Dynasty, practitioners perfected the
diagnostic technique; during the Great Qing, the Taoist priest Huang
Shang pursued medical development.

In the past five thousand years, TCM has been safeguarding the health of
Chinese people as it evolves over time.

Since the 16th century, the exchange between Western and Chinese
medicine has become more frequent.

Many TCM literatures were introduced to foreign countries, where they
gained increasing popularity due to their efficacy.

Today, TCM finds a wide range of applications,

including treatment with artemisinin, acupuncture, cure of diseases and
medical assistance.

Having demonstrated its miraculous effectiveness in health preservation
and illness prevention, TCM will diversify the world’s medical industry

and facilitate research on life science. , ,

As a practice with over 5,000 years of history in China, Chinese medicine has been spread to 183 countries and
regions. After the inscription of Chinese acupuncture on the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural
Organization (“UNESCOQO”) “Representative List of Intangible Cultural Heritage of Humanity”, the establishment of the
Traditional Chinese Medicine Technical Committee and international standards of Chinese medicine, as well as the
incorporation of Chinese traditional medicine as represented by Chinese medicine into the World Health Organization
(“WHQ?”) International Classification of Disease Codes for the first time, Chinese medicine has become an integral part
of the international medical system and is instrumental in enhancing health and providing alternative solutions for
health preservation and happy lives.

Combination of favourable factors marked the new era

In 2017, TCM sector saw unprecedented opportunities. Not only did it achieve rapid growth in China, it also gained
further recognition and acceptance in the world. Moreover, as population aging accelerated, the “Big Health” industry
was well-positioned for robust development. These favorable factors contributed to the development of Chinese
medicine as an emerging industry. The much-anticipated implementation of the “Law on Traditional Chinese Medicine”
showed the state’s support for bringing the sector to a new strategic height. In the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China, the “Healthy China” strategy, the “Outline of ‘Healthy China 2030’ and the “Development
Plan for Chinese Medicine under the ‘Belt and Road Initiative’” were proposed, which is expected to create a promising
prospects for Chinese medicine enterprises and lay a solid foundation for businesses to “go global”. Since it is now a
national strategy to promote TCM, the industry enters a new golden age.
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Chairman’s Statement

Originated in China and spreading throughout the world

Building on thousands of years of experience, TCM reflects the profound philosophy and wisdom of the Chinese in
health preservation which has been passed through generations. The practice is closely related to the well-being for all
amidst the common pursuit of health. Thus, Chinese medicine is not only a treasure of ancient Chinese science, but
also the key to open the treasure of Chinese civilization and the nation’s pride.

The launch of the “Belt and Road Initiative” across the world has created opportunities for TCM. At the same time as
the state encourages joint development for mutual interests, Chinese medicine enterprises strive to foster exchange
and cooperation between Eastern and Western medical communities, and promote people’s health along the “Belt and
Road”. As the overseas development platform for Tong Ren Tang, the Group maintains a solid foundation in Hong
Kong and aims for the global market, undertaking the mission of introducing TCM culture to the world. We are
endeavored to pass the knowledge and craftsmanship of medicine preparation to the next generation, drive the
modernization of TCM and explore its application. By taking a culture-first approach in introducing medicine through
treatments, we aim to expedite the internationalization of TCM.

Following our expansion into the United States last year, the Group newly set up retail outlets in South Africa and
Switzerland during the Year. By which, we have established business presence on five major continents and the
Group’s business coverage outside the PRC has extended to 80 retail outlets across 21 countries and regions,
achieving the global development strategies, which is to “Anchor in Hong Kong and Asia and march to overseas”.
Tong Ren Tang expands its footprints to Kazakhstan and provided free medical consultation services for the locals. We
also organized similar events in Podgorica (the capital city of Montenegro), Serbia, Czech Republic and Poland for a
large number of participates. To support the “Belt and Road Initiative”, we co-organized the 3rd Maritime Silk Road
International Forum on Traditional Chinese Medicine and the 1st “One Belt and One Road” (Dubai) Chinese Women’s
Elite Forum in Dubai. In addition, we held the “Tong Ren Tang’s Stroke Awareness 2017” Carnival to raise awareness
of stroke prevention. In promoting Chinese medicine overseas, we invited experts to offer free medical consultation
services and give lectures on the traditional concepts of life nourishment, so that foreigners could understand more
about the distinctive TCM culture.

Focusing on Chinese medicine and putting culture first

Great emphasis is put on the “Union of Man and Nature”, “Yin-Yang and the five elements” in the TCM culture. This
reflects the Chinese philosophy of adapting to nature and maintaining balance. Chinese medicine practitioners also
follow the principles of “treatment based on individual body constitution, seasons and local environment”, as well as
“evidence-based diagnosis and treatment”, which embody the flexible mindset of Chinese people. The traditions of
“practicing medicine to save lives” and “benevolence in medical practice” manifest Chinese’s humanism, which values
lives and the great virtue of kindliness to bear all things.
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Chairman’s Statement

For centuries, Tong Ren Tang has been committed to the ancient motto of healing the world and raising awareness
towards the theory and culture of TCM. In recent years, the Group has rolled out active and innovative measures
designed to dissolve the barrier between Chinese and Western culture. By integrating traditional and modern practices
and adopting the culture-first approach, Chinese medicine will be spread all around the world.

Pursuing the initial goal against adversity

Benevolence is our core value. Our Chinese name “Tong Ren” means living in harmony with others, having a generous
heart and treating everyone as equal. It is also the teaching of our predecessors to “uphold conscience for Heaven and
Earth, and promote well-being for the people”. Started as a folk practitioner, we developed into a designated medicine
supplier serving the royal families for 188 years. In the changing times, the only thing that has not changed is our
commitment to “Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness”. Severely tested for more than
three centuries, we adhere to our prestige culture and stay true to our initial goal, thus becoming a timeless national
brand that is popular in Chinese and overseas markets. We keep on developing Chinese medicine products for the
modern society based on the hundreds-year-old formula. The unique healthcare concept and culture will distinguish
TCM in the growing international medicine market.

Facing a constantly changing world, the Group remains dedicated and diligent, strikes a balance between tradition and
innovation, carries on developing new product lines, accelerates product registration and expansion to the international
market, actively establishes overseas retail outlets, and passes on the legacies of TCM in the global arena.

Acknowledgements

The future is full of opportunities and challenges, and a long road lies ahead for us to introduce TCM to the world. As a
time-honored Chinese medicine brand with centuries of history, Tong Ren Tang has earned global acclaim through
generations. The “Belt and Road Initiative” marks the historic moment when TCM undergoes internationalization. At the
same time, Tong Ren Tang supports its overseas promotion and tells lively and powerful stories.

Our smart, innovative and loyal employees are our most valuable assets in the challenging time of globalization and
internet technology. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude and deep appreciation to all
employees both at home and abroad for their dedication and loyalty, and to our shareholders, customers, business
partners and the local governments for their trust and support.

Mei Qun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2018

BN

BEFK ACE-—ERABUHRENGI BLOREEPBERMDEEL - OFR £F
ERETEHEGER  RWAH > KOTRPALT RS SESEMRAXAETHE
U RTHHTBET S ERBET -

AL GG T

CHRCELZZzAR - ACIEZEMEEA  SEEL  —BEC WFREERBIBX
MY RERVYG 2B -REHEBNRE  IREEZRTEREHE188F  [EBE
BHEL |WXERE  —ERRBERBCENSERE - KBIESHLHRE  BRERER
B BCEMRETEI REDLG - BARH  NSCKERRTREPIMBEERRE -
EREBFRETHLE  THNANREARERABRENTEER  TIAHRENZIREH
miEH PEEUHBLESNNEERRAT SR -—KRBS -

HHBREBZNHERARKRE  FAEBBAUKESRNIERSRS BEEREANNERESR -
BEINARFERS NEERCERTSNEMMEALS &  BEEEENTELRER
EHEBELERRENEE  BARH  ££F8 -

e

AROERFERERREIF FEBENENEBOREENEE - CEERPETEST
¥EFEFR HEBEZBERN ERFCEATERRNBGER  BIECEITERR
ZERIHINEFZRE -E-F-—BIEENRE  PREHEB(CHEHRNELHE L  BCE
AEETEHY P EEGE  EE-—ERLEDMAMOBNHRE -

BEERWHRFRRENERE  EBRALER AEZAFRIELPNET  REAEERE

BWEE REAREZSHEANZBEINER  THUARRE - FF - EBESEBHEN
WHABANEENIERTRRONEH -

o E
E1

E#H > 2018F 35128

WA M E I s> E o R Bk TT OIS &



Management Discussion and Analysis

‘ ‘ United to serve with dedication, we heal the country with
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benevolence. Time passed as we witnessed rise and fall, weathered
downturns and recuperated. With unique medicine,

our skilled practitioners treat and diagnose patients.

We stay committed to nurturing kindness, while fostering

the love for the motherland.

Through centuries of sincere services, we share TCM

with the world. , ,

Business Review
Overview

Hidden in the prosperous business district of Beijing, the two meticulously designed and renovated classical courtyard
houses are the home of Tong Ren Tang. In contrast with the hustle and bustle of the city, these houses are an oasis of
tranquillity and calmness, filled with the smell of herbs that seems lasting forever. This echoes Tong Ren Tang’s

commitment to TCM: no matter how the world changes, we hold on to our legacy and stand out through thick and thin.

Centuries have passed since our inception and we are met with the golden opportunity for internationalization of TCM
at the moment. As one of the first few time-honoured Chinese brands that tapped into the overseas market, Tong Ren
Tang adheres to the overseas growth strategy of “progressive advancement, solid foundation, introduction of medicine
through treatment, integration of treatment and medicine, cultural marketing, brand establishment, stringent
management and efficiency assurance”, while speeding up the expansion of major markets in Europe and America. We
embrace the development concept of “Big Health” and keep our development strategy in line with the current trend as
we explore new business model. We strive to become a modern, international and professional TCM group that covers
the entire industrial chain, pushing towards our goal of “wherever there is a need for health, wherever there is Tong
Ren Tang.” In pursuit of our dream, the Group, which has hundreds of years of history, lives by the motto of
“benevolence” and composes the melody that brings comfort and healing.

Looking back to 2017, the global economy maintained moderate recovery as trade and investment picked up.
Following the rebound in international crude oil price, the US economy gained strong momentum, the Eurozone saw
improvement and the emerging economies recorded relatively rapid growth, which laid a solid foundation for economic
recovery around the world. Nonetheless, developed economies in the West and emerging economies, as well as the
rise in US interest rates and trade protectionism continued to impose pressure of restructuring and transformation on
the global economy. Given the slow economic recovery and uncertain prospects, we followed the “Belt and Road
Initiative”. Through well-planned operation and management, overseas market exploration, strategic investment and
business development, merger and acquisition, formed the medical treatment, healthcare, scientific research,
education, culture and industry into a new collaborative development for Chinese medicine group. During the Year, we
launched new retail outlets in Hong Kong, Singapore, Australia, Canada, the US, Switzerland and South Africa. As a
result, the Group’s business coverage outside the PRC has extended to 21 countries and regions with an increase in
number of retail outlets from 67 in 2016 to 80 in 2017.

Despite the challenges of macroeconomic uncertainty,
the Group maintained steady growth in revenue and
profit, and strived to deliver stable and sustainable
return to shareholders. For the Year, the Group’s
revenue increased by 16.8% to HK$1,266.0 million
(2016: HK$1,084.3 million), net profit increased by
14.9% to HK$505.5 million (2016: HK$439.9 million),
profit attributable to owners of the Company increased
by 16.6% to HK$490.0 million (2016: HK$420.3
million) and earnings per share increased to 59 HK
cents (2016: 50 HK cents). The Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of 19 HK cents per
share (2016: 16 HK cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Quality is the priority to pursue excellence;

kindness and integrity are our commitments throughout centuries 99

During the Year, due to visitor arrivals and the change in consumption of visitors, the retail sector of Hong Kong
continued to be weak in general. The Group’s revenue from Hong Kong market managed to record a steady growth of
6.6%, achieving a revenue of HK$636.3 million (2016: HK$597.1 million) with the same-store sales growth of 22.1%,
which was driven by the consistent market demand for the products of the Group and the strengthening brand
promotion. In the Year, we opened two new retail outlets in Shatin and Tuen Mun, for the purpose of rationalising the
retail network in Hong Kong. This brought the number of our retail outlets in Hong Kong to 26. We also further
promoted products under Tong Ren Tang brand through diverse measures to increase our market share and
consolidate the leading position of Tong Ren Tang brand in the Chinese medicine market in Hong Kong.

Active exploration of the overseas market remains to be our first priority in business development. Under the global
development of “Anchor in Hong Kong and Asia and march to overseas”, the Group tapped into new markets abroad,
while consolidating existing international market. During the Year, we launched a total of 11 new retail outlets in
Singapore, Australia, Canada, the US, Switzerland and South Africa, hence the number of our overseas retail outlets
increased to 54. In the meantime, the revenue from overseas markets amounted to HK$306.8 million (2016: HK$252.5
million), representing an increase of 21.5% with same-store sales growth of 10.1%.

Due to the rising awareness of the “Big Health” concept, the high-quality Owned Products of the Group gained
increasing recognition and the overseas demand for Tong Ren Tang products remained strong, the revenue from the
PRC market recorded a significant growth of 37.6% to HK$322.9 million (2016: HK$234.7 million) during the Year.

Rgtail Network
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As a Chinese traditional intangible cultural heritage, TCM is a blessing to China and is now spreading over the world.
Due to the efficacy in treating illnesses and health maintenance, TCM garnered wide recognition and attention in the
global arena, with 183 countries and regions putting it into practice. Meanwhile, acupuncture is recognised as a form
of treatment in 103 member states of the WHO. TCM is now reaching more people in different countries. Capitalising
on the popularity of TCM, during the Year, Tong Ren Tang established 5 retail outlets in South Africa and arranged free
medical consultation, medical checks and healthcare seminars, so that local citizens could experience the wonder of
TCM. These initiatives marked the milestone of TCM entering Africa. In the meantime, we set up one retail outlet in
Switzerland, where we offered free medical consultation services with renowned medical practitioners. Based on our
experience in cultivating overseas market, we preached the idea of “saving lives at a critical moment” in Europe, and
made great contribution to advancing the health of the global community through identification, exploration and
research on common local illnesses and diseases.

In spite of the fact that the “Belt and Road Initiative” has brought historic opportunities for the international cooperation
and exchange in the Chinese medicine community, the industry still faces difficulties and challenges in “going global”.
The differences in culture and theoretical system, the lack of common international standards and regulations, coupled
with the various legal obstacles and trade barriers, have slowed down the spreading of TCM. Since early 1993, Tong
Ren Tang has been supporting the country’s “Going Out” strategy. It has used Hong Kong as a gateway and
comprehensively developed the market for over 20 years. During which, it set up retail outlets, built production base,
enhanced brand recognition, promoted TCM culture, explored the whole value chain and undertook the glorious
mission of sharing TCM with the world, enabling everyone to experience the wonder of TCM. As we promote Chinese
medicine through treatment and put emphasis on the culture, it is expected that Tong Ren Tang brand in overseas will
flourish and garner global recognition.

The Group has been adhering to the quality management philosophy of “vital quality, striving for excellence and
advocating kindness and virtue”. We follow the old teachings on quality, namely the “Two must not-dos”, and stay
committed to our strengths in terms of “unique formulas, superior materials, superb technique, and distinguished
efficacy”. Having effectively integrating traditional experience and skills with modern management and technology,
we “build on the legacy but not limited by it, and seek innovation based on traditions”. We also foster the self-
disciplined culture as we believe that “crafting without supervision, intentions are known by the heavens”. It is our
mission to offer “Healthy Life Global Choice” by manufacturing excellent medicine for the public, so that
“wherever there is a need for health, wherever there is Tong Ren Tang”.
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Our Tai Po Production Base adopts a stringent quality control
system. It has obtained the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice)
for Proprietary Chinese Medicine certification, and also obtained
certification on several international standards, such as the
1SO22000:2005 food safety management systems and the
HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points). We spare
no efforts to provide trustworthy and high-quality products and
services to consumers.

During the Year, the Group conducted the trial production and
marketing of a new product, the deer antler collagen capsules in
Hong Kong. Positioned to expand overseas business, the Group
continued to complete the product registration procedures in markets abroad. In 2017, it not only completed the
registration of the ultra-fine pearl powder in Macao and Singapore, but also applied for relevant registration of the
product series in Australia, Macao and Poland. Apart from the remarkable efforts in research and promotion of new
products, we continued to enhance basic research and development. We also conducted research on the safety and
mechanism of Angong Niuhuang Wan, Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules and other key products in
collaboration with renowned education and research institutes in China and overseas. This provided technical
assurance and theoretical support for boosting the brand awareness and recognition of our key products in the
international markets and reducing potential market risks. Besides, we capitalised on the latest technology
achievements and advanced industry experience resulting from our research and development works, and explored
new channels for our products to enter the US and European markets.

Brand Promotion

Our motto is “To help people by practicing medicine and the virtue of a great physician”. Nowadays, Tong Ren Tang
upholds the essence of TCM and targets to enhance people’s health and living standard. We adhere to the principle of
honest operation, care for the country and its people, and practise medicine with benevolence. Being a trusted brand,
we improve well-being for all, contribute to society and provide strong support to the “Big Health” industry, so that
Beijing Tong Ren Tang becomes a respectable brand around the world.

During the Year, the Group introduced the first moving showroom named “Classics of Royal Medicine — Chinese
Medicine Artefact Mobile Museum”, so as to raise our profile in the Hong Kong market. Travelling to different parts of
Hong Kong, the colourfully decorated moving museum showcased the history and heritage of Beijing Tong Ren Tang
and provided free medical consultation services from time to time. It offered medical checks to the elderly and people
in need, through which, it contributed to the community and introduced TCM to the folks. Furthermore, we commenced
the quarterly exhibition project on various topics of TCM at the 3D tram stations outside our flagship store in Central,
as well as on trams, publicity cars and airport buses to promote TCM and the culture of Tong Ren Tang. To actively
support the “Belt and Road Initiative”, the Group co-organised the “1st International Chinese Medicine Cultural
Festival”. During which, it interpreted TCM and culture through artworks in a wide range of activities, and held
roadshows in America, Canada and Australia for the purpose of sharing TCM with the world. Using new elements and
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fresh concepts to appeal to the global community, we brought people into close contact with the mysterious TCM. We
were also the title sponsor of the “Reviving Tradition-Chinese Herbs” program, which adopted a lively and interesting
approach to educate the audience on TCM and showcase our profound legacy. To celebrate the “Capital State-owned
Enterprises Open Day” and the HKSAR'’s 20th Anniversary, the Group opened its facilities in Beijing and Hong Kong to
the public during the Year. We organised the Open Day at our Tai Po Production Base and the flagship store in Hong
Kong, for the public to learn more about the history of TCM, the artifacts and ancient tools for Chinese medicine
preparation, the traditional technique in Chinese medicine manufacture and healthcare knowledge. We invited
professors of the University of Hong Kong as well to lecture on stork prevention and treatment, provided free medical
consultation services and conducted sessions on Ba Duan Jin exercise for health preservation, which allowed
participants to witness the efficacy of TCM. In the meantime, we participated in the “Health Expo” held at the Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre in Wanchai for the first time. Under the theme of “Cerebrovascular Healthcare
— Steps to Prevention, Emergency and Nursing”, we raised public awareness of cerebrovascular health through
briefing sessions on our products, healthcare lectures, free medical consultation and workshops. Moreover, we
sponsored the fundraising activity named “Celebration of 20th Anniversary of the Return of Sovereignty of Hong Kong:
The Crested Ibises performance by Shanghai Dance Theatre”, of which the proceeds would be used to subsidise
students of the Hong Kong Baptist University who pursued overseas study, internships and exposure in relation to the
“Belt and Road Initiative”. On the World Stroke Day, which is observed on October 29, we held the “Tong Ren’s Stroke
Awareness 2017” Carnival, taking a step forward from the Guinness World Records broken by us last year, when a
thousand citizens practiced Ba Duan Jin exercise for stroke prevention. The carnival aimed at raising public awareness
of stroke and encouraging a healthy lifestyle. We invited political figures, renowned experts of Western and Chinese
medicine and famous international stars in Hong Kong to share knowledge of stroke prevention and appealed to the
participants to care about themselves and their families, thereby promoting the well-being of all and achieving “Big
Health”.

2

F-EEHHE BERURD ,_f |

We scaled up our overseas brand promotion this Year. In May 2017, we co-organized and actively participated in the
3rd Maritime Silk Road International Forum on Traditional Chinese Medicine in Dubai. We sent 26 experts in various
fields of TCM to demonstrate traditional technique and provided free medical consultation to patients who sought our
services due to our reputation. To support the convening of the Belt and Road Forum for International Cooperation in
Beijing in May 2017, the “Time Together across the Strait” program team of Beijing TV visited Tong Ren Tang in
Vietnam and Brunei, covering our operations in the local communities. Focusing on our efforts in promoting TCM and
Chinese culture on foreign soil, the program told the story of how our practitioners treated patients, prescribed
medicine and served the locals, so as to enhance their physical well-being. In view of the 2nd China-Central & Eastern
European Countries Capital City Mayors Forum, we took advantage of the establishment of Chinese Medicine
Development Centre by Beijing Tong Ren Tang and the Montenegro-China Chinese Medicine Hospital, and introduced
TCM to Central and Eastern European countries and the Belt and Road region. The Group held large scale free Chinese
medical consultation activities in Montenegro, Serbia, the Czech Republic and Poland, which allowed local citizens to
experience authentic Chinese medical treatment. Being the first event with such scale and professional level held in the
country, it was well accepted by the local community. The Group focused on business development in Central and
Eastern Europe and actively tapped into the global market. Through a series of Chinese medicine campaigns held by
the Montenegro-China Chinese Medicine Hospital, we aimed to share TCM culture, lifestyle and health preservation
knowledge. As our Dubai store reached its 6th anniversary in October 2017, the Group extended its local impact by
holding the “2017 World Expo-Introducing the Treasure of Chinese Medicine to Dubai cum Conference on the
Development and Inheritance of Chinese Medicine Skills and Experience”, where it invited renowned Chinese medicine
practitioners to offer free medical consultation services in Dubai.
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During the Year, our efforts in developing overseas
markets gained wide recognition. Out of hundreds of
well-known corporations, we were selected by a
professional and credible panel, the editorial board of
the Capital Magazine and the public to be the recipient
of the “Capital Outstanding Enterprise Awards —
Outstanding Chinese Medicine Group” awarded by
Capital magazine in Hong Kong at the 17th “Capital
\, Outstanding Enterprise Awards”. This is an
acknowledgement of our leading position in the TCM
industry as well as our reputation among the general
public and professional institutes. Besides, the Group
was awarded the “China Quality Enterprise — Top
Brand of Traditional Chinese Medicine” by the Chinese
Medicine Industry Association, which was a significant
accolade that recognised our role in the industry as a
famous PRC brand and our achievement in promoting
TCM around the world.

RE S BMRNEBHATESNRBAELESTESESE EEBEARSINNET LE(ELRE
HEERRE) P REXRBARXGEINTERE (BAED)REZEERDBBRITELR K&
ERBEARMNBCEPREML  SETERRHCERRR — REPBEEEH | R1E - &K
EREELRERAL SR AN EEEBHRMEPEBETENTEEALRUNE SR « It
onrces V . o AEBEBEKEEBPHEGE(FEEEFECELSPER | ERFHAEEBARE
Human Resources Management ERTLERCEEATAEAS T ARERRATTEEAG RESNNTRBNRE -
High mountains are formed with grains of soil, and deep
oceans start from the smallest streams. People of Tong

Ren Tang uphold their belief through generations and

NI EPRE B

strives to develop into a trustworthy brand of “Chinese RILFFLE > HREREX ST EAR  MEREER - ERECE A HRKRME XER
, medicine” for the benefit of the global community. BB FRRCEECTENHGPEZE] EEHER  EEE2H -
/ At 31 December 2017, we have a total of 809 employees M2017F 128318 HMLEB09BEE (2016 %F : 705 B ER) -

(2016: 705 employees).
AERAEBEINAR175.8BEBT(20165F 1 155.6 BEBET)  BRAFILI|E13.0% » £

The staff costs of the Group for the Year were HK$175.8 EEHNAFERISERE THIEEAGHEEAS TR - BEMN AEEIRTHER
million (2016: HK$155.6 million), representing an AEZLUREERBEFR - BBRREARSIRGEEBEFEL  AEBEEHRATFHNBER - It
increase of 13.0% from last year, which was primarily Ih o REBREZEEREARE  AXBEEENESRUMISER -

due to the increase in number of salespersons, Chinese
medicine practitioners, therapists, production staff and
administrative staffs to cater for the needs of our
continuous business expansion. To ensure that the
Group is able to attract and retain talents, remuneration
policies are reviewed on a regular basis. In addition,
discretionary bonus is offered to employees with
outstanding performance with reference to the Group’s
results and individual performance.

A E ol s> @ ot E bk T 3 o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

The Group’s revenue for the Year reached HK$1,266.0 million (2016: HK$1,084.3 million), representing an increase
of 16.8% from last year. The increase was mainly driven by the continuous demand for our Owned Products and the
sales growth in the existing sales network and expansion of sales network.

The Group’s gross profit increased by 15.3% to HK$916.4 million (2016: HK$795.1 million). The gross profit margin
decreased from 73.3% to 72.4%, which was due to slight change in product mix from last year.

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses increased by 19.5% to HK$193.5 million (2016: HK$161.9 million). The
increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase of rental expenses and sales staff costs as the number of retail
outlets increased during the Year, and (i) the increase of advertising and promotion expenses as advertising and
promotion activities increased this Year. Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage to revenue increased
slightly from 14.9% last year to 15.3% this Year.

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by 16.1% to HK$127.3 million (2016: HK$109.6 million).
As the Group’s business continuous expanded, the number of subsidiaries and administrative and management
personnel increased, which resulted in raising staff costs, rental expenses, depreciation of fixed assets, as well as
other related administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses as a percentage to revenue maintained
at 10.1%.

The Group’s net finance income increased by HK$5.4 million to HK$13.3 million (2016: HK$7.9 million), which was
mainly attributable to the increase in finance income as the average short-term bank deposit increased from last
year.

The Group’s income tax expense increased by 14.2% to HK$105.5 million (2016: HK$92.4 million). The increase was
mainly due to an increase in taxable income for the Year. The weighted average applicable tax rate for the Year has
slightly increased from 16.9% last year to 17.5%, which was caused by the change in proportion of contribution of
taxable profit.

The Group’s profit for the Year increased by 14.9% to HK$505.5 million (2016: HK$439.9 million) with a net profit
margin of 39.9% (2016: 40.6%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$490.0 million (2016:
HK$420.3 million), representing an increase of 16.6% from last year. For the Year, the basic earnings per share were
59 HK cents (2016: 50 HK cents). The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 19 HK cents per
share for the Year (2016: 16 HK cents).

During the Year, the Group
funded its liquidity by the
resources generated internally.
Based on the Group’s steady
cash inflow from operations,
coupled with sufficient cash and
bank balances, the Group has
adequate liquidity and financial
resources to meet the daily
operations and working capital
requirements as well as to fund
its expansion plans.

EL VR

WA 5 Il

AE REBMBAER1,266.08&E8T (20165 : 1,084.3FEET)  KWEAFHEK16.8% o 1
RIERHRBFEERNERBELR REHERKHERABIRHEREERE -

AEBENEFEICI4TEBIIT(2016F : 7951 HEBT) » ®iEH15.3% - ERIEHEF73.3%
THRE724%  ETHRRARERECHEIFERMBEME -

AEBHNDEREEMXIZE193.5TEBT(20165F : 161.9B 8B T) BEFHE19.5% - R
FERHRO)AFTELAREMN BERSREEABAIRELA > RTFNESREEE
L SEEREEERALA - SHRHEERIGERAEIHLHEFN 4% HEAZEFN
15.3% ©

AEBN—METREAXA1273EEBT(20164F : 1096 BEBT)  BREFER16.1% - AR
AEBMERSERER FLARTHREEABHBEEMN  SAIRAN S BEEEERERHEER
KITIRE AAREEN - —BMRITHEAZERAT S LRIFE101% -

AEBERBUHEMNSAETEEBTE133BEBT(2016F : 79BEB L) TEHRTFHE
BRI R EFEMSHBRRES -

AEERBHREAXIEM142% Z105.5HEB T (2016 F - 24 HEBET) - WNEBEEHNAFE
FERRUR AL - BRERHABEMLAINE L NENNMELEAFRRRLEFEN16.9% B
BWIE17.5% °

AEBMNEERBIEM14.9% E505.5F B8 7T (20165 : 439.9FE B ) » AFEE39.9%(2016
F 1 40.6%) c ARATEEAEEF BB 490.0EEBIT(2016F : 4203 EEBT)  REAFRH
Hh116.6% c NEFRERNEF B 5978l (2016 F : 50581l) - ESEBRVREERBRELE
PR 1984l (2016 & : 16584l) °

RE - AEBLUABERBCRDE
T -HRAKEEXEBERERER
A MERRRERBITHESS A&
BEZRADESRYBER W
RAREEREBEASTERRIFR
REHE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$1,897.8 million
(2016: HK$1,583.6 million). Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
Renminbi, Macao pataca and Singapore dollar, and were deposited in reputable financial institutions with maturity
dates falling within one year. The table below sets out the information regarding cash and bank balances, working
capital, total equity, current ratio and gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 and net cash generated from
operating activities for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017:

Cash and bank balances & & $R 1T & 64
Working Capital® &E& & ™

Total Equity fEz5 4258

Current Ratio® 5Btk & @

Gearing Ratio® B &Lk =&

Net cash generated from operating activities & & E B E £ WR S FHE

“) Being net current assets
@ Being current assets divided by current liabilities
@ Being borrowings divided by total equity

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure incurred amounted to HK$34.3 million (2016: HK$38.8 million),
which was primarily used for purchase of production equipment, the establishment of new retail outlets and
purchase of a property for retail purpose.

During the Year, the Group did not have any major investment, acquisitions and disposals.

Details of the Group’s capital commitments as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s net property value of HK$12.3 million (2016: HK$11.6 million) has been pledged
as securities for long-term bank borrowing. Such bank borrowing in Australian dollars bears interest at 1.5% plus
the bank bill rate in Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2020.

At 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

The Group’s main business operations are conducted in Hong Kong and other overseas countries/regions. The
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi,
Macao pataca and Singapore dollar. During the Year, there was no material impact to the Group arising from the
fluctuation in the exchange rates of these currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure during the Year.

L o i B o3 e

AEBHBERFBEVENRR  RERBITHHREIE1,807.85EE T (2016%F : 1,583.6 HE S
) BEeRMBITEKRTERB L ARY BFATRFMET  UXTEEHACERTFHSREE
BEAR—FEREE - TREIINR2016FK2017F12B31BNRERRTES  2EES  #ERH
HEE . REE R E B REARE2016FR2017F 12 A B L EENEE THELNRES FHE
HER

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2017 2016
HK$’000 T 78 7T HK$’000 Ti8 7T
1,583,601
1,833,755
2,227,237
15.9
0.02%

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLFE

2017 2016
HK$’000 & T HK$°000 F % 7T
467,721
M EREEEFE
@ MRBEERURBAE
@ G BRI S A5

RE AEBMNEAFESTAIMIEEBIT(2016F 388 FHEEBL) TEANBEEERE R
VYHHNEERRRBE-—FIYERSERE -

RE - AEBAIBEMEARE  WERHKE -

BBAAEER2016FE R 2017F 12 B 31 BRERRIEFBER S M BERERMT27 -

A2017F 128318 AEAZYEFEA123EEBT(2016F - 116 BEB ) EARBRT
ERZEHR o WRTRTERRBARGDRITEBEFIEM.5% ZFTEL R 2020 F 2 FEEE -

R2017F 128318 AEELBENEARAERE -

FEEIEEEERAMBNEAR MELELEEYR - AKANRS EWEEREBIEUET -
AR - BPFITRHIKTAE - AF  ZEEENERRDUBHAEEAELEEATE -

FAEBARFLBETEATEREZY  FTEEREAMBTEYRIERRE -
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Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma

Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules

ZEai L

Angong Nluhuang Wan D))

panwi] Auedwo) suioipay asauly) Bue) usy Buoj Bullleg

1N
[*2]

/10g Hoday [enuuy

Omega-3
WK i 3

Function: The pathogenic heat
intervening the interior, accumulation of

phlegm, sustained high fever lockjaw,

convulsions and coma.

A BRME > EREE - ARBRAE

SHEMERZE - SRR - FHREM - BEAM

Function: To enhance immunity. For the elderly
and the frail or the people with low immune function,

RECI=E A
- wERE and for patients after surgery or medication.
Maijor Ingredients: Calculus Bovis, hag @ #meEh - AREEHRE  BHESHRZLER

Moschus, Margarita, Cinnabaris, Realgar,
Rhizoma Coptidis, Radix Scutellariae,

BEE  BEEMR ©

Fructus Gardeniae, Radix Curcumae,

Borneolum Syntheticum.

TERMG S BE DY KD #
5 EE -EZ BT L kA

Astaxanthin- Sacha
Inchi Oil Capsule

BEZE-EERMBE

The product is composed
of Sacha Inchi Oil, which

is rich in Omega-3 (2-3) and
a-linolenic acid (ALA), and
Haemittococcus

pluvialis extract with
abundant Astaxanthin. It is
manufactured by a modern
technology and suitable for
people who care about skin
and cardiovascular health.

AREAEEOmega-3% a-11
MBHEERMABER  BUE
EBBERMAEERY > AR
RIEBEME  BRANBEER
EROMEBEREALHEERE
ZRe

BUMEET AL - URFMREMARENEE - 1858

Major Ingredients: Ganoderma lucidum spores

Prebiotics

3 ST

B

Xanthophyll- Sacha
Inchi Oil Capsule
HEZ -
EERHBE

The product is composed

of Sacha Inchi Oil, which is
rich in Omega-3 (2-3) and

a- linolenic acid (ALA), and
Calendula officinalis extract
with abundant Xanthophyll. It
is manufactured by a modern
technology and suitable for
people who

care about cardiovascular
and eye health.

AmEAEEOmega-3% a-31
MBHNEERBBER  BUAE
EEZENSBRIERY - KA
BRISBRMmEK  BANEE
OISR IRIREA L B ERE
Zf e

ill--ﬂ

Reviving Prebiotics
ERa4E

This product contains high-
quality fructo-oligosaccharide
as major ingredient,
formulated

with Astragalus extract,
Scrophulariaceae extract and
Angelica Sinensis Extract, and
is manufactured by a modern
technology. Suitable for
people that suffered with both
Qi deficiency and poor blood
circulation and people suffered
with poor intestine activity.

FREREEEBRERRE -
BLAEERRRY - Z2 R
HRREDY  RARKIEER
ek o BRANRMmMAERE AR
BENEBRBARNEERRE -

TERH  BERT

Ganoderma
Lucidum

2

g

Timsmyg

Lingzhi Collagen
Capsule

BERERE

Lingzhi Collagen Capsule
consists of premium quality
spores powder of Ganoderma
lucidum, Ganoderma lucidum
extract by advanced
technology and Marine
Collagen Peptides and is
easily absorbed and taken.

BEREBRUBENRERS
BFH - BARRRRIREY
BRI SFRREAMN
EBESWABRKERRAGE
-

Others
HAth ¥

Cranberry
Collagen Prebiotics

TEEE

This product contains
high-quality fructo-
oligosaccharide as major
ingredient, formulated with
cranberry power and marine
collagen peptides and is
manufactured by a modern
technology.

FRERBEEBRRERRE
BEUABHERY  SFBRER
Bk RARKTERRMmA

B

Cervus Elaphus Linnaeus
Collagen Capsule

BERBRBE

Camphorata

RiZHi

Ginseng-Antrodia
Camphorata Capsule &
Schisandra-Abtrodia
Camphorata Capsule

HEEZBER
ARBEBE

Antrodia camphorata plays
an important role in protecting
liver and improving
metabolism, reducing the rate
of acute liver injury caused by
alcohol, as well as regulating
immune function.

1832 B HERREHEE - REN

-~ ME - AL - gL mE
RER A MAEMER o

Ultra Fine
Pearl Powder

LuH

«

Semen
Cassiae Tea

RETFH

Ginseng
2

Korean Red Ginseng
Red Ginseng Granule
Tea

SBASK
AL BRI

Sourcing from Geumsan in
Korea, the origination of
Ginseng, our Ginseng
products are being
processed, steamed,
moisturised, pressurised and
packed in the traditional
metal case. The processing
technic we applied ensures
the stimulants are being
well-preserved.

A%Eun)ﬁé%@}\%,‘ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%

CEEBRFAMIIE > LBk
}§ G g - B REH
ERNEEETEE TBAT
SEESABOEREFERS

Rhodioa
AREPN |

Rhodiola Rosea Capsule
Blueberry & Rhodiola
Rosea Capsule

ASRABER
EBARABE

Rhodiolae grows in high and
cold areas. It helps enhance
immunity, anti-hypoxic,
anti-fatigue and enhance
memory.

ARKR—RERESEMLT - B

BEBEE  HURE - HURS -
TiiRS RIEEKEREEZER o

Marine
Collagen Peptide

BEBREHRK

Fagopyrum
Esculentum Tea

BER
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ARC AWARDS

J

The Most Influential Brand Nobel Laureates Series

in Asia 2017 it HLHIAEER N 251

2017 S 15 ine 2 B2 ) i REUR AE - Asian Chinese Leader

« Most Trustworthy Brand TMEARWR
RESEERE

b dadaalbe, .

World Branding Award ARC Award 2017

TS SRR 2017 e lEIH

» Brand of The Year 2017-2018 (Global Tier) + Design award for Annual Report 2016
BIPR R IE K HE2017-2018 (R IRER) 2016 FFR=THRE

17th Capital Outstanding Enterprise Award
L BEAGHE A SE R AE

= Outstanding Chinese Medicine Group
B e sEE

Chinese Medicine Industry Association Award
5 S b R
= China Quality Enterprise — Top Brand of Traditional Chinese

Medicine 2017
2017 HEIBEPELELISPER

.muli”

TRT LTD.

{4 tn

Organisation Chart
AL 2 A Bl

TRT TECHNOLOGIES
{5 R

THE COMPANY A2 H]

KM FM X JE

OCEANIA AMERICA EUROPE AFRICA

This chart is produced based on the information as at 31 December 2017.
REFZEZ2017F 12 A 31 AHERRE -
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ESG Report Bili, +1€& JAF G

ABOUT THE REPORT BHAAS R 5

Overview

This is the 2017 ESG Report published by the Company, which focuses mainly on disclosing relevant information on the
Group’s performance in social and environmental sustainability during the Year.

Reporting Standard
The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 20 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (the “Guide”) to the GEM Listing Rules of the Exchange.

The ESG Report is in compliance with four principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency as required by
the Exchange. In preparation of the ESG Report, the Company has identified and ranked the most significant ESG topics
to the Group through communication with its stakeholders, so as to define the reporting scope of the ESG Report,
collect relevant information, prepare the ESG Report based on the information collected and examine the data contained
herein.

Reporting Scope

Unless otherwise specified, the policy documents, statements and data in the ESG Report cover the Group.

s
WA RRBMN2017 FRE HEREERE  EXREAREAFRUERRASTHARRIERANBEERN -
)

FRE - ERERARESRBEBCHTGEM EHRAIM 202 (RE - e ERERB/EHEIDTURID ) ETRS -

ARG HEREARESBBHURIMERN B PER-BMOXRR  EBFEFRE HEREAREHE  CBEBES
NEBE  AIRBIEAEEAREENRE - HEREREE  RMREARE  HEREARENHREEER - WEABREN
WREERFEFRE L EREAREABTRBHERE  HERERREPHEIE -

BRIESEHA ARG HERERBEFHRES - B - HES  FELAEE-
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ESG Report

CHAIRMAN’'S MESSAGE

Bk, ey G
ERE

=
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As the overseas development platform of Tong Ren Tang, the Group is endeavored to our corporate motto “Nurturing
kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness” since its inception. It adheres to the principle of the “Two must
not-dos” in terms of product responsibility, which is incorporated and implemented in product research and
development, production and management. In pursuit of economic, social and environmental sustainability, not only
does it offer high-quality products and healthcare services to the world, but also actively fulfils corporate social
responsibility and establishes a harmonious relationship with stakeholders.

2017 was an important year for the implementation of the “Thirteen Five-year Plan” and the promotion of the supply-
side structural reform as well as the improvement of corporate quality. In view of the increasing downward
macroeconomic pressure and the accelerating pace of China’s “Belt and Road Initiative”, we took a people-oriented
humanistic approach and fulfilled social responsibility with enthusiasm. With the goal to benefit the world, we adopted
strict quality control and stayed committed to our prestige culture in establishing the quality control system that covers
the entire product lifecycle from the start to the end, thereby providing high-quality and safe products to the consumers.
We strived to contribute to society and participated in voluntary services to spread love and care. Leveraging our own
strengths, we also aimed to bring changes and integrate innovation resources to build the research and development
platform for the comprehensive science-based innovation system. Under our people-oriented management model, we
supported the personal growth of employees by offering them diverse training courses and a broad platform for
development. Besides, we took initiatives to identify stakeholders, in order to build and maintain a good relationship
with them through multiple communication channels. As a result, we were able to understand their needs and concerns
in a timely manner, allowing us to create value for them.

Tong Ren Tang combines traditional methodology and modern technology from the selection of raw materials to the
manufacturing technique. To ensure the premium quality of our products, we pursue excellence in ingredient selection.
Our production line has obtained the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) certification for Proprietary Chinese Medicine,
while our stores meet the GSP (Good Supply Practice) standard for pharmaceutical products. The Group has strict
screening and quality control procedures in place for the supply of raw materials, which provide sound technical support
to the quality assurance of our products. Based on the belief that “crafting without supervision, intentions are known by
the heavens”, we maintain a self-disciplined attitude and push forward our mission to “Preserving tranquility and
wellness”. We have enhanced the quality of our products, services, operation and assets on an on-going basis, which
can be summed up as the “four quality control aspects”. Meanwhile, we live by the motto of “Complexity and quality are
not to be forfeited by costs”, so as to provide “ethical, safe and reassuring medicines” with “unique formulas, superior
materials, superb technique and distinguished efficacy”. Through this, we establish a modern, international and
professional Chinese medicine group that covers the entire industry chain for the goal of “wherever there is a need for
health, wherever there is Tong Ren Tang.”

FEBEARCEBNRRNTE  BAIZUR  —EUNTEBCE - BEEE [ WEERB  HKABRERE X FB] &I 31
BEBAERME £ €8 (HER AUIRUSKRENER  AUARHSKENERRYE BEBETLIUSEML
B EBENERE  LEROIREE HEHRANAFERRE -

2017 RERt=A RANEZ—F  REGASBURENRLZEF  RELEZERAZF - HHZBKBETTEDMK -
ER—-H—BLSETEHMR - BRARFAUABEHALESE  BERELSET  EREYHEE  BRELEERRE KI5
BYRFHIKRN2ETAPREEERR  AHEERUEBER2NER - RMBNEELES  BEEHRYE - B SEH
HENEE  SIEMAER YRASEYE  ZSAFER HEMBTE  BURENRZ2AFBR  UARE  ANRES
T#HR AEIRMUSACEIRENEERRTE  2HRESIAR -EHMNEREBIDIAMNEZNE  BRZEENERES
FOERYARFREBE  REEROMNERERY  HE0EAEEE-

RBEHAEE  RHMNTE  BCEEESE  SIARARE  BERE  EENLIRBERE  BEREHNERRELE -
AEENEESRCEBSTEBTHEGMP(EEEEEHRE)RAE  AEEMBEEEHCEIGSP(ERREREERRE)FE
AEEHENPWHRBETRENHERRELE  ARRACEERNRERETRENRMNRE - RABKBEHESEAR
FOARMINEREY  UEEEE | Afs  THRLERRE BRERE  KSERE HERENNEREES] - BT
[RREELTEBRY D  BREELABEATIMESH - HEEERERABS BYLEE IT88E EXEFINIR
D RRE - ROE| TEBEZEXENRAL - BRL EXCTBEEE BER[ARESRNBARERCE]-

Environmental sustainability is the foundation of our long-term development. We have obtained the GMP certificate (a
set of international production and management standards for Chinese medicine) from the Hong Kong Department of
Health for all production lines at our Tai Po Production Base. We have also promoted green production practices and
implemented various initiatives to save energy consumption, mitigate pollution and protect the environment at the
plants. By adopting full cycle management, we aim at reducing the emission of pollutants and potential environmental
impacts, as well as proposing relevant preventive measures and treatment. We have strengthened environmental
monitoring in the production stage to ensure the implementation of environmental protection measures and minimize the
impact of our operation on the surrounding environment. By strictly following the environmental management system
and regulations of the Company in all aspects of production, we make sure the effectiveness of pollution treatment and
environmental protection initiatives.

We attach great importance to fulfilling corporate social responsibility and actively participate in public welfare
undertakings. We strive to “promote culture through medicine” and share traditional Chinese culture with the world.
Apart from business expansion, we also take part in social responsibility and give practical support to the community.
For example, we arranged a number of free healthcare seminars and free medical consultations for the public, provided
subsidies to students of Chinese medicine at universities, as well as sponsored and organized various exhibitions to
educate people on Chinese medicine. In line with the “Belt and Road Initiative”, we also promoted supreme Chinese
medicine products, services and culture around the world, realizing the dream of “Healthy life, Global choice.” In
addition, we organised a series of well-planned and excellent staff training program, which was designed to support and
provide opportunities for all employees to unleash their potentials, so as to boost their confidence at work and
strengthen team cooperation. These measures encourage our employees to align their personal aspirations with our
long-term development, enabling us to nurture generations of talents.

We believe that the idea of sustainability is deeply rooted in all corporations.
In 2018, the Group will continue to strive for excellence in all aspects of
sustainable development, thereby making long-term contribution to its
business and society.

Mei Qun ‘

Chairman
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The Group recognises the importance of environmental and social issues to its sustainability. In this regard, it adopts
active risk management and sets up the ESG management structure which encompasses functional departments at all
levels. Employees are able to play different roles within their authority in the sustainable development of the Group. It
allows consistent implementation of ESG policy within the organization as well as effective system implementation, daily
monitoring, data collection and information disclosure to ensure the sustainable development of the Group and the
performance of the obligations by the stakeholders.

AEESRIRE M INESENEINTREXRABEE - A5ERBEEERAR  AHERE HEREANEERR
B UREETEEBRRBEBM 2T RABREAFRKEETEERRECTTEAR -ERAKENRE HEREARKREER
BRAKELT UBBERMTHE - AFER  HBERE ERENBEZSZEARE  MRBASNTEABRNEEE0EN
BEEET -

Function Responsible Job duties
B e Department s
BEEQ
Audit Management e Discuss major ESG issues and future development
B EIRAE AWIERE  HEREREREBARRERE

¢ Identify relevant ESG risks
BHIRE - g MEAEREAR

e Formulate ESG strategies and goals
HERR B RERRELER

e Effectiveness review

a TYERR

e Evaluate the overall effectiveness of the work mechanism

SRS TR I RRE TR

e Review the truthfulness of information in the ESG report and its
effectiveness

ZHRE HEREAMEEANEBENARE

Function

B aE

Statistics

BeEt

Record

8k

Responsible
Department

BEEM

ESG team formed by
person-in-charge of
various functional
departments

ERAE AP B B AR
IRIE (g RERT
YE/NEERR

Person-in-charge of
various functional
departments as well as
subsidiaries
EBEHPFIRTEAR
MNEEA

Job duties
AEERE

Establish departmental requirements for ESG data collection and
submission
HIEEMFIRE HE8 RESERKEEPANEEEK

Organize training on ESG information management
HERFARRE e REREMERE

Distribute ESG information to functional departments and subsidiaries
ADIREE HEREAEMBEEISBESFIRTEAR

Supervise the collection and submission of ESG information by
functional departments and subsidiaries
EERXBEBARTEARRFAERR HekER/EMBRERRAT
1

Collate ESG information from functional departments and subsidiaries
EASBAEBFIRTBRRNIRR g RER/EM

Keep records on ESG information
RIS HEREAEMME

Prepare the ESG report and submit it to the audit and review
personnel
HBERE HEREAMELRRERIEFTREREAR

Present the ESG information of the audit and review personnel
EREXEBARRE HERER/EMBER

Attend the ESG information management training organized by the
ESG team
SERE L RER/PMERRORE e REREMERE

Arrange for recording, accounting and submission of assigned ESG
information in accordance with the requirements of the Company
BRARZRUDEMNERE LG REQEMEITLHE - AsHMERE
Keep departmental records for ESG information

R BPINES B REARNER

Raise issues about the recording, accounting and submission of ESG
information
RRIRE - e REIARE - ST EBXRIETERINMEE

Make recommendations to ESG team of the audit and review
personnel to continuously enhance the collection and submission of
ESG information

HEBZERAENSERS g hERIENEKE - FERAERSE
HEREREMRENMEARE
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Stakeholder Group
o EAER

Investor

REE

L

Consumer

HEE

Employees
BT

Government and regulators

Bk EEHE

Suppliers and partners

HERR AR

Trade associations

TEHE

Community
e

Communication Channel

BEAR

e Questionnaire

BERE

* Regular release of financial report and data
ERMBRERBEERM

e Shareholders’ meeting
BRERRE

e Investor relations communication

REEBRBE

e  Customer service hotline
BRI AR

e  Product labelling
BmER

e Mail
EEds

e  Social media communication
HRERBE

e Questionnaire

BERE

e Suggestion box for employees
BIER

e Opinion survey
BERAE

e  Staff training
BT

e  Staff activities
BIEH

e Group interview
NEFEHK

* Regular communication

EHER

e  Compliance record
AR

e Policy documents
BRI

e Response to consultation

[l fE 54 7

® Questionnaire
BERE

e Regular communication
EHBE

e Assessment and evaluation
FZEE

e Information sharing
BEfH=

e Regular exchange
EHRR

e Participation in the affairs of trade
associations

BRITEHEEYE

e  Fostering community culture
HEXLER

e  Support to underprivileged groups
®BE 2R

e Community services

HERH%

Concern and Expectation

BXERHE

e Corporate governance
EER
e Risk control
BB
e Information openness and transparency
SR ARESR
e Sustainable profit growth
FEEFER
* Protection of shareholders’ interests

RS R RS

*  Product safety
EmRE

e  Product quality
EmEE

®  Product information disclosure
EmERKRE

e Consumers’ rights and privacy protection
HEERRZR B RE

e Handling of opinions and complaints
BRRKRFEE

e Job opportunities
MERE

e Salary and benefits protection
N RBERRE

e  Fair promotion and development
opportunities
DFBEANMBRERS

e Establishment of workplace culture
emphasise on health and safety
IHERRZERERE2OELER

e Lawful operation of legitimate business
BERE

e Local economies support
FiF i B

e Promoting employment

fRERE

e  Fair competition
AFHF
¢ Integrity and fulfilment of obligations

BIEEXN

e  Compliance with industry standards
BFITRRE

*  Promoting the growth of industry
TRETHEER

* Research and development of products and
technology
Tt 8% 3 2 AL Al

e Promotion of community development
IRFEERERR

e Respecting community culture
BEHEXL

e Ecological environment protection
RELRRIR

Response/Action

EIfE T8

Continuous improvement of corporate governance and risk management
FERAQRALEELARERER
Timely information disclosure

REEHERME

Establishment of feedback platforms, such as telephone hotlines, mail and website

HREF BUHRAUZSERARETA
Effective internal control and audit

BRABEH R ET

Product safety testing and guarantee

EmZE A RRE

Disclosure of product information

KEEREM

Establishment of customer service communication channels
RUBRFRBEREE

Setting up of a sound information exchange mechanism
BIYRENNERZ RS

Develop a comprehensive mechanism for handling customers’ complaints

BYRENEFRFEEET

Timely and full payment of wages

R B 2 BE 3% B B

Formulation of a competitive salary system

FEERFE NN HER

Establishment of a sound benefits mechanism with flexibility
BURENERNES REERE

Setting up of transparent promotion mechanism and channel
BUZERNEARSNER

Development of a long-term and effective career development platform
BEREERNEBXBRRTE

Improvement of working environment and workplace safety assurance
REIFRERTERE

Consultation of employees’ opinions

BRETIER

Regular staff activities

EHRREIEY

Continuous product innovation and research & development
FHEE ORI R a

Ensuring the business operation be legitimate

BRARSREE

Active participation of government projects and close cooperation
BESMBNEE RBEERE

Establishment of a standardized and transparent procurement and management procedures for suppliers

BURBEREANHERRBRERRE
Regular assessment and quality record for a responsible supply chain

BERENTEREERE  TEEEEMER

Selecting top companies in the industry and making recommendation on industry standards

SETHTE  HOXRRBRUES

Participation of trade association activities
SHETHEABED

Sharing of advanced production experience and opinions
EELERRRERAE

Active engagement in charity and donation
EEHHARAEREED

Participation in community and charity events
REMEARED

Great efforts in community services

BR2 it ER%

Il 5> E A

[

R




panwi Auedwo) suioipsy asauly) Bue] usy Buoj Bullleg

/102 Hodey [enuuy

In preparation of the ESG Report, we have appointed an independent consultant to conduct materiality assessment on
the ESG issues of the Group, which allows us to understand stakeholders’ views in terms of their concerned area, their
opinions on the Group’s ESG efforts for the past year and their expectations on the ESG Report. Based on the above
process, we determined the disclosure framework and content for the ESG Report and respond to the stakeholders’
opinions and expectation.

ERE - ERELABREEANE RAREZABLERYAKRELRE HERECHBNRRETEERNME - UEES
FOEMBINER MMEAEEEEE-—FHRRE - HEREATHFENTE  URHERE - HERERBENHE » M
NARE  HEREABREREEARAR  ORSONENZERRHAE -

There are mainly four stages of the materiality assessment. Firstly, we identified the stakeholders relevant to the
business of the Group and a series of ESG issues. Secondly, we carried out the stakeholder communication program to
gain insights into the ESG issues that concern them. Thirdly, we analysed and prioritised such issues, and lastly,
submitted to the management for confirmation. Relevant procedures are shown below:

EAMEEED MERRET - ERRAREXBEBOFOEN-RIRE HERELEE  RRETHNEBEHS
BEMAMEERE HEREAMERNEE MO TRFIFERNEE  BEXHEEERR - HERERNT

Based on the ESG report preparation standards set out in the Guide, the nature of our
business and other factors, we identified groups of significant stakeholders and
formulated stakeholder engagement program specifically designed for each group.

Identification of
stakeholders

B ERR HAGESNBE HEREAREFUELERADEBHERE  BAHEEENEHE
AR WHSABSTH YN HESENS .
Communication with We collected stakeholders’ opinions through questionnaires and interviews to identify

their top ESG priorities and expectations.
BREEMENFTHEUESENENER  BROMEASEEIRE HERERLELARE
HIFRREMEREE -

stakeholders

FhEBRBE

We analysed and ranked the ESG issues according to the research results, and then
screened out significant issues using the materiality matrix.
REBSHERAMERYSRE HLERERABBETONRER  UBLEEMER  #

Screening and
assessment of
material issues

e e o . TEFE L E SR -
BERAGERMRE
The results of the analysis was submitted to the management for final confirmation, and
Management o T . .
i ) the material issues identified from the results became the important basis for
confirmation formulating the reporting framework and ESG strategy.
EEERR EANEREXADCEBETRARR YU NERSHNESEBFRMERERE

ERBE - HERELARBNEEES -
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Environment and use of resources

BERERER

Effect of climate change on risk of operation and income

RIZBULEEYE - WANRREE

2 Emission of greenhouse gas and emission reduction
BERBHMKREEE

Compliance with relevant environment protection regulations

1

S myEmmARELR
J 4 Research and development and application of environmental protection technologies
RIBRER A EREKRA
5 Production and treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous waste

BEREYREBEEEEYELERER
High 6 Egerg}/ consumption and energy saving performance
5 BERCHAEREIRERIR
Sewage discharge and carbon reduction
T SABRRAHER
Recycling and reuse of material

AN EITEY L

Use of water resources and water saving performance

°  KEREARDHKAER
10 Use of raw n\waterials anfj materials
EMRARIER SR
Significant impact of business activities on environment and natural resources

MEEHHRERAARERNEATE
Employment

o
Staff diversity and fair opportunity

12 S =
EIRFEZTLRTIEHS
Compliance with regulations protecting labour rights

=

1

Labour standards

[
£
g B uymps T RsREER
_g o Staff safety and health
o BIZ2HRE
-g e 14 Safeguarding employees’ occupational safety and health
o RESTIHER2MEE
-
8 < Employee remuneration, development and training ’V(
£F 15 518 wREE
S W
€
[«
g BIZTEE
= 16 Prevention of child labour and forced labour
Byl FE T RIRBEH

Supply chain management

HEEEE

17 Assessment on supplier’s environmental, social and labour rights performance

MEMRE T L IRBERETME
18 Supplier engagement and appraisal ’V‘

MEMEARERSE
Product responsibili

EmEE

Safeguarding customers’ health and safety
REEFRERZ2

Handling and responding to customers’ complaints ’v‘
BREEFPHNRFRELR T E

Protection of intellectual property ’v‘
RIEHBERE

Quality inspection process and product recall procedure ,V‘
mEREAERERBKER

Protection of customers’ privacy and personal information ’V(
REZFHBAREAENR

Anti-corruption

RE®
<

Low

&

Importance to business development High
HEERRNEEM =

Compliance with anti-corruption regulations
BFEBREER

Internal and external anti-corruption performance ,v‘
D E R ERR IR R B 18 B AR R

Community

HE

25

Effect of daily operations on surrounding communities
BEEBHEASHEEENHE
Contribution to community

26

il iEEn
v -
) Issues with high materiality SEEEMHEE

Issues with moderate materiality S EZE 4 EE
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Awards

In recognition of our achievements in the medical industry, the Company was awarded the “World Branding Awards
2017-2018 (Global)” by the World Branding Forum in the United Kingdom for three consecutive years, which
demonstrated the wide recognition of our brand in the global community.

During the Year, the Company was also honoured the “2017 Outstanding Chinese Medicine Enterprise Chinese Medicine
Promotion Award” by the Hong Kong Chinese Medicine Industry Association, the “Asia’s Influential Brands: Traditional
Chinese Medicine-Most Trustworthy Brand” by Influential Brands in Singapore and the “17th Capital Outstanding
Enterprise Awards-Outstanding Chinese Medicine Group” by Capital Magazine and South China Financial Holdings
Limited.

In 2017, the Group received the “Caring Company” from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the fourth
consecutive year. The award demonstrated our active undertaking of social corporate responsibility, care for community,
employees and environment, and our outstanding contribution to the sustainable development of Hong Kong.

3=
R

;~Iﬂ

FARCEEF=FREARAE R R R ARIGBEEXN [EFREAR2017-2018 (ZRER) I WETRCEHEEEEEN
BE KREFREGIURZHNEES -

(

B ARNRARAFEFREFBPEXHE RO (2017 PEBEPHERELBENER | - 303K Influential Brands 3 &Y [ 32
NERAREIRE  PEEE - RESCFERE I REARSTHEECRHERAERLOADMEBEN E+LtEEREHDERME
— HhhEEsE] -

20175 AEFEEBRREFTBHEMBHEEBN [BRAREBIZI R EREANEBFNFREUKRR - KRBEEDFER
MEERECELEER  BERMNEE - EIRERR  AEBURERRFELRUERM -

the Group won the World Branding Awards for
three consecutive years

FEEERERE=FREMERMBAE

Our tradition of contributing to the community and
treating society with kindness earned us good public praise
DS EFEENERRERFOR
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Anti-Corruption and Sound Governance

The Group is in strict compliance with national laws and regulations, as well as relevant systems and rules of the Group,
which require its employees not to commit misconduct such as offering or accepting bribes or acts of corruption. The
Group has implemented effective anti-corruption initiatives, established sound internal audit regulations and internal
control systems, and enhanced internal supervision, risk control and anti-corruption management.

We place great emphasis on our responsibility in anti-corruption, for the purpose of maintaining a fair and efficient
business and working environment. The Group has included a set of staff codes of practices set out in the internal audit
manual, which forbid employees from taking or accepting any form of benefits from any persons, companies or
organizations conducting business with the Group. We have set up an internal audit department for all matters relating
to the establishment of our internal audit and internal control system. It also supervises our business activities to reduce
operating risks. The Group has a zero tolerance policy towards any forms of corruption. During the Year, the control and
prevention effectiveness of the Group in areas of risk control and anti-corruption was greatly enhanced by such rules
and systems, with no material deficiency identified. There is no corruption litigation against the Group as well.

fHHE G

AEEBREEREFEELIRARFAEEEBEFIERE  ERETIEAMBERTHRESEENTH ZTHRESEXETH - £5H
BRHARRZERTH  BEYRENAPBHRECERABZHEER - UREABEE - BRZEHIRRERER

AEF—EXTRESXENEFRIFRE  EMNSEERECRESTEANEL - AEERABETFRACHEHEBE TR
ZItEESRAEASEEAEBEREZAL ARAAFBRR > WIHEIEAXKX 2FE - AEEREABETBM - 2EEESX
SENABFFRADPEFHBRERTF  HAEEANTEKETHETEE  #MBRESLERR - AEERTERDZAEMAER
MEFTR - AF  ZEFERBREFASERRENR REUERSHED T RFIEFEpEER  RAERBEARKE - M
REBTRBREESBRARD
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ESG Report

QUALITY PRODUCTS

Tong Ren Tang adheres to the principle of “complexity and quality are not to be forfeited by costs” and stays committed
to the strict product manufacturing control procedures from procurement of raw materials, production to quality
inspection since its foundation. At the same time, we welcome customers’ feedback and strive to offer diverse, safe and
effective Chinese medicine through product research and development.

BCERAILZESRAZ ARESEXTHEAL  RREBSXTEORY N OEI - FEBZENRE £SERESBRINEZS
BeEAR EMNELEREZFNER UEBERMBRATFRMS L ZE2RSRMNPEER -

Suppliers
fIMERE

—
a4 22; =29

We strictly adopt the approach of “Purchase on demand, Select the best quality”. We have formulated clear
procurement system, supplier management rules and material management procedures to ensure the quality and
traceability of the raw material and the compliance with relevant supplier management regulations.

Hong Kong
&
PRC
HEl
Oceania
FAEM
. Europe
America
=M
Other countries

and regions
HittERKk it E

4

2016

Total # : 236

A&

Total # : 245

-

65

We have stringent requirements for suppliers and carefully inspect the quality of raw materials. The quality of our
Chinese medicine products depends on the raw materials and auxiliary materials used in the manufacturing process.
Before engaging new suppliers, we request them to provide statutory proof, and will assess their supply capacity,
product quality, qualification and reputation etc. Small-scale trial production is carried out for new supplier and we will
arrange on-site quality inspection to check their warehouses conditions, quality control, production environment,
production technology and scale. This is to ensure the quality of raw materials matches the Group’s production
standards.

BMBREHTREBE BEEE RES-NRE BEFEEWNRESNE HENEERERYBEERERF  BRUEE
MBRNEER BN  UHFEHEREEREES -

EMHHEFERENER  RELRERMHNES - RENFEMARGREEMNTEERNRELRER - FRIEMHESA
EMBRTERYBEEFRUEIEERNBFEAN  ESREMEHINEEL) ERREEE  CENEEREES - BN
EHNREFNHESET OMMEBLEENS  YZHRSEEES  REAERATRER H22H £ERE - FERWRERE
Z UBRRAEMBNREREEINAEERENREER -

0

i

In addition, we perform regular assessment and keep records of the quality test reports from existing suppliers. We
carry out supplier evaluation every two years to check if their products are in compliance with the laws and the Group’s
requirements. We also keep records of qualified test report on regular basis to ensure the quality of raw materials.
Furthermore, we trace back to the growing environment of the ingredients. GLSPC is made of ganoderma lucidum spore
powder as ingredients. Thus, the Group assigns a dedicated team to regularly visit the growing environment of
Ganoderma Lucidum, the collection and processing environment and its surroundings, with the aim of upholding high
quality standards starting at the source of raw materials.

Upon confirming the suppliers and purchase orders, we monitor the quality of raw materials on an ongoing basis. We
have established material management procedures for clear inspection. Before entering the manufacturing plants, all
materials are subject to preliminary inspection, which concerns if the satisfactory inspection report is obtained, and if
the sources and specification are available on the labels of each batch of materials. We also take samples for further
testing. Qualified materials are then sorted and stored according to the material storage management procedures and
substandard materials are handed over to the quality and production department for follow-up actions. In the course of
inspection, materials are classified with colour labels to prevent non-compliant materials entering the manufacturing
process.

During the Year, the Group had a total of 245 suppliers (2016: 236) for raw materials,
auxiliary materials, packaging materials and commodities. Our suppliers are spread
over Hong Kong, the PRC, Oceania, Europe, America and other countries and
regions, which provide a stable supply for our materials.

S0 BMEHCRIANHERETENTIEREERFE - BN
EMFEHHERET RTEIE  REMERERREEHEE
ERAEEER - WEHEFEEBANEERAMS - BREM BB
mE - RMESEWIFEFHNWEERE REEZHTHBER
DRERBZHAFHRARN bt AEEEXEARSEHRRSE
EHREZHEERE  BAFHRE EEREREABRE  ERE
AR BREE RIS -

MNA

ERATHEARTEZR RMEREHRVNERETER -
BRMEETHHEERRE  AYBRERET AROERF - IEYWRER
AYFERZNLSRE  BASHYHNARBRERBREE  URFEWRARER
BRE UHERERUSHRE SR EREVERFEERBEIEE
B MASHRNYBRAEXHEEREENPIFRERE - TRBNBET - 9
HEREOERERE  UBETARNIEALERRF -

AE > NEBHRA24REERE (2016 F : 236 R) EFRMEEMF -
HR - BREYBRER  HEFIRESE - PE - EMN &
M ENREMBERRME - LIEMEBEMHE -
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ESG Report

QUALITY PRODUCTS SRR N
With our meticulous monitoring over the entire production process and the establishment of the quality assurance »
system based on the Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) of Proprietary Chinese Medicine, we make sure that the ;2';;:;2” manufacturer
quality of our products meet the Pharmacopoeia of the PRC and relevant food safety standards. The Group has e
obtained the GMP certification, and also the international standard of ISO22000:2005 food safety management systems,
and Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP) certification for our Tai Po Production Base. Together with our b B

modern manufacturing equipment, our production line has reached world-class level. To ensure product safety, we not
only conduct an internal comprehensive quality assurance standard inspection in accordance with relevant product
standards on each batch of Chinese patent medicines and healthcare products, but also send the sample to
independent third parties recognised by the government to test whether the products comply with the standards set in
the registration regulation of proprietary Chinese medicines, the Food Adulteration (Metallic Contamination) Regulations
and the Pesticide Residues in Food Regulation imposed by the Centre for Food Safety and other food safety regulations
in Hong Kong. In case of adverse event due to any qualified products, we will carry out investigation based on the
adverse event monitoring and reporting procedures, and report on such incident according to laws and regulations.

Capitalizing on the modern production facilities and employees’ exquisite handiwork, our Tai Po Production Base is
manufacturing every Chinese medicine with heart. With new automated production machinery and our comprehensive
monitoring by professionals, product quality and effectiveness are guaranteed by a combination of mechanical and
manual manufacturing process. We inject Ganoderma Lucidum Spore powder into the capsules mechanically and use
precision instrument to ensure the weight of each capsule meets the standard. In parallel with automated production,
Tai Po Production Base maintains certain manual manufacturing procedures of Angong Niuhuang Wan. Thus, we rely on
the dedication of our professional team to produce each pill.

B -—# T ERREEREERR  YREEBLEEEEFNRACMP)HIERERZERS  BREMEENETHEAR
HEERZERE - ARENAHEEEBISEGMPRR  EEFEBREZEEIS022000 : 2005 RA R EEBARBES N T &
EFB(HACCP)RE  BHERAEERR ERLERFCEIRABRKE - HMSSARREENTRERRERREEEN
EnGAM2EARNEERERE  ARFIEBARATNBLIE=FFEER  RREQREREPREIMER EBBNR
MEEP(RNEE (EBRESE) AN (RYAKRZARSBRIDREBRVZZ2MRINEE  BRERNZ 2N - NFF
HEMSHKERETRRE  RMERBIARREER BEEERRETHAT  UBRERER-

ABEEESAARRCNEERAFNBEIZAMEES —HTBEER - NEEEEMREABCEEMSE  MEEEA
ENEEEZEURBBEFIRSALZANNEERE RREREEBERANA - RNEAKBEREESHIHIABE
VTABENERRABNBENESSHERE - TEDLEENRR  NFLEEMNATERBEFIRERSFEAND
IF AREBRRMNEXER  AORES-NEZE4EN -

Product Standard
77 B e

Good Manufacturing Practice for Pharmacopoeia of the PRC | General Pro ionATea L]
Proprietary Chinese Medicines R EZ A Standa s =]
i BX % GMP v Registration Regulation of R p St iiij
1SO22000:2005 Food Safety Proprietary Chinese Medicines D Clear ards

Management System of Hong Kong T
1S022000:2005 & 7 BB R MAZAE
ZEEEEA

L

CICTS

I e e e EN U]

Automated warehouses
BELIBAE

We do not only emphasise on precision in and details of manufacturing process, but also impose strict requirements on
the production and storage environment. The cleanroom in Tai Po Production Base is installed with separated paths for
operators and materials to pass through, which prevent microorganism, particles and other pollutants from entering the
production process. The cleanroom of Tai Po Production Base has met the Grade D cleanroom standards. Besides, we
offer specific work clothes to operators and make sure their personal hygiene is up to standard. Meanwhile, we monitor
the temperature, the humidity and the air pressure in different districts of the production area, clean equipment and
measuring instruments on a regular basis; attach labels on materials and semi-finished products, which are sorted and
stored by categories to prevent the growth of micro-organisms and cross contamination. The product warehouses must
always be kept clean, in order, contamination-free and pollution-free. Hazardous and non-hazardous materials are
stored separately as well. The warehouse is equipped for normal temperature storage, cool storage and cold storage,
which meet the storage condition of different materials.

According to the quality standard and experimental requirements, the Group performs inspection, data processing and
review of all materials and environment at laboratories with different functions in Tai Po Production Base. With reference
to the Pharmacopoeia of the PRC and the Standard Operation Procedures for Drug Inspection of the PRC, we
formulated the inspection management procedure for laboratory works, so as to ensure that the qualification of
inspectors, inspection methodology and inspection equipment are up to standard.

BRYERIFHOEERMS)  RMAIHLEEREFHREEEERBNER - KHLEEMREZFES - 2HREREFAER
MRBEBBHNRE  BOMEY  HNESRERENEERFNRS - ARAHLEEMNRFECEDRRFLEEBRE - R
MEARFAESRHEENTHRE  YRRBFASHBAAFEFSER AR AMNEZLERSNEE - RERTRES
MERED  EMERRERERE  WHARFERRUAEBRENRE  YRRAESERE  UBREHMEMLERIIUTRN
e ERNABETXAKERFELEER - AF BISRYURSR  FSRESNWNETEIRER RESREBRRTE
BREFE - SESLURETRORHET -

ABFEEEHRBEEERERERER  2RRETERDENERE - HAEMHRREETRE BB EERER - HMKE
(PEIZE)R(TEEMRBEEREREHIETERENNEERE  BRABABER - BR5ZE BREFEHEER-
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ESG Report

QUALITY PRODUCTS

Our research and development department has put into great efforts in the development of owned products, thereby
enriching Tong Ren Tang’s product portfolio and enhancing product diversity. During the Year, the Group filed
applications in Hong Kong and other overseas countries and regions for the product registration. We also filed a total of
8 patent applications, in which 3 patents on design of Angong Niuhuang Wan, which is our key product, were accepted.
Meanwhile, it also made huge investment in fundamental research and development with renowned Hong Kong, PRC
and overseas professional research universities and institutions on quality, efficacy and other in-depth study of
renowned products including Angong Niuhuang Wan, Tongren Niuhuang Qingxin Wan, GLSPC and etc. to maximize
product advantages and to enhance product recognition in overseas markets.

The Group is in compliance with regulations relating to products and services. It endeavors to manufacture and sell
products for customers’ physical wellbeing. All Chinese medicine products sold by us are manufactured in accordance
to the Chinese Medicine Ordinance and registered with the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong. For over 300 years,
we have manufactured Chinese medicine based on our own recipe and we do not tolerate any false representation of
efficacy and ingredients. All description and promotion materials on our products are designed in the manner as
required by the Undesirable Medical Advertisements Ordinance and the “Trade Descriptions Ordinance”, hence,
customers can have access to suitable Chinese medicine products.

We take customers’ feedback seriously. The Group has developed the product return procedure for products returned
due to any reasons. Upon receiving notice for return of goods, our professional inspection team will take samples of the
returned goods and identify sellable products from unqualified ones. Sellable products that are returned due to delivery
error, wrong order, operational reasons and damaged packaging will be sold in the market after passing the quality test.
On the other hand, substandard products with quality issues will be gathered and destroyed. The technology and quality
control department and the production department will review all returned products and formulate specific measures to
prevent recurrence of similar events. During the Year, none of the products of the Group were returned due to safety
and health reasons.
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HMERRXT -RIERNEMPFNER  AEAEISHEFNRFE  EPHHENGRERSFEANIEIREFN SRS E -
BERREE  ARBANRBUEFRERMFLE  —ERSTEREANMMRFARAEMALE  KAIBRZEFEN - B
FEEBEOH  REBZHAFHBELSNELERNAGFNTIEE  #HRE - IRERAME  RARELRBEREZYREAE
HITERAE °

FEBBTERERBEBRER  AULATFNERRERBES —HER RAMBHENTEEER BHBR(PEEREM)
Bt WERBTBEEEZSSHM  RAURSRERBI00FRESL » TR EMBEARNEYARN - Ko EEWEBRBRL o f7
FHRERNFEAREEHRERTTRES (BE) R R(ARFHAKRS)  BEFREESSENTBEER

EMREHGREEEFUEMERNTE  USETERREEEARUERERAMNREMEREANER - EREREBA
% REMNESKSHRMEXNLBREBETIERRE SBRTHEHENERRTEENER - THENENERNERE -
FEHR KEFE  BRBREENMRENERSIRERTEARAMELE -MEEERMEMTERNERSHR —HREE -
BiimENRREEAESSHAERANERETRN Y EHEBARERBEERSHRE - AFR  FEERBEERER S
HEREmMARRNER °

Aiming to offer quality products and services, the Group handles all customer complaints prudently. Our after-sales
consultation and complaint handling procedure is in place, which stipulates the basic requirements for handling
customer complaints and ensures there are detailed records, follow-ups and replies for all cases. Where there are issues
relating to product quality, durability, reliability, safety, effectiveness or defects in design or functionality, customers can
make suggestions to us through phone call, email, letter or make a visit to our stores in person. Our professional staff
will listen and handle each comment and feedback diligently, and make detailed records of such incidents. The
technology and quality control department will promptly identify the causes of the complaints, recall or replace the
defective products. All complaints handling processes are recorded for annual evaluation and feedback, so that our
products and services are continuously enhanced. During the Year, the Group received 3 product complaints. Following
our investigation, it was confirmed that there was no issue with our product, and we had made timely reply to the
customers and taken appropriate actions.

In the meanwhile, we keep customers’ privacy strictly confidential. Our staff are not allowed to disclose customers’
information, purchase records and medical records to external parties. We have also included the disciplinary actions
for violations in the staff manual and forbid employees to disclose customers’ personal information without the written
consent of the Company. Unauthorized copying, retention and taking away of confidential information is subject to
disciplinary actions.
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CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

The “culture of people-orientedness and the goal of mutual benefits for employees and the Company” are deeply rooted
in Tong Ren Tang. Since the start of business, the Group aims at “nurturing kindness and virtue” within and outside the
organization. As a result, the management and employees have fostered friendship and created a benevolent
atmosphere to work harmoniously together.

Our people are the foundation of our success. Thus, the Group emphasises the importance of talent sustainability and is
endeavored to becoming an outstanding employer with an excellent team. For the purposes of attracting and retaining
high caliber people, the Group formulated a set of sound human resources policy to safeguard employees’ rights. In
addition to complying with regulations that protect labour rights, the Group set up the “Manual for Staff at the
Company’s Headquarter”, the “Manual for Store Staff at the Company” and the “Code of Practice in the Manual of
Management and System of the Company”, which stipulate the rights and obligations of employees, with the aim of
creating a safe, friendly, fair and secured workplace.

[AART  ARHB|HARCREERCEZS - BAIEFRS  BCEERHAEMIUTCRI/RS  EEERETHRE
s REHETHENM-EIRE -
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Human Capital
Labour Standard

We remunerate our employees according to the minimum wages requirements as stipulated in local laws and
regulations, and carry out recruitment and employment procedures in strict compliance with the “Employment
Ordinance” and the “Minimum Wage Ordinance”. The Group does not commit the offence of employing child labour or
forced labour. In preventing child labour, we require job applicants to produce identification documents for verification.
In the event of non-compliance, the Company will report to the relevant government department in accordance with the
laws and extend its full co-operation to the investigations so as to help the victims. Apart from that, the Company will
also impose disciplinary actions against relevant personnel, or terminate the employment in serious cases. The Group
will handle relevant matters based on the internal rules such as the “Scope and Procedure of Disciplinary Actions” and
“Procedure for Termination of Employment”.

In order to recruit suitable candidates, the Group has established the qualification and selection requirements for
different job positions, which state the duties, required skills, knowledge, experience and qualification of each position.

The Group adopts general recruitment, internal recruitment and employee referral as its recruitment channels. It will only
consider applicants who pass relevant interview or written test, as well as the verification of their academic qualification
and vocational skills for the job position. It adheres to the principle of “distribution based on contribution” and practices
equal pay for equal work. Employees are not paid differently due to their gender, age, race or religion.
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CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

Employee Care and Retention

We regard our people as valuable assets. Therefore, we take various staff care initiatives to retain talents. Our “Human
Resources Policy” safeguards all aspects of labour rights, including working hours and annual leaves.

Furthermore, the Company regularly reviews the remuneration and benefit policy, with the aim of establishing a sound
and international remuneration structure. This position-focused and goal-oriented structure is determined based on
employees’ competency and work performance, with reference to market rate, individual ability, qualification and
experience. Annual performance-based bonus is issued as well to motivate employees, in the hope of boosting
efficiency with salary rise. At the same time, our welfare system combines local statutory staff benefits with voluntary
ones and offers more paid holidays as required by laws. We also provide traditional Chinese medicine physician
consultation services free of charge and employee medical insurance to take care of employees’ health and cater to
their diverse needs.

0FE 4 912 40 60 95

EMRETAQNANESEE CHETEERBERREET - AQXANALEFRER | RESETRFHENE TR - MITHE
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Day trip to Batam
BXE—BiE
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National day Celebration to
promote workplace cohesion
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competition
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In view of the severe damages caused by Typhoon Hato, which hit Macao on 25 August 2017, we have delivered
disaster relief materials, including water, rations and first aid materials to Tong Ren Tang Macao. Our Macao employees
have worked ceaselessly to resume our business and have demonstrated strong cohesion and commitment to the
Company.

AE - BEAI KRB IN2017F8 A25 AEAIRM » RMBEEXYERUNTE - BEVEREK % SRARSRECE(R
P BCZ2ORPDZEEIHALRAEABRRNMEETCERUEANTHE  BRTECECRP) ARENRB D MERBES -

“We organised a wide range of sports and cultural activities with
“healthy life, happy work” as the theme to enrich employees’ life in
their spare time, which have improved staff relationship and boosted
team cohesion.”

[FRAFT LA TR 2L 7 - R T AR | 7% 278 > SHAKM B RE T 5LE 2 % 1) 30
HE) > BE B TRy SRERSCb AR is > M B TG - B R BRI BER 11 -

Prosperity and good fortune in Spring Festival

SopEITY @ Tong Ren Tang
EHNEEHH

Macao fought
Malaysia 552k 7 25 “Hato” together

N =] [— g N oop
Organised staffs to attend the lion dance performance of RFARCER O DE
Hin Hua High School and showcased traditional Chinese festival culture |—3§ ﬁ,%J
through the activity of “Sending Warm Greetings”
ARETHEREETEENERNRERBBRSEHED
[BEALTH | EETRBRERNPESTHEL

Macao J&2F9
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CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

Health and Safety

The Group places great emphasis on employees’ health and safety. It is dedicated to create a safe, clean and accident-
free workplace while maintaining strict compliance with and actively implementing the “Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance” of Hong Kong. In addition, the Group is required to submit the Annual Training Proposal to the Department
of Health, setting out details of its monthly training and the corresponding categories. Such training is complemented
with questions and the completion of training is subject to passing of the test. The Group also maintains individual
employees training attendance records and other relevant records. As a result, our staff is able to work in a safe and
healthy environment which protects them against injury. In the meantime, the Company organizes annual medical
check-up for employees to ascertain their physical conditions and identify any potential health problems as soon as
possible. This allows them to take actions in time, thereby reducing the risks of serious ilinesses.

Workplace safety measures

Our people’s safety is our main concern. Hence, we have established a set of measures and guidelines for workplace
safety. Our employees are required to strictly follow and observe the safe operating procedures, with the aim of
minimising injury and occupational diseases.

frERE e 2 4
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STCM software
Training on safe use of machinery and equipment at store training
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Training on stability and security at store
MERERZ2REIENEI
Malaysia 53R I8

Seminar on the fire safety education
bus at Tai Po Production Base
ABEEEMERE LIZINBE

Hong Kong &%

El]]pl(){\'(}CSy saf\cty awareness

To raise employees’ awareness, the Company holds occupational safety and health seminars from time to time. It also
conducts staff appraisal to ensure they have enough safety knowledge, thereby guaranteeing their safety.

Evacuation drill

We invited officers of the Fire Services Department of Hong Kong to Tai Po Production Base, where they conducted
evacuation drill and fire safety talk. Through promotional videos, employees learnt how to keep calm in case of fire and
the proper use of fire protection equipment such as fire extinguishers, fire blankets and the way to break glasses of fire
alarm call point. Our staff participated in the evacuation drill on the training day as well.
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Seeing employees’ physical and mental wellbeing as its
priorities, the Group not only offers basic medical and

accident insurance to all qualified staff, but also \ /\\\
encourages them to maintain work-life balance and stay \\//
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healthy by meeting their career, family and social needs.

N

g i 1 S R B \

FEEFFRIETWEOEE  BRTRHEFNEENEIMR
BAEFFEFEHRMENET  ORBETEIF  XEEURE
EEREFTHNTFRGIRE  NEEEEFE  RERFBEMR -

ON%

o0 5 &

~
I

A E ol s> E ot R E ek



panwi Auedwo) suioipsy asauly) Bue] usy Buoj Bullleg

/10g Hoday [enuuy

ESG Report

CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

Training on
quality control
mE T

Directors and Senior
Management Training

EERSREBEASED

Development and Training

The Group places great importance to employees’ career development and planning. Believing in “business growth
driven by talent”, we offer a broad range of training program targeting different job positions, which enhance specific job
knowledge and skills. For our directors and senior management, we provide tailor-made professional training for them to
sharpen management and planning skills. Based on employees’ opinions, we regularly update the training program and
set suitable development approach for them to pursue continuous improvement. These initiatives intensify their sense of
belonging and mission, which contributes to a harmonious working atmosphere.

We aim to strengthen employees’ commitment to the Company, including the culture, value and belief of Tong Ren
Tang. Our staff receives training on various topics from time to time, where they experience and practice the essence of
our corporate culture. These initiatives target to establish a code of conduct by promoting the corporate spirit of
“Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness”, the “Two Must not-dos” and the unique Tong Ren
Tang culture among staff.

PR S5l
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Understanding Tong Ren Tang’s
culture through store visits
SEBRBELCEXL

Tong Ren Tang’s culture training
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In order to raise awareness towards contract risk management, we organised legal training on contract management for
department managers. Adopting the case study approach, the course took into consideration our actual conditions and
analysed the legal risks and elements of litigation, as well as common issues in the execution and performance of
contract, thereby enhancing contract risk identification and resolution.

Management and administrative staff
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CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

Production staff

Specific production staff plays a crucial role in quality assurance. To make sure they have sufficient knowledge about
factory safety, on-site management and cleaning, we organised regular trainings on safety production, environmental
hygiene, and also quality assurance, and special trainings for 4 designated positions for new recruits, including training
on safety management, traffic safety management, fire safety management and security management. Our staff will fully
understand the use of firefighting equipment and safety matters that require their attention after completing the training
on fire safety knowledge, which covers introduction to fire escape stairs and emergency exits within plants, existing
firefighting equipment and steps in using such equipment. By showing real photos of post-cleaning sites to employees,
the training on on-site management and cleaning educates them on the cleaning requirements of GMP, including daily
cleaning and batch cleaning.

*EAR

PREFLESTIRAREREERENER B - REAMMEEELZ2 BEEERBENAR  AREHAMYETINR
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Training for frontline salespersons and new recruits

To enhance salespersons’ service level and efficiency of
frontline staff and new recruits, we offer product knowledge
training to deepen their understanding of our products.

MREERMARE TiEH
RTRANGEEAERFTABE THEBKEMNTHERE
EMARETAAERAMZI - EmEREMAEERDROR

Health training for all employees

We see employees as one of our most valuable assets. The
Group organized the “Prevention is Better than Cure-
Practical knowledge of prevention and cure of cancer”
seminar for all staff, so that they can recognise the health
needs of themselves and their families in time, and address
such issues promptly.

EERT@EE
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Average training hours of employees
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Total training hours of employees:

2B TR :

Total number
of trainees:

HBIEHIAR

Male employees
EMET

1,010 5

Female employees

ZHET

2,443

hours
N

people
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Directors and Senior Management

EXREREERE

196 5

Managerial grade
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hours
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General staff
BEFXBET

2,851 e

people
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people
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1 19 people
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CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

BRuE, L& R GE

W RPBBE

The Group strictly complies with the self-discipline to
conserve the environment. We recognise that social
development and the natural environment are
interdependent. Environmental pollution and
overexploitation will damage the ecosystem and ultimately
affect our health and wellbeing. This contradicts the mission
of the Company, which is to heal the sick and serve those in
need. Apart from pursuing excellence in Chinese medicine
research and development, we are committed to protecting
the environment. While our Tai Po Production Base and
offices are in compliance with environmental laws and
regulations, we take a step further to improve our
environmental performance through resources conservation
and emission management.

Energy and emissions

The Group’s daily operation mainly involves office-based
business activities, sales at retail stores and production at
factories. As electricity comprises the majority of our energy
consumption, the resulting indirect emission becomes the
primary source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emission.
Therefore, the Group reduces carbon emission by energy
saving. In the course of operation, we aim to achieve
efficient use of resources, so that the Group can minimize
the impact on the environment by adjusting the amount of
resources for development.

Water Resource Management

As we fully understand that water is a scarce natural
resources, we are prudent in the use of water resources.
Our employees are required to use water in a reasonable
manner and closely monitor water consumption in
production plants and offices. We are also conducting
feasibility study on recycling of reclaimed water to make full
use of water resources. Besides eliminating wastage, we
attach great importance to drinking water safety by
performing regular tests.
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Energy and emissions
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Production Base
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Air conditioning system
ZHARB

We set the air conditioning to 25.5°C, install
timer, and also shift between day and night
modes to suit different production needs. This
not only helps maintain the room temperature at
a comfortable level, but also prevents energy
wastage when the temperature is set too low.

EEBEANZBRRMEISEER25.5°C » ERIKE

2. IEBENEEDERABARRERN - L4
FHENEER B RERRBEMERRE

Lighting system at plants
BERBRSK

We have adopted energy-saving lamps with
higher energy efficiency. Moreover, we adjust
lightings based on sunlight conditions and
maximize the use of natural light by installing
timers along the corridor, in the surroundings and
in the concourse of the plants, which are set at
day or night modes. Lightings in other functional
rooms or production zone are only turned on
when in use.

BERNRREXRESHEHERESR - 55 RIIEE
ARARSEEE  BERAARX  EHENE
BB AR AERVEHE YU ABRREER
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Lighting system at offices
WAZRARSR

We encourage staff to use electronic appliance
only when needed and turn on lights for
necessary lamination level. We also ask them to
turn off power after working hours or during long
holidays to save energy. Lightings in other
functional rooms or storage rooms are only
turned on when in use.

EMNSBMETEEEFTENERTHRER &
BERRR 2 ARBAEN T - FEME T RREBE,PA
NS BB ERUR AT AR o MEMI st
FEERAENENEEANEARK S FRESA -

Retail outlets

Advertising signs
SEER
Taking into account the actual needs, we install

timers for advertising signs so that they are only
turned on for a designated period at night.

ZEBSRETER  REMEHRIFHEE  RE
BEEERERRE -

Water Resource Management
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CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT W BRBE
The waste generated in the daily operation of the Group mainly includes unwanted packaging materials, domestic AEEBARETEELENBEEYERERINKNEREME . —REEFUR  PECEGREERYE - AEEEEEERYRHETIRE
wastes, small amount of chemicals and medical wastes. In terms of waste treatment, the Group strives to reduce waste BERL  BERLVEFREEMERNEEY  REMEREE  IRESYNHERAEENEEIR - BEMHRELERS
at source, minimize the burden on landfills due to waste generated in business operation, and take appropriate BFEBEYFELLERPELE  TEENPELDERBATRLEBRERZY - RMALHBITOEEEENH LARFRNE
treatment according to the nature of wastes. Packaging materials, chemicals and other hazardous wastes are primarily EEE ALBRERBNEHEAE  SF(BRENERITR) ZEEBFHAEEY -

generated in the manufacturing process, while small amount of medical waste is generated from the Chinese clinical
services at retail stores. We pay particular attention to the potential impact of any hazardous waste to the public. Thus,
we maintain strict compliance with relevant government regulations, including the “Codes of Practice for the
Management of Clinical Waste” in proper disposal of waste.

Waste generated from

the production process Chemicals and other
and packaging wastes hazardous waste General waste Medical waste
CENRRBRMEY tERREMEEREY —RAETEIIR BREY
In order to promote recycling and Improper disposal of hazardous Inflammables are stored in designated Kitchen waste is transported from factory canteens to The medical waste generated by the Group belongs
proper handling of all types of waste can be detrimental to the space with good ventilation, smoke designated bins by the person-in-charge, and sent out of to Group 1 — Used or Contaminated Sharps and
wastes, we forbid inappropriate safety of staff and the public, hence exhaust and fire safety systems in the factory in a timely manner to keep the environment mainly includes acupuncture needles used in Chinese
disposal. Employees are required the Group takes the issue seriously. compliance with the safety standards. clean. medical consultation. We have made application to
to separate wastes based on the We assign the laborator X N . N N | = = N N w the Environmental Protection Department. Our staff is
condﬁions like whether they can be manage?‘nent to handle tyhe BRI HNEENSBER ) £ BERZEHHIEEASRTERER/TRE - LREH required to recap used needles apnd put all medical
. . ZERERERFNHE - IRREZ 2 IMERX - REFRBEHE - . . .

recycled or contain harmful hazardous waste, while properly N A o g waste in properly placed disposal bin. We also

) . KM FEEEREEE - . ; .
substances. They will also contact monitor and record all procedures engage licensed medical waste collector for recycling.
the cleaning department and from storage, collection, ) L . . - s
recyclers fc?r suzsequent treatment transportagon to disposal To avoid causing impact on the surroundings, the Group AEBEENEREYBE —A5 [REARZ TN

' ' We have engaged qualified recyclers engages external qualified firms to regularly collect sewage 8] TEIEKLERBEDERSRFAANS - RMEM@
BRESOWE  WEEREREE TEEEREEEEYRREEIR for hazardous wastes for disposal and and waste oil being discharged from the kitchen to the RREBEERGE  TERETIEFRGINGHE  FAF
HNEEY BERLEEEEMN AREE - AEEREEFEHR designated discharge. grease traps. ETRNEBREBUEMBESRER  LEAFEN
TH BIFERTERRW - 2A B HEREEEASEEEEE . . . = ; . p . BREYREREE -
EEEEE A R EY. pEEEEpmsann. ARCEASARDKENRESER FEERRNRAERBETHIBERERFEERER
s ) inkv N £y BTERHER - HOBRIS AR MR EEBIERE

BERSMR BB ETRER WEERUZEE R IR ©
BIfF-

£
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ESG Report

CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

BRuE, e R R

Other Resources Management

The Group consumes energy and water resources, as well as other materials in the course of operation. Adhering to the
principle of “utilisation”, we minimize wastage of paper and batteries, and carry out waste sorting as much as possible,

so that we make best use of resources.

FL Al 5 AL

HRERMKERUN  FEELEFFTEEEAHEMYE - RM—BRIFITVREAINFA - HRER  SHEEREETRE -

YEAMREETOREY  BREERBERKUA -

Other resources
HaE R

Environmental Performance Data

BB RBIBRE

The Group requires staff to print double sided, which reduces paper consumption
by half as compared to printing on single sided.

AEBERETEHALEDR - LLERDRIRD —F BEE -

Employees are encouraged to use e-version in replacement of printed version, and
take advantage of email for internal communication instead of paper documents
unless necessary.

FEESBETUBFRARBNRIM - NIESLBEUEBAFAREBHBAAR
HEREREE o

The Group selects more environmental-friendly materials and purchases recycled
paper for daily use. In addition, we print our annual reports on eco-friendly paper.

FEEEATRRNVYE  REBEREAREEA - TURRENRFH -

The Group collects used ink tanks at offices, which will be centralised and
delivered to suppliers.

AEERLAEEBRECATHEKE  FEERE FHER -

The Group practices separation and recovery of old batteries to prevent air

pollution caused by e-wastes.

FEESBEOWES  BOETFENSIHNERTHR -

Resources consumption

YA

Note: Energy, fuel and natural gas raw data, is collected and converted to carbon equivalents (CO,¢), and multiplied by publicly available
and/or supplier based greenhouse gas emission factor.

B WENER  ARAXARNRABBERA_F{REE(CO,)  ERAAMITAN RENHEFTHEZRBINATF -

AL



panwi Auedwo) suioipsy asauly) Bue] usy Buoj Bullleg

/10g Hoday [enuuy

WELL TREAT OUR SOCIETY

“Preserving tranquility and wellness” is the mission of Tong Ren Tang. Not only do we offer quality Chinese medical care
and dispensation services, we also undertake to fulfil social responsibility by actively participating in community events
in the hope of creating long-term value for society. Under the motto of “Be Kind to the Society”, the Group extends its
benevolence to all over the world and pushes towards the dream of “Healthy Life Global Choice”. In 2017, we placed
great emphasis on caring for public health, supporting the grassroots and the underprivileged, promoting medical
culture, and promoting medical education. We spent 872 hours in community activities. About 366 persons benefited
from our free medical consultations in Hong Kong during the Year.

i

L RRIRT

B-E-HERFAE[BHEL | NESG  —BAMSRUSRENTBEBRENERERY - — S8 IBRTHEEE  BB2HEHZRA
DNEED  BRAUVSAEREEE AEEUEFHEARE  REZNEMERAZL  BIAERE  2MAS | WEREE
BT 22017 F » RMBHBEERAREE - HEERERE LEBEL - HBBEHF - EI2HHEBEEFIRBNS2/E - &
FREELABNEBIEIO6A -

Our community contributions

ASER I £ 5 R

Hours participated
in community activities
for employees

ETZ2EMBEEDHRE

Approximately #J

Tong Ren Tang aims at improving and enhancing human health and living quality. During the Year, the Group promoted
health preservation in Chinese medicine, healthcare knowledge and health awareness through education seminars,
carnivals and free medical consultation services.

Stroke prevention is our most concerned topic. In April, May and September 2017, the Group organised stroke
prevention open seminars for over 2,024 public members for the Year, which shared health information, raised public
awareness on stroke and introduced measures to prevent and treat stroke with Chinese medicine. In October 2017, the
Group held the “Tong Ren’s Stroke Awareness 2017” Carnival, with the aim of educating the public on stroke
prevention.

In promoting the importance of cerebrovascular healthcare, we joined the “Health Expo” organised by the Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre at Wanchai for the first time. We organized briefing sessions, game booths and
workshops under the theme of “Cerebrovascular Healthcare — Steps to Prevention, Emergency and Nursing”.
Meanwhile, we invited experienced registered Chinese medicine practitioner to provide disease information, on-site
body checks and health consultation.

BCEURENRSARRBEKENEGEERED - XFR - FAEEEBENRERERBE RFERLBRDEEHEET

AT RIDEMEABEINEE - AEBMIBN2017F48 -5 ARIAEWPEHTRALARBREARERE  2FHHBB2,024E1
BATRHREENR  BALRETANEE - BB PBENTEYHATREME 20175108 - ZEEEB [R-BEHTE
2017 | EmFERAREER AT ANME -

RAXBEBEROERENZEN  RMEASNTREBEFERRETOERN(RERE) - WA [BEMME — R - &
S RES-SIRIHE BRTEREENEE - BEERIEDED - BN RMERPETEREMTIEASTRERARE
o BSMERBREZN -

Promoting information on cerebrovascular healthcare,
stroke care, prevention and treatment at Health Expo
E(REBE) O AREFERMERE - BXPRREFE
JAHE

“Tong Ren’s Stroke Awareness 2017” Carnival was fully
housed with health-conscious attendees

[EM-EAER FE 2017 ZEFERS| T AMBERENB RS M

~
I
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Giving back to society by providing free medical consultation
services to Hong Kong citizens for seven consecutive days

AEBTREM-ELX2EEY  DELE

To promote health concepts, we held chinese medicine health seminars and free medical consultation activities for
employees at renowned enterprises and organizations.

With the aim of contributing to society, the Group organised seminars and offered free Chinese medical consultation to
promote health knowledge and treatment approach in Hong Kong and overseas. During the Year, we arranged a mobile
truck which travelled around Hong Kong and offered free medical consultation. In July 2017, we provided free medical
consultation at all outlets in Hong Kong for seven consecutive days.

AERRREASS  EMEEZANACERAS  ENTEELRERBEREDED  AETRURE -

AEBHE  AEEREERBNSHUIEDLZHBERREHREDRE  EREENH RTARETFZE - AF  AMBRRBE
FREASEATREREY  RMAEN2017F7TA—ELtAREBETE2ERDED -

et HHMIT

B R
TTL
T
il

e BN

TCTCM mobile truck offering free medical consultation
services at Aberdeen, Wanchai, Hang Hau and Shatin

FI-ZEZERBEDBEEBF - BF RORDPEARTR
RMUFDRY

Our employees supported the “2016/2017 Hong
Kong Island & Kowloon Walk (Hong Kong)” and

“:.l' : : ': “Christmas Greetings for the Chest 2017”
-4 activities
N AEES TS 20162017 FEES - NEBEET
Sncat s - ARTTRS . (F8) | SEBREDR [RAFERLH2017) 58

3L D
K e .

aimpERE IR

Supporting the Grassroots and the Poor

“Benevolence” is deeply rooted in Tong Ren Tang’s culture. Thus, we actively participate in charity, provide assistance
to people in distress and perform acts of kindness. During the Year, the Group did good deeds by taking part in poverty
alleviation campaigns organised by various groups and organizations.

Our people stay committed to charity for many years. This year, we joined the “2016/2017 Hong Kong Island & Kowloon
Walk” and “Christmas Greetings for the Chest 2017” activities organised by the Community Chest. Funds raised will be
used to help families in need maintain and strengthen family bonding and establish mutual support. Fund raised will also
be applied to support social welfare agencies in providing “Services for the Mentally Il and Ex-mentally IlI”, which will
help the needy overcome obstacles and integrate into the community, and share our greetings and well-wishes to them.

PR R L e

BECEUM-IBE  BRBREESEH  HEAR  FHEL - Fr AREZHTHTERBERASERNKETY  THE
o

AEBETETEEZFERNITHBELTEY - AF  AMSMTHEBRIBZSERN2016/2017FEEBE - MEEBEBT]
STERERBR [ERFTERAHE2017ED - FB2EREINAREDETENRE  SRRERERRYEEZERNNER
BE SERBERERER  UREHRMBOFIERREERYE ] WESEFRE  EDBENREERBEEERYAR &
RAERER - BERES - BOMFREREE -

Furthermore, the Group supported the Flag Day
organised by the South Kwai Chung Service Centre of
Hong Kong. The donation will be used to establish
community support network that is dedicated to serve
the grassroots from different backgrounds and to build
a harmonious community.

Our employees supporting the Flag Day and helping
people from different backgrounds

AEBETIZ2HEGENEESNED  EPTRAERHA

We encourage the employment and self-sustaining of
underprivileged people by participating in the job fair
organised by the Hong Kong College of Technology,

where we offered job opportunities to the grassroots.

B AEBTFRHEEESNHEERERLEREE
HERNHEEED -  SENSHEARASHERAR
BOABBTIRESNEBTR S —EREMENHE -

ATHBEETREX  EBEMALIEEL FAEE2H
THEBEXESCERERNEBES  ARET -RIH
BERETEEDR -

L
&
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Introducing Chinese
medicine culture to
the world during the
“1st International
Chinese Medicine
Cultural Festival”

FE—EERPEEYX
LB | At R B bR
e (L

We endeavour to promote TCM culture. It is our hope to preach the wisdom of Chinese medicine so that more people
will be benefited. During the Year, the Group held a series of events, such as culture festival and visits to our Tai Po
Production Base to showcase the profoundness of our traditional medicine.

From May to October 2017, the Group and International Chinese Medicine Cultural Festival Limited joined hands to
organise the “1st International Chinese Medicine Cultural Festival”. Designed to export Chinese medicine culture, the
festival was held in Toronto, Canada; Los Angeles, USA; and Sydney, Australia, and comprised a series of activities
including art exhibitions, cultural experience museum, seminars and talks, mobile Chinese medicine cabinet and
healthcare concerts, which adopted different forms, perspectives and senses to highlight the beauty of Chinese
medicine.

EMBERLBTEBE L FELEFHPEEERIEZERLT  BEAR - FR - AEEEBEPLE - FARAE
SEEHTFARBEESRFEARARRRPBEBABRZE

20175 AE10 AR AEEEEBRTFBEHERITDER T E—EBEBRTEEE ] FBEMEN  BENEX
SR ZEEUHE  BNTREN  BRRPEREUIIMBEREEPEEL - G EERMNEME - LBRE - HBE
R -RBEFERBESHE  USAER BENRBRREPEELED -

Through demonstrating the traditional
techniques of handmade pill preparation

and the weighing process, as well as the
Baduanjin exercise, we showcased

the wonder of Chinese medicine
EMEERFIEANBE . \RBrERERS
EBESMERZPEE NS EHBD

To support the “Capital State-owned Enterprises Open Day”, Tong Ren Tang opened its facilities to the public of Beijing
and Hong Kong, for the purpose of promoting the TCM culture. Over 100 citizens visited our Tai Po Production Base
and the flagship store in Central, where they learnt more about the equipment and advanced technology during visits to
the laboratories, manufacturing workshops, warehouses and other core production areas.

AEREHHACHKE ] BCEXEBEREMLBHBATREN  —BEETEERTEEL - AEERKT ABLEER
wEPREEE  BERTREEETR  BMM2EERE  HERD AERAMEERVEY  RABRBAEEEEEBIIRE
FNSAE ;G o

~
I
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Stepping Up Medical Education

The Group is endeavored to promote Chinese medicine education and development. During the Year, the Group
encouraged academic discussions by making donations to Chinese medicine schools, sponsoring medical conferences
and special lectures.

The Group supported the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University in various aspects. We have
sponsored scholarships to its outstanding students as a motivation to explore the field, so that they will give back to
society and help patients with their medical skills. In addition, we sent a wide range of corporate souvenirs and healthy
drinks to the “Love & Painless” Pain Relief Program, which was an orthopedics and massage therapy program that
allowed Chinese medicine students practiced what they had to have learnt and contributed to society. During the
program, students conducted medical checks and specialty checks on the elderly, and performed diagnosis based on
the radiological images brought by the patients under the supervision of Chinese medicine practitioners. Students also
developed treatment approach, practiced acupuncture and osteopathy, and formulated daily healthcare regime, with the
aims of accelerating joint recovery of patients and helping them stay healthy. Furthermore, we supported the Chinese
medicine seminar organised by Hong Kong Baptist University, which explained important matters in the use of
proprietary Chinese medicines and treatment of joint pain to Chinese medicine practitioners and consumers.

The Group also encourages lifelong learning of healthcare professionals. It organised various public health education
seminars which were attended by as many as 2,024 participants for the Year. Moreover, we particularly sponsored the
“Frontiers of Integrative Medicine — Clinical Challenges and Future Directions” Conference held by Hong Kong
Association for Integration of Chinese-Western Medicine, which focused on the difficulties and solutions in integrating
Chinese and Western medicine. We also supported the “Chinese and Western Perspective in the Homology of Food and
Medicine — Prevention of Stroke” healthcare seminar organized by the Association of Hong Kong Nursing Staff, where
Hong Kong registered Chinese medicine practitioners and registered nutritionists explained the healthcare concept of
medicinal diet.

HEBhPE A AT
AEMBHRDFEENE  XEBERE - T AEMEBEYTERER  RHEREARSERERDBMHG o

FEERZFEAXBEEIERETBEEN - AEAERESNEAIBEBREARETEEERNESTELE  HBS2LER
REPEEZ . BERUBENSBMEELS  HBFA - Z—FH RMNBHT -RICXERRSAELERRABEEZRE
HEE - BRI BEFEFE UHAEEEDFEATEREZEL  2UHA  EREFBEMLE - RFBRED - BT
AHEEL ARFETHBETEDERE  ENRERLAREFATETZHEGERS  FHPE  UBRERELESR
RA#Z EBEFERRELE BRAREHETAEAERRBAR  RESHSHRRERRSRE - LI EMA2IZFE
ERBENTBESEBE  ATEMREBEEERTRECRALNEERERNMAERESBEHHE

FEBEXRBESEZE RN ELARERLEEE  2FSEBEABSE2,024 A o I HMERHEH THIE
BHABESEBE2T | ERNC(EABENY — MANRBERA) ERRETEEIHEERN [ERERT AR — EEHE
BAREBE MEHHARTIESRFEERMEBINRENSHAURNTE  REMTEEMTEAREMEEMBRER

During the Year, the Group also hosted receptions at Tai Po Production Base for students of School of Pharmaceutical
Sciences and School of Medicine, Sun Yat-Sen University (Shenzhen), School of Health Care Administration, Taipei
Medical University and Salesian English School, who participated in visits, learning and interactive activities. Apart from
being the production and research and development base of Tong Ren Tang, Tai Po Production Base also has a small
exhibition gallery. Introduction by curators and site visits helped students understand more about the Chinese medicine
production process of the Group, as well as the development of Chinese medicine and Tong Ren Tang culture.

FRAKETEFTHULRBEBRE
BER(RI) ALBEREBERMRE
NRXBRWBEEHEERMETS
BEZRHEEE - AFEEEMKRTRRC
EMEEWHEMIS ERBFOEEY
- BBEBASNERRARS2EH 2
EMEEBERAEETEERNRFBRE
ROBEERCEEECHBRIIR
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ESG Report

ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

BREE, L&

(BRBL, #h@r AT ARG ) WA RS

Indicator

B

A. Environment
A EE

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1: BB
General Disclosure
—MRIRE

KPI A1.1
BAREREZRAIA

KPI A1.2
BRERIERAL2

KPI A1.3
BRERIEREALS

KPI A1.4
BRREMIEEAIL

KPI'A1.5
BREAMERALS

KPI A1.6
BRAMIERALE

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

HEmESRR AR REE

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and
intensity.

BERBAFHERRE

Total hazardous waste produced and
intensity.

FELEERRYREREE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and
intensity.

FEEEERRVEEREE
Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

R E BB N B R IERE
Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HHEBEEERBEZTBERYNG E - BIE
ELENERKRAERR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : EREA
General Disclosure
—RIKE
KPI A2.1
BRENIEZRA21

KPI A2.2
BRBEMISEEA2.2
KPI A2.3

BEENIEIZA2.3

KPI A2.4
BREMISEEZEA24

KPI A2.5
BREMIERA2.5

Data from regions in Asia, Europe, America, Oceania and Africa are included. Data in some regions are currently partially available

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type in total and intensity.
REMNESNEER SEEEREESE
REE

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BIEKBREBE

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.
MR E AT BRI R
Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

Bl RBGEAKRLEIEEMEE AR
RARAKM @R ERFAEHR

Total packaging material used for finished
products with reference to per unit
produced.
HEmATAEEMHNEERSEEEN
hE

Reference section or note

SETHNER

Caring for our environment
EHFRE

The business of the Group did not
cause any significant emission of
air pollutants.
AEENEBLRBERNERT
Bk

*Environmental performance data

RERRYUBR

Energy and emissions

BEIR R BERL

Energy and emissions

REJR N BEBK

Energy and emissions

BEJR N BEBK

Waste management
BERYEE

Caring for our environment
ESEE

* Environmental performance data

BRERBBER

* Environmental performance data

RERBEER

Energy and emissions

BER R BEBR

Water resources management

KERER

Environmental performance data

REXRRYER

for reporting. We seek to continuously improve our data collection process in the future.

2aEEIM - BUM -

Page
B

64-69

69

64

64

64

66-67

64-69

69

69

64

65

69

EM - RFMNRIENSHNEE - HPBOEBBEMATE  RARAREFETEFRLENHBRE -

Indicator

bi]:

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHA3 : RERXARER

General Disclosure
—RiEE

KPI A3.1
RIS R A3

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

Rt EEEBHRERAARERNERY
ERERNEEEREENTE -

Reference section or note Page

SEEHRERE HE

The business operation of the -
Group did not have any significant
impact on the surrounding

ecological environment
FEBNEBLERHRELR
RIBENBEAME

The business operation of the -
Group did not have any significant
impacts on the surrounding

ecological environment
REBNEBEERFHERELR
RIBERBERTE

B. Social
B. #&

Employment and Labour Practices
EREREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
EmEB1 : &
General Disclosure Caring for our employees 52-63
—RIRE EFBET
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment Human capital 56-57
BRENIEZEBA type, age group and geographical region. | AZ &7

‘iR - EREEE  FRANRBESR D

MNESRH
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Human capital 56-57
BRENIEEB.2 group and geographical region. AT EAR

ZER - FRANRTEESSNESRE

=
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EHB2: @RHEZE
General Disclosure Health and safety 58-59
—RIRE BRERZZ
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and safety 59
BRENIEEB2.1 fatalities. BERZE

AIFEFEMETHWABREE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety 59
BREMIEEB2.2 AIGEATHBEH RERZE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and safety 58-59
BRENIEZEB2.3 safety measures adopted, how they are BERZZ

implemented and monitored.

R TR R EEZ 2 - UK

HERITRERSE
Aspect B3: Development and Training
B B3 : #EREI
General Disclosure Development and training 60-63
—RIRE R R iED

A E ol s> @ ot E bk T 3 o
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ESG Report

ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

BREE, L& ARG

(BiBE, #h@r LAt ARy WA R

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[BHEB4 : & T8I

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Anti-corruption 45
—RIKE BREA
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption 45
RARENIEZEBTA regarding corrupt practices brought BESA

against the issuer or its employees during

the reporting period and the outcomes of

the cases.

RERFRHBRTARHESREIEE

FENESHRARGNEE RFRER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption 45
BEEMIEZEB7.2 | whistle-blowing procedures, how they are | {EE&EA

implemented and monitored.

B s R BHREN - URBET

RERRGE
Community
#HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : H&EIRE
General Disclosure Caring for our society 70-77
—RIRE EGHE
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Caring for our society 70-77
BEREMIEEBS.A X ERtEE EFTE
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Caring for our society 70-77
BRENIEEBS.2 EEISEMBAER EGHE

implemented and monitored.
HIHEE ERHRE RFABBER - LURE
BHIRERLE

General Disclosure Human capital 53-55
—RIKE AT ER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Human capital 53
BAREMIEEB41 employment practices to avoid childand | AZF &R

forced labour.

RS REEAIN BB RE T KA

HET
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Human capital 53
BREMIEEB4.2 such practices when discovered. ATER

H7E B IRB RIS N EEBRE BB R TR

0B
Operating Practices
& EEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEBS : HEEEE
General Disclosure Supply chain management 46-47
—RIRE HEEEER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply chain management 46-47
BB NIEZEB5.1 region. HEERER

Rt EE 5 NEESEE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to Supply chain management 46-47
BARREMIEEBS.2 engaging suppliers, number of suppliers ftrEsgEm

where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented

and monitored

W EREEAEERNES  aHITE

BEMNHERHE - URBEBIEANE

TRERRGE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6: EmER
General Disclosure Quality products 46-51
—RIKE BEER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Responsible sales 50-51
BRREMIEIEB6.1 shipped subject to recalls for safety and RUREEEHE

health reasons.

EERCEEXERBETRAZ2HERE

mmARKNES
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Responsible sales 50-51
BRENIEEBG.2 complaints received and how they are RUORBEEHE

dealt with.

BEEBARERRRBNRFHE UREY

&
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product research and development | 50-51
BARENIEIEB6.3 observing and protecting intellectual EmMREkER

property rights.

it ER A 5 I AR PR KN R E AR B B V1B 5
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process Product quality and safety, 48-51
BRENIEEB6.4 and recall procedures. responsible sales

HliEERERERERBKER EmmBRZ2 RUOREEHR

HE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Responsible sales 50-51
BRENIEIEB6.5 and privacy policies, how they are RUORBEAHE

A E ol s> @ ot E bk T 3 o
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Investor Relations Report

Multi-channel Investor Communication Strategy

We believe that expanding our diversified channels of effective communication will help us to streamline our
communication with individuals, institutional shareholders and public investors (collectively named as “Investors”),
facilitate, open and transparent exchange of information. Investors’ understanding and understanding of the
Company’s corporate mission and vision, development strategy, industry competition and operational and financial
performance will enable investors to make investment decisions in informed circumstances. The Company is
responsible for fair, accurate and timely disclosure of company information to ensure a high degree of transparency,
enhance the Group’s attention, stabilize our relationship with investors, and strengthen the mutual trust of each other.

In 2017, the Group continued to maintain a positive and effective communication with investors who are concerned
about the business development of the Company in a positive and responsive manner. The Group is committed to
providing investors with convenient communication channels and endeavored to ensure that all published data are true
and accurate and clearly and balanced. The Group also collects feedback from investors and analysts and reflects the
views to the management and the board of directors. Maintain healthy and two-way communication to ensure that
investors can fully understand the Group’s long-term development, strategy, industry competition and financial and
operational performance.

Investor Relations Activities

The Group strictly follows the principle of fair disclosure to ensure fair communication with investors and the media and
does not selectively disclose significant non-public information to any person. We are very supportive of investor
relations activities. To facilitate the two-way communication with investors, the Group has adopted different local and
overseas non-transaction road shows, investor meetings, annual general meetings, corporate meetings, conference
calls and e-mail consultation. Pipeline, with shareholders, analysts and potential investors for close and frequent
exchanges.

During the Year, our management participated in a number of investment summit organized by the world’s leading
investment banks in Hong Kong, Beijing and Singapore and also organized one-on-one and group investor meetings,
teleconferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong Kong, Shenzhen and Shanghai, attending almost 100 one-on-one
and group meetings and meeting with over 250 investors.

The Group has made use of a number of channels to interact with investors and keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments.

We hold a non-deal roadshow at least twice a year after the announcement of the results announcement so that
investors can obtain first-hand information on the latest release to the management. The Group also actively
participates in several investment conferences organized by investment banks of which the management of the Group
directly talks with investors to share the results, business strategies and etc.

Major investor conferences that we participated in 2017 are set out below:

Month B {3 Event 1§

January — A Morgan Stanley Healthcare/Utilities, Energy & Chemical Corporate Day
ERTHANBERRE 2B SHRCBHEZLER

June ~ A Morgan Stanley Third Annual China Summit ER+ B RE=EFETHES

November +—A8  Jefferies 7th Annual Greater China Summit ERFEtEFEATFERKES
November +—H8  Morgan Stanley 16th Annual Asia Pacific Summit ERt A E+ NEEARBIES

The Group actively arranged various investor relation activities, including telephone conferences with analysts and
investor meetings and etc., in order to keep investors abreast of the Group’s latest updates and business operations.
Such activities not only maintain close contact with investors so that investors can get more in-depth and meticulous
understanding of the Company’s situation and we can also collect valuable advice from investor’s on the Group’s
business strategy.
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Investor Relations Report

Our investor relation representative provides detailed and accurate information in a timely manner in response to
various forms of enquiries from Shareholders, investors, analysts and the media via email, fax or telephone.

Factory visit are one of the best ways for our investors to understand our business operations. Upon receiving requests
of investors from time to time or at the annual general meeting, the Group will arrange the relevant itinerary and
reception as soon as possible, facilitating investors taking full advantage of this opportunity to understand the Group’s
products, historical development, shop display and sales management and other first-hand information.

We held non-deal roadshows at least semi-annually following the release of our results announcements to answer
questions regarding the performance and business development of the Group. The Company website contains an
investor relations section to reach out to the investment community and public with the latest information on the
Company. We also promote proactive communication through direct contact with our investor relations team via email
at ir@tongrentangcm.com.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM is a platform for face-to-face communication with Shareholders. Our Board members, senior management,
lawyer and external auditor will attend and answer questions on the performance of the Group raised by the
Shareholders.

The 2017 AGM was held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on 8 May 2017, for
approval of, among others, the re-election of retiring Directors and the general mandates to issue and purchase shares.
Particulars of the major items considered at the 2017 AGM are set out in the circular dated 31 March 2017. All

proposed resolutions were passed by way of poll voting at the 2017 AGM.

The 2018 AGM will be held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on Monday, 7
May 2018 at 10:30 a.m..

Share Performance J% & 2 81

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Closing price as at 31 December (HK$ per share) 10.62 10.48 9.88 10.78 10.18
R12A31BHWKHE (BRBRT)

Highest price during the year (HK$ per share) 12.00 12.20 14.82 12.50 14.90
FERSE(ERERT)

Lowest price during the year (HK$ per share) 9.98 7.55 7.71 9.09 4.70
FEREE(ERERT)

Average daily trading volume (thousand share) 469 424 883 1,120 4,200
BRPHERE(TR)

Dividend History % &=\ & Fl

Dividend Dividend Payout
per share yield™ ratio

Year F£E

BRERE BREFR0 JKEHZE
HK$ % T

2013 0.08 0.8% 30.2%
2014 0.10 0.9% 29.2%
2015 0.13 1.3% 30.7%
2016 0.16 1.5% 31.9%
2017 0.19 1.8% 32.5%

™ Dividend yield is calculated based on the closing share price of the Company as at 31 December of the respective years.
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Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mei Qun, aged 61, is the chairman of the Company and is a deputy chief pharmacist with a postgraduate
qualification. Mr. Mei was formerly the general manager of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the chairman of Tong Ren Tang
Ltd., the chairman of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and the chairman of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.. Mr. Mei is currently the chairman of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the chairman of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Health
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., the chairman of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine (Hong Kong) Group Company
Limited, the chairman of Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Co., Ltd.. Mr. Mei is the vice president of Chinese
Society of Traditional Chinese Medicine and the president of Beijing Pharmaceutical Profession Association. Mr. Mei
was also the member of the Education Technology Culture Health and Sports Committee of Beijing’s 14th National
People’s Congress.

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling, aged 54, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company and is mainly
responsible for our day-to-day operation and management. Ms. Ding has been appointed as a managing director of
the Company since September 2004. Ms. Ding joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 1984 and was formerly the
head of the foreign trade division of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, manager of the import and export branches and the
executive director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and the director of Beijing Tong
Ren Tang International Co., Ltd., and also is currently the director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren
Tang Holdings. Ms. Ding graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China in August 1997 with a bachelor’s degree in major of economic management, and she further completed a
course for research student under employment in international business administration at Business School of the
University of International Business and Economics in April 2002.

Zhang Huan Ping, aged 57, is an executive Director and a deputy general manager of the Company and is mainly
responsible for production. Mr. Zhang joined the Company as a deputy general manager in May 2008 and was
appointed as a Director on 1 February 2011. Mr. Zhang joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in May 1979 and
formerly served as the deputy manager of Tong Zhou Medicine Factory and Medicine Wine Factory of Tong Ren
Tang Ltd., and an executive director of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Mr. Zhang graduated in major of economic
management from the Correspondence Institute of Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China in December 2000. He is a pharmacist-in-charge conferred by Beijing Intermediate Professional Technical
Titles Evaluation Committee in November 2002.

Lin Man, aged 42, is an executive Director, the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the Company
and is mainly responsible for finance management. Ms. Lin joined the Company in 2004 and was appointed as the
company secretary in 2005 and the chief financial officer in 2008. Ms. Lin was appointed as a Director on 1 February
2011. Ms. Lin is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lin obtained a bachelor’s
degree in arts in Polish from Beijing Foreign Studies University in July 1999 and a bachelor’s degree in accounting
and finance from the University of Lancaster in July 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, G.B.M., G.B.S., J.P., aged 70, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 12 September 2017. Mr. Tsang is Honorary Professor of the Faculty of Social Science of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Convenor of Hong Kong Vision Research Programme. Mr. Tsang held
a number of posts in public service, including the President of the Fourth and the Fifth Legislative Council of the
HKSAR from 2008 to 2016. Prior to his election as President of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR, Mr. Tsang
served as a member of the Legislative Council elected from the Kowloon West constituency from 1998 to 2008 and
a member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR from 2002 to 2008. From 1992 to 2003, he served as Chairman of
the Democratic Alliance for the Betterment of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang was actively involved in the establishment of
the HKSAR. He served as a member of the Preparatory Committee established by the Standing Committee of the
Chinese National People’s Congress in 1996 and a member of the Provisional Legislative Council of the HKSAR from
1997 to 1998. Mr. Tsang was a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference from 1993 to 2013, a non-executive director of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission from
2001 to 2007, a member of the Executive Committee of the Commission on Strategic Development from 2005 to
2008, a board member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008, a member of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee from 2003 to 2008 and a member of the Disaster Relief
Fund Advisory Committee from 2002 to 2008. Mr. Tsang also served as a member of the Council of The Open
University of Hong Kong from 1996 to 2005 and a member of the Standing Committee on Language Education and
Research from 1996 to 2000. Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree at The University of Hong Kong in 1968,
Certificate in Education in 1981 and Master of Education degree in 1983. Mr. Tsang was appointed as a Justice of
the Peace (J.P.) in 1998 and was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (G.B.S.) in 2002 and the Grand Bauhinia Medal
(G.M.B.) in 2015.

Zhao Zhong Zhen, aged 60, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 15
April 2013. Mr. Zhao is currently a professor and an associate dean of the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong
Baptist University. Mr. Zhao has been an associate professor of Hong Kong Baptist University since April 1999. Mr.
Zhao is currently a member of the Chinese Pharmacopoeia Commission and a member of Chinese Medicine
Development Committee. From 1985 to 1987, Mr. Zhao was a research assistant of China Academy of Chinese
Medical Sciences. From 1987 to 1988 and 1991 to 1992, Mr. Zhao was a visiting scholar of Tokyo University of
Pharmacy and Life Science. Mr. Zhao was a research director of a laboratory for Chinese medicines in Japan during
the period from October 1992 to April 1999. From July 2009 to January 2010, Mr. Zhao was a visiting scholar of
Osher Research Centre of Harvard Medical School. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree,
both in Chinese medicine, from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in March 1982, and from China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences in December 1985, respectively. Mr. Zhao obtained his doctorate degree in pharmacy in
Tokyo University of Pharmacy and Life Science in March 1992.

Chan Ngai Chi, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 15 April
2013. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had more than 20 years of financial management, compliance and
auditing experience. Mr. Chan worked in the audit division of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and various
listed companies in Hong Kong and the U.S.. Mr. Chan worked in Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the financial
controller and company secretary from 2004 to 2007. Mr. Chan worked as the principal financial officer of Gushan
Environmental Energy Company Limited, which was a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange since
December 2007 and privatized in October 2012. Mr. Chan is currently the principal financial officer of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (Stock code: 1636). Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in accounting
in 1994 and also obtained a master’s degree in Science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Hua Ji Hong, aged 43, is a deputy general manager of the Company, and is mainly responsible for the brand
management, marketing, information management as well as sales and business management in traditional markets
of the Company. Ms. Hua joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 2000. Ms. Hua obtained a bachelor’s degree and a
master’s degree, both in Chinese medicine, from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in June 1997 and July 2000,
respectively.

Anyang Ma, J.P., aged 56, is a deputy general manager of the Company, and is mainly responsible for the project
investment. By holding a master’s degree of Herbal Medicine from the University of Sydney and a doctorate degree
in Clinical Discipline of Chinese and Western Integrative Medicine from the Fujian University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine, Mr. Ma is the founder and the managing director of Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Australia) Pty Ltd.. During the
past of more than 30 years in his career, Mr. Ma has accumulated extensive experiences in various TCM sectors
including chinese herbal medicine processing and manufacturing, import and export, wholesale and retail, research
and development, quality assurance, clinics and management. Mr. Ma has been appointed as the committee
member of Australian Mirror Committee (HE031) of the Chinese medicine standardization committee under the
International Standard Organization (ISO/TC249). Mr. Ma is also the current president of Chinese Medicine Industry
Council of Australia (CMIC).

Li Xia, aged 51, is the chief engineer of the Company, and joined the Company in 2008. Ms. Li has been in Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Group since 1990 and is mainly responsible for research and development of Chinese medicines
and healthcare products. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese medicine from Beijing University of
Chinese Medicine in July 1989.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to present the report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine and healthcare
products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The principal activities and other particulars
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
pages 146 to 147 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 19 HK cents (2016: 16 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2017. Such final dividend will be proposed for approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on
Monday, 7 May 2018 and if approved, will be payable on or around Thursday, 31 May 2018 to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 15 May 2018. Details of the dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following periods:

(i) from Monday, 30 April 2018 to Monday, 7 May 2018 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 27 April 2018; and

(ii) from Friday, 11 May 2018 to Tuesday, 15 May 2018 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement the proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at the address as set out in
sub-paragraph (i) above for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 10 May 2018.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no transfers of shares will be registered.

Segment Information

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Bank Borrowing

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank borrowings of HK$0.6 million (2016: HK$0.6 million), details of which
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 152 to 153 of the annual report respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to HK$1,582.9 million
(2016: HK$1,220.4 million).

Donations

Cash charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$0.1
million (2016: HK$1.1 million).

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 6 to 7 of the annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue received/receivable from the top five customers in aggregate
and the single largest customer accounted for approximately 49.4% (2016: 53.6%) and 19.0% (2016: 21.0%) of the
Group’s revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, purchases paid/payable to the top five suppliers in aggregate and the
largest supplier constituted approximately 72.9% (2016: 63.0%) and 42.6% (2016: 37.3%) of the Group’s total
purchases, respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, among the Group’s top five customers include a subsidiary of our
ultimate holding company and a subsidiary of our intermediate holding company. In addition, the Group’s top five
suppliers include our immediate holding company, our intermediate holding company and their associates.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in
any of the top five customers and suppliers.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group values the contributions of employees. The Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes
necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard. Details are set out below under the section “Emolument
Policy” and note 2(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

To maintain its core competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
Chinese medicine products and service to its customers. The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its customers and suppliers to fulfil its long-term goals and carefully select (including and
taking into account their financial position, credit history and other factors) our suppliers to ensure that our
commitment to customers of quality and ethics. Majority of the Group’s trade receivables are due within 90 days
from the date of billings, and it normally grants credit periods ranging from 30 days to 90 days for wholesales to
distributors. Details are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31
December 2017, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its customers and/or
suppliers.
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Directors’ Report

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows:
Mei Qun (Chairman)

Ding Yong Ling (Chief Executive Officer)
Zhang Huan Ping (Deputy General Manager)
Lin Man (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (appointed on 12 September 2017)
Leung, Oi Sie Elsie (resigned on 12 September 2017)

Zhao Zhong Zhen

Chan Ngai Chi

In accordance with Articles 81(B) and 97 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, who was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 12 September 2017, shall
hold office only until the conclusion of AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Accordingly, four
directors, namely, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, Ms. Lin Man, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen shall
retire from office by rotation respectively at the forthcoming AGM and, all being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Ms. Leung, Oi Sie Elsie resigned as the independent non-executive Director due to other business commitment and
personal endeavours with effect on 12 September 2017.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can be found in the Company’s website
(www.tongrentangcm.com) under “Investor Relations”.

Directors’ Service Agreements

The non-executive Director, Mr. Mei Qun entered into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of three

years commencing from 7 May 2017 and all the executive Directors, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, Mr. Zhang Huan Ping and
Ms. Lin Man have entered into service contracts with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
15 April 2016.

Each of Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, being all our independent
non-executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 12 September 2017, 15 April 2016 and 15 April 2016, respectively, unless terminated by either
party giving at least two months’ notice in writing.

None of the Directors has entered or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company which is not

determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of Directors and senior management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 86 to 91 of the
annual report.
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Directors’ Report

Emolument Policy

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee. The remunerations of the Directors are determined with
reference to the economic situation, the market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director
as well as their individual performance. Details of the fee and emolument of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Retirement Schemes

The Group operates various retirement schemes. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 2(t) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the interest and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) of Directors and chief executives of the
Company which would have to be notified to the Company pursuant to Division 7 and Division 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and required to
be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Rule 5.48 to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Exchange, were
as follows:

Types of interests

EEME
The Company X2 7]
Ding Yong Ling T k¥ Personal f& A
Lin Man # £ Personal fE A
Tong Ren Tang Technologies E{- E &l
Mei Qun 58 Personal & A
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. F{-E Kk %
Mei Qun 158 Personal B A
Notes:
(1) These shares represent 0.46% of domestic shares of Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

2) All represent A shares of Tong Ren Tang Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the standards of dealing by Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.48 to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed under the section “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in the shares” above, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2017 was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or their respective associates has any competing interests which need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Interests in Competing Businesses

To ensure that the business classification between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders are properly
documented and established, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company on 18 April 2013, details of which are set out in the
Prospectus, mainly to the effect that at any time until their collective beneficial interest in the equity interest in the
Company is less than 30%, each of them shall not, and shall procure their respective subsidiaries (except through
its interests in the Group) not to, without prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly:

(i) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sales of any products containing ganoderma lucidum
or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials in the Non-PRC Markets;

(ii) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sale of any products with “Tong Ren Tang” brands in
Non-PRC Markets, except for the manufacture of the Chinese medicine products for the two independent
third parties in Japan; for the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the Deed of
Non-competition, except for the current excluded business in Japan, engage in arrangement with any other
parties in the Non-PRC Markets similar to the excluded business in Japan;

(iii)  carry out any sales or registration (new or renewal) for Angong Niuhuang Wan in the Non-PRC Markets;

(iv)  engage in the distribution of any Chinese medicine products in Non-PRC Markets, except for certain existing
arrangements as disclosed in the Prospectus; and

(v)  carry out any new overseas registration of “Tong Ren Tang” branded products ((i) to (v) are collectively known
as “Restricted Business”).

In addition, under the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has also undertaken that if
each of them and/or any of its associates is offered or becomes aware of any project or new business opportunity
(the “New Business Opportunity”) that relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or indirectly, it shall (i)
promptly and in any event not later than seven (7) days notify the Company in writing of such opportunity and
provide such information as is reasonably required by the Company in order to enable the Company to come to an
informed assessment of such opportunity; and (ii) use its best endeavours to procure that such opportunity is offered
to the Company on terms no less favourable than the terms on which such opportunity is offered to it and/or its
associates.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) will review the New Business Opportunity and
decide whether to invest in the New Business Opportunity within thirty (30) business days of receipt of notice from
Controlling Shareholders.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings has also granted the Company rights of first refusal to acquire its interest in Beijing Tong
Ren Tang Hong Kong Medicine Management Limited, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (UK) Limited and Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Tai Fong Co., Ltd. on terms which are not less favorable than the terms it wishes to sell to other parties.

In this connection, the Group adopted the following corporate governance measures to manage any potential
conflicts of interest arising from any future potential competing business and to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company:

(i) the independent non-executive Directors shall review, at least on an annual basis, the compliance with and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders; and

(i) the Company will disclose the review by the independent non-executive Directors with basis on the
compliance with and enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition in its annual report.
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Directors’ Report

In monitoring the competing business of the Parent Group, an executive committee (the “Competition Executive
Committee”) comprising two disinterested Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Huan Ping and Ms. Lin Man, has been
established with the following major responsibilities:

(@)  conduct quarterly inspection of the distribution channels of the Parent Group, including retail stores and
wholesale customers, to check whether any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum
spores as raw materials (other than GLSPC) is sold in Non-PRC Markets; and

(b)  conduct quarterly communications with representatives of the Parent Group to confirm whether their research
and development portfolio has any products which contain ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores
as raw materials.

A supervisory committee (the “Competition Supervisory Committee”), comprising three independent non-executive

Directors, namely, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, has been established,
and Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper has been appointed as the chairman of Competition Supervisory Committee of the
Company with effect from 27 October 2017, with the following major responsibilities:

(@)  meet quarterly and review the quarterly inspection record and daily communication records by the
Competition Executive Committee (if applicable); and

(b)  report findings during its review of the records provided by the Competition Executive Committee to the Board
which will be published in the Company’s annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Competition Executive Committee, they are not aware of the distribution channels of
the Parent Group selling any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials (other than GLSPC) in Non-PRC Markets for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders

At 31 December 2017, the interest of the persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Division 2 and Division 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to

FEBOR

20175128310 EARARDREBROTEAREZSRBERMEXVIE 25 BRES
IWEHEARARARBRIARBLNRAQATIREE ZRAEKRAE 6 HREFETMOERRIA
EARANERNAL (ESIARDTAEBTHAERMNWT ¢

Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Name of shareholder

BRREHE

Tong Ren Tang Technologies [E{= % &l
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. E{=& &5 ™

Tong Ren Tang Holdings E{—Z &£ @A & @
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited ©
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited ©

Jiang Jinzhi 3§85 ©

Unique Element Corp. @

Capacity
54

Beneficial owner BB A

Beneficial owner B##H A

Interest of a controlled corporation 3 ¥ &l A B Ky fE 25
Interest of a controlled corporation 24| A T ARz
Interest of a controlled corporation 3 #2242 B Ky HE 25
Interest of a controlled corporation ==& A T HIAEZS
Interest of a controlled corporation 3 #2242 T Ay 2

Interest of a controlled corporation 1% 4| A 5] Ay AE 2

Approximate
percentage of

issued share capital

Number of shares HE BITRAH
BRGEE BABE DL
318,540,000 38.05%
281,460,000 33.62%
318,540,000 38.05%
600,000,000 71.67%
45,936,000 5.49%
45,936,000 5.49%
45,936,000 5.49%
45,936,000 5.49%

Notes:

(1) Tong Ren Tang Ltd. directly holds 46.85% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

2 Tong Ren Tang Holdings directly holds 52.45% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. which in turn directly holds
46.85% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly holds 0.74% of the
issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang Holdings is deemed to be interested in
318,540,000 shares of the Company and 281,460,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong
Ren Tang Ltd., respectively.

3) According to the disclosure forms filed by Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited, Greenwoods Asset Management
Limited, Jiang Jinzhi and Unique Element Corp. on 8 December 2016, the following interests in shares of the Company were
held by Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited, Greenwoods Asset Management Limited, Jiang Jinzhi and Unique
Element Corp.:

Name of controlled corporation

STEEENER

Unique Element Corp.

Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited

Golden China Master Fund

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited
Greenwoods China Alpha Master Fund

Golden China Plus Master Fund

Greenwoods China Healthcare Master Fund

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall under the provisions of Division 2 and Division 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

BERAEEFERCERKERITRAMNL6.85% Bt - F-EROGERFEERCERLAN

BCEEBELAREESERCERNERTRAMNGS2.45%  MECERDUEEFERCERK
BRTRAMN46.85% - R EZEELRATERFARCERNKRSBITRAMN0.74% ° Bt - Bz
EEEARRARARCENERECERS S B AT A D § 318,540,000 i i 40 K &< 2 &)

MEE -
M
782 7 318,540,000 R IR 17 KO #E % o
@
281,460,000 iR R 17 K HEZS ©
®)

R #& Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited * Greenwoods Asset Management
Limited + # #8 & R Unique Element Corp./A2016 12 A8R EX W B EZ R K H
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited * Greenwoods Asset Management Limited *
#3875 % Unique Element Corp. B A A TR T ¢

Direct interest

Percentage of control (Yes/No) Number of
Name of controlling shareholder EHEDE HiEEs shares
ERERRNEERER (%) (R/&) gy ¢!
Jiang Jinzhi &8 & 100 No & Long position F& 45,936,000
Unique Element Corp. 81 No & Long position # & 45,936,000
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited 100 No & Long position & 45,936,000
Jiang Jinzhi #$8& 100 Yes 2 Long position # & 7,685,000
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited 100 No & Long position & 14,004,000
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited 100 Yes # Long position # & 19,545,000
Jiang Jinzhi & $8& 100 Yes 2 Long position & 1,700,000
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited 100 Yes # Long position # & 3,002,000

BREXFREN  ARRAYEEBEMAL (ESREADIAETETHRAESRMN) ASHFRIEEFS
REERPIEXVEE 20 B R HE 3D BRI ABA R TR BRREF HFRPERIE B HRA QT
ATHEFNEZTHMARENARTRDIABROEZIARR
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Directors’ Report

Related Party Transactions

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements, certain of these transactions (as set out below) also constitute connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has entered into a number of connected transactions/continuing connected transactions with the
connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company. The Directors confirmed that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Details of the non-exempted continuing connected transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:

On 14 December 2016, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Group (collectively refer to
Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its associates, other than Tong Ren
Tang Technologies and its subsidiaries) was act as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would
purchase the Owned Products (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 14 December 2016)
from the Group and then distribute the same to retailer or end users in the PRC for a period from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the years ending
31 December 2018 and 2019 are HK$200,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$230,000,000
(exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$270,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC),
respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5%
and the annual caps is more than HK$10,000,000, the PRC distribution framework agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements as well as the requirement of independent shareholders’ approval under the GEM Listing Rules.

The PRC distribution framework agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 6 January 2017.

On 8 August 2016, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. entered into a supplement agreement to the Angong
Niuhuang Wan Powder master purchase agreement dated 28 October 2015 (the “Angong Niuhuang Wan
Powder Master Purchase Agreement”) whereby the Company would purchase Angong Niuhuang Wan
Powder, being the raw materials for production of Angong Niuhuang Wan, from Tong Ren Tang Ltd. for the
period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is our controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the GEM Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under
the Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017 and the year ending 31 December 2018 are HK$17,400,000, HK$23,200,000 and HK$26,500,000,
respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed
0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Angong Niuhuang Wan
Powder Master Purchase Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Directors” Report

On 28 October 2014, the Company entered into the exclusive distributorship framework agreement (the
“Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement”) with each of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. whereby TRT International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
appointed by each of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group (refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies, its
subsidiaries and its associates (other than the Group)) and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group (refer to Tong Ren Tang
Ltd., its subsidiaries and its associates (other than Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and the Group)) as the
sole distributor of Tong Ren Tang branded products in Non-PRC Markets for the period from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2017. TRT International Natural-Pharm would purchase Tong Ren Tang branded products
from Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group and distribute them to the Non-PRC
Markets.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are both the controlling shareholders of the Company
and hence are connected persons of the Company for the purpose of the GEM Listing Rules. The annual caps
in respect of the transactions under the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements for the years ended
31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 are HK$90,300,000, HK$106,400,000 and HK$125,200,000, respectively.

As the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements expired on 31 December 2017, on 8 November 2017,
the Company entered into new exclusive distributorship framework agreement with each of Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. (the “new Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements”) for
renewal of the continuing connected transactions thereunder the for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020. The annual caps in respect of the transactions under the new Exclusive Distributorship
Framework Agreements for the years ending 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 are HK$146,000,000,
HK$191,000,000 and HK$248,000,000.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5%
and the annual caps is more than HK$10,000,000, the new Exclusive Distributorship Framework agreements
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements as well as the requirement of independent shareholders’ approval under the GEM Listing Rules.

The new Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements were approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company in the extraordinary general meeting held on 1 December 2017.

On 25 January 2017, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a master lease framework
agreement (the “Master Lease Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has
agreed to lease and procure other members of the Parent Group to lease certain premises to the Group for its
productions and operations so that any member of the Group may continue, amend or renew the Existing
Leases with any member of the Parent Group from time to time and as necessary for the future business
needs of the Group for a period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Master Lease Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2017 and years ending 31
December 2018 and 2019 are HK$6,200,000, HK$6,900,000 and HK$7,000,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio and equity capital ratio) of the
annual caps exceed 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the
Master Lease Framework Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further summarised as follows:

Name of connected party Nature of transaction

BEL AR REMEE

(1)  Tong Ren Tang Group Sales of the Owned Products
BEI—EEE HEREEM
(2)  Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Purchase of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder
B{-Z R4 BEZEFEAY
(8)  Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and Purchase of Tong Ren Tang branded products for distribution
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group
BERNRERRECZROER BEARSHENECEREER
(4)  Tong Ren Tang Holdings Lease of premises
B{EEEDQH MEEE

The price and the terms of the above transactions have been determined in accordance with the pricing policies and
guideline set out in the relevant announcements.

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors:

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group on pages 106 to
111 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Exchange.

Contracts of Significance

Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries. There is no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

Directors’ Interests in Transaction, Arrangement or Contracts of

Significance

Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or a entity connected with the Director was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting
during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2017.

3
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Directors’ Report

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. A permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and believes business development and environment
affairs are highly related. This year, the Group implemented certain environmental protection measures to save
energy and reduce the consumption of resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively. For more comprehensive information, please refer to the ESG Report on pages 32 to 81 of this annual
report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is subject to various laws and regulations including
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310), Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Chapter 112) and Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57). Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure
compliance of the same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in certain jurisdictions, compliance
procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units in the Company and subsidiaries from time to time.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance which it believes
is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
Information on the Company’s corporate governance principles and practices is set out In the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 114 to 137 of this annual report.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM. The Company has not changed its auditor in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Mei Qun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2018
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responsible for the communication with
external auditors and review of the
Group’s financial information, financial
reporting system, internal control
procedures and risk management system
S EBIMNEZHENBRL B AER
MEER « MBERERT - AEER
BErREREEGE

responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors
BEBRESTEE - ABURMER
SHEB U IFRITESNEII M RIMEE
REFESHESGREBERS

responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the policy and structure
of the remuneration of all the Directors
and senior management for approval

by the Board
BEMARBDEFhEREEASHNER
B R R B R EE RIS
HEEEHE

responsible for review of findings by the
competition executive committee on
competing business of the Parent Group
BEERBFHTEESRHUESER
MEBEBRES
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responsible for monitoring of the
competing business of the Parent Group
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MANAGEMENT

responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day management
and operation with Board’s
delegated authority, and
implementation of the
Group’s strategy and policy
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board as a whole and the management of the Company are committed to the
maintenance of good corporate governance practices and procedures. The Group firmly
believes that strict corporate governance can enhance the Group’s credibility and
transparency, thus strengthening the confidence of the shareholders and investors in the
Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had complied with all applicable
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules on the Exchange. The Group is committed to the principles of good corporate
governance as set out in the Code.

Compliance with the Required Standard of Dealings
in Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to
Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors, all
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required standard of dealings and
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors

The Board consists of 7 Directors, comprising 1 non-executive Director, 3 executive Directors and 3 independent
non-executive Directors. Details of the composition of the Board and the Directors’ biographical information are set
out on pages 86 to 91 of the annual report, respectively. One-third of the Board are independent non-executive
Directors of which more than one have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board are reviewed from time to time to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company. The independence of the independent non-executive Directors is assessed according to the relevant
rules and requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors including the names of the Chairman, the
executive Directors, the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors, is disclosed in all
corporate communications by the Company. The Company maintains on the Company’s website and on the website
of the Exchange, (i) an updated list of its Directors identifying their respective roles and functions together with their
biographical information and whether they are independent non-executive Directors; and (ii) the terms of reference
of the Board committees to enable the shareholders to understand the roles played by those independent non-
executive Directors who serve on the relevant Board committees.

Regular Board meetings are usually scheduled towards the end of the immediately preceding year to give all
Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the meetings. At least 14 days formal notice would be
given before each regular meeting. Board meeting documents including supporting analysis and related background
information are normally sent to the Directors at least 3 days before regular Board meetings.

The Board meets regularly each year and held meetings in March, April, August and October during the year ended
31 December 2017. In consultation with members of the Board, the company secretary of the Company assists the
Chairman in preparing the meeting agenda, where applicable, matters proposed by other Directors are included in
the agenda. The senior management members are invited to join Board meetings if necessary, to enhance the Board
and management communication. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors actively participated in
meetings and a summary of the Directors’ attendance records in 2017 are as follows:

Members of the Board
EEEHE

Non-executive Director k¥ {TESE

Mei Qun #g&

Executive Directors HI{TEE

Ding Yong Ling T k¥

Zhang Huan Ping &%

Lin Man # 2

Independent Non-executive Directors B kI 1TESE

Leung, Oi Sie Elsie 2= ¥ (resigned on 12 September 201722017 %9 A 12 H&HT)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & &k (appointed on 12 September 2017 22017 F 9 B 12 REZEE)
Zhao Zhong Zhen #F iR

Chan Ngai Chi FRZ% 5t

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps records of substantive matters discussed
and decisions resolved at all Board and Board committee meetings. These meetings minutes/resolutions:

contain sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/Board committees and decisions reached;
are sent to the Directors for their comments;

are sent to all Directors/Board committee members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after
such meeting; and

are available for inspection by Directors/Board committee members.
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Corporate Governance Report

Important matters are dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than written resolutions only. If a Director has a
conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if appropriate, an independent
Board committee will be set up to deal with the matter. Directors must declare his/her interest in the matters to be
passed in the resolution, if applicable.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out
of corporate activities undertaken for the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2017, no claim was made
against the Directors.

Our Chairman, Mr. Mei Qun, acts as a non-executive Director in the Company and leads the Board in terms of
formulating policies. The Chairman of the Board determines the board strategic direction of the Group in
consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-level oversight of the management. With the support of
the executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on
all key and appropriate issues in a timely manner. The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and encourages
Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to
the Board’s functions, and he may meet and/or communicate with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of the executive Directors.

While our chief executive officer, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, is responsible for business strategic planning and day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. The Board believes this segregation of duties helps to supervise and
balance the power and authority of the Board and enhances the independence and accountability of the Board.

The procedures for appointing and re-electing directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The appointment
of a new director must be approved by the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship taking into account factors
such as appropriate professional knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics, integrity, personal skills, gender,
age, cultural and educational background.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire by rotation will be
those Directors who have been Directors longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.

By virtue of Articles 81(B) and 97 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, who was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 12 September 2017, shall hold office only until the
conclusion of AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Accordingly, four directors, namely, Ms.
Ding Yong Ling, Ms. Lin Man, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen will retire at the forthcoming
AGM, and being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has entered into service agreements with non-executive Director and each executive Director, and
appointment letters with independent non-executive Directors. The tenure of all Directors is 3 years.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for sustainable development of the Group. The Board is responsible
for formulating the overall strategies as well as monitoring and evaluating the operation and financial performance of
the Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major
acquisitions and disposals, annual, interim and quarterly results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or
reappointment, approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational and financial matters. All the
Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and pursue
excellence in the interests of the shareholders at all times.

Our non-executive Director together with our independent non-executive Directors offer diverse industry expertise,
serve the important function of advising the management on strategies and ensuring that the Board fulfils high
standards of financial and other mandatory reporting requirements as well as providing adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The non-executive Directors not only exercise their independent judgment and advise on the future business
direction and strategic plans of the Company, they also review the financial information and operational performance
of the Company on a regular basis.
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Every executive Director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas and operation in which he/she is
charged with. Appropriate attention to the affairs of the Company is measured in terms of time as well as the quality
of such attention and the ability of the Directors to contribute with reference to his/her area of knowledge and
expertise, and his/her global perspective. There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment and from time to time thereafter the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other significant commitments,
identifying the public companies or organisations involved.

All Directors receive comprehensive information on appointment, so as to ensure understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Company also updates the Directors on the latest developments and changes of the GEM Listing Rules and the
applicable legal and regulatory requirements in the discharge of their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all the Directors actively participated in continuous professional
development, by attending external training or seminars, attending in-house training and/or reading materials on the
various topics covering regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills, which ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors
have provided records of training to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied with Rule 5.05(1), Rule 5.05(2) and Rule 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive directors representing
more than one-third of the Board and the non-executive directors possess professional qualification and experience
in the three areas of financial accounting, social science and Chinese medicine industry, respectively. All
independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Directors makes an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of that view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Board/Board committee meeting documents with adequate and reliable information are circulated not less than
three days before the regular Board/Board committee meetings to enable the Directors/Board committee members
in making informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board committee meetings.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and senior management of the Company, with a view to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures
and all applicable laws and regulations.

The Company Secretary acts as the bridge between the Directors and business units of the Group to ensure that
queries raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further supporting information is
provided, as appropriate.

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company should such advice be considered necessary by any Director or any Board committee.

Executive Directors are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance with their respective
areas of expertise.

For matters or transactions of a material nature, the same will be referred to the Board for approval. For matters or
transactions of a magnitude requiring disclosure under the GEM Listing Rules or other applicable rules or regulations
appropriate disclosure will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’ approval will
be obtained in accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and regulations. Specially, the Board has
had in place Guidelines for Investments stating the authority approval limits and procedures.
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The Board led by the Chairman, is responsible for the Group’s future development directions; overall strategies and
policies; evaluation of the performance of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of a
material or substantial nature. Under the leadership of the chief executive officer, management is responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Group.

Corporate Governance Duties

The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee,
and is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties according to the Code Provision D.3.1, which
includes:

(1)  developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group;

(2)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(4)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.

Board Committees

The Board established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination Committee on 28 March
2013 with written terms of reference which are available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the
Exchange. Board committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the Board meetings.

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Code. As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee has 3 members (all of them are
the independent non-executive Directors) comprising Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman), Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
(appointed on 12 September 2017) and Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen. Ms. Leung, Oi Sie Elsie resigned as the member of
the Audit Committee on 12 September 2017.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review the
remuneration, terms of engagement, independence and objectivity of the external auditor; to review the accounting
policy, financial position, the financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management system of
the Company and making recommendations thereof.

Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to members of the Audit Committee within a reasonable
time after each meeting. Audit Committee meetings were held in March, April, August and October of 2017.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2017:

1. Review the financial reports for 2016 annual results, 2017 first quarterly results, 2017 interim results and 2017
third quarterly results;

2. Review the findings and recommendations of the internal audit department on the work of various departments
and related companies;

3. Review the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems;

4., Review the external auditor’s audit findings;

5. Review the auditor’s remuneration;

6. Review the control mechanisms for the risks of different business units and advising on action plans for

improvement of the situations;
7. Perform the corporate governance functions and review the corporate governance policies and practices; and

8. Review the connected transactions with the Parent Group.
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On 5 March 2018, the Audit Committee met to review the Group’s 2017 consolidated financial statements, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor.
After review and discussions with the management, internal auditor and external auditor, the Audit Committee
endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability
assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in the Annual Report 2017 complied with the applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for 2018 and that the related resolution shall be put
forth for shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2018 annual general meeting.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company during the one
year after he/she ceased to be a partner of the auditing firm.

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 5.34
to Rule 5.35 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Code. The Remuneration Committee has 3 members comprising Mr.
Zhao Zhong Zhen (Chairman and independent non-executive Director), Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (independent non-
executive Director) and Ms. Ding Yong Ling (executive Director).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board and review
the terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior management of the Company and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof in accordance with the Group’s corporate
goals and objectives; and to review and evaluate the performance of individual Directors. No Director shall
participate in any discussion about his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee did consult the Chairman and/or the executive Director about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, including but not limited to, succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies for
recruiting and retaining qualified personnel. The human resources department provides administrative support and
implements the approved remuneration packages and other human resources related decisions approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experiences, responsibilities
with the Group and general market conditions. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee had held a meeting to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Details of the remuneration payable to the Directors are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provision A.5.1 and Provision A.5.2 as set out in the Code. The Nomination Committee has 3 members comprising
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman and independent non-executive Director, appointed on 12 September 2017),
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (independent non-executive Director) and Ms. Ding Yong Ling (executive Director). Ms. Leung, Oi
Sie Elsie resigned as the member of the Nomination Committee on 12 September 2017. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Nomination Committee had held meeting to review the structure of the Board.

For the nomination by the Board of Mr. Chan Ngai Chi to stand for re-election as an Independent non-executive
Director at the annual general meeting in 2017, explanatory statements were included in the circular accompanying
the relevant notice of meeting to set out reasons why the Board considers him to be independent.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become the Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships of the Company and to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new directors, the
Nomination Committee would seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its
responsibilities. The resume or document of the nominee or candidate will be given to the Nomination Committee for
consideration.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity of members of the Board and the
Nomination Committee shall review such policy periodically. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to
be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.

Board Diversity ?E‘I‘fcli(;f?]%r’ .
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based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, qualifications, skills,
knowledge, business and related experience,
commitment, ability to contribute to the Board
process and such qualities and attributes that may
be required by the Board. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Accountability and Audit

Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities and key financial information on a
quarterly basis and the management provide all members of the Board with monthly updates of the Company’s
performance.

The Board has included the separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s sustainable
development strategy in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group. The Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate
accounting policies have also been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company and the Group about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 138 to 145 of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report” on
pages 98 to 99 of this annual report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Lin Man is an executive Director, the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the Company, as well
as a full-time employee of the Group, discharged the functions of Company Secretary of the Company with her
professional skill and extensive experience. To update her skills and knowledge, Ms. Lin had complied with the
relevant professional training requirements under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2017. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board approval in
accordance with the Articles of Association. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and also to the Chief
Executive Officer on day-to-day duties and responsibilities. Company Secretary is responsible for supporting and
advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Corporate Governance Report

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of the
services rendered for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out as follows:

Serviced rendered to the Company &2 2 7] Fr {2 £ IR 3%

Audit services % &R
Non-audit services 3E#% B AR5
Total #3t

Fee paid to other auditors were approximately HK$473,000.

Non-audit services include tax consultancy services.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Group has set up a risk management regulation and internal control procedure to establish a clear structure and
procedures for risk management with a systematic and rigorous approach. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems is aligned with the internal control framework of international body consisting of the five
elements, namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and
monitoring. The Group’s risk governance structure is based on the “3 lines of defense” model comprised of day-to-
day operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and independent assurance.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and reviewing its
effectiveness. The management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a robust risk management and
internal control systems to protect the Group’s assets and interests of stakeholders. The Board annually reviews the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and training programs of the Group’s accounting,
internal auditing and financial reporting, and also considers the adequacy of staffs and if they are of sufficient
competence to carry out their roles and responsibilities

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s risk profile within the acceptable tolerance levels for significant
risks, overseeing the Group’s risk management framework, reviewing the Group’s significant existing and potential
risks and their respective mitigation strategies and ensuring risk management effectiveness. The Company has set
up a risk management committee, which is composed of the management of the Company. The risk management
committee holds regular meetings to review the management of these risks and effectiveness of mitigation strategies
and controls and constantly monitor the changes in risks.

Risk assessment is the identification and analysis of existing and emerging risks which identifies, filters and
prioritizes the significant risks faced by the Group by the likelihood and impact of the risks to identify significant
risks. The Group has adopted a top-down approach to review and assess if risks are comprehensively identified and
prioritised, and properly addressed by the management to accomplish the Group’s objectives.

This Year, there was no significant change on the ten major risks identified by the Group. The relevant functional
departments and operation units performed daily monitoring on the identified risks pursuant to the established risk
management procedures, and submitted a “Risk Control Report”, which summarised the overall status of the risks
and risk management activities, to the risk management team. The risk management team prepared “Risk
Management Report” in accordance with the monitoring status of the ten major risks and the internal audit
department reported the risk management status to the audit committee.
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The Group’s risk management approach is a structured mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, FEBzCERBER S AEEBI P IS SERIZ T ZEELRERNT EERE

evaluating, prioritizing, managing and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The significant process of the RAKEMEH AR AEECERRERFTERAIRNOT :
Group’s risk management is illustrated below:

+ Implement and review of the identified risks regularly in order to

(U ARSI 57 B3 N ALY confirm the risk handling strategy can be operated effectively

BOSFHAIRERZEEER 2 5 3 B o 0 L LB LB P 5 B T LS 2 0T
Risk Assessment JaBE SN Risk Reporting Jor i o

+ To summarize the results of risk assessment, set up the action
plan and to report to the management
RERBIEIMNER  HETHFEAIREEDEEEER

- Evaluate and prioritise the risks at least annually

BEOSFHARFHTERZEELERERT

DIS

, ficant risks identified — U = j” Distribution of the
' WE 7777777777777777777 = W == Top 10 Identified Risks
- TR sk e B S i

s ottt ites &

Business and strategic risk

[EEIELISE 4t
. Op”eration risk
EERR
Financial and reporting risk
R RERR
. Compliance and regulatory risk
ERREERR
According to the risk assessment conducted in 2017, top risks affecting the Group and relevant controls are set out RIE2017 FHRKBTML  FEXEENRTIERARRERNELHBRIIROT
as below:
Top Risks of the Group Impact Control Measure(s)
oE Eeykyi)
Investment Strategic Risk ~ The Group may not precisely forecast the market condition during investment. The »  The Group should prepare feasibility study in various aspects, and the investment
RERK R project may fail to meet the future market demand and the investment cost may not must be approved by management or the Board
be recovered, resulting in the project may fail and the profit of the Group may be EREEAR  AEESEZFEETATEIN  YHEERBRESTSEM
affected. » Review of the results of investment project is conducted regularly. Follow up work and i
AEBEEREREELFETWH SRR TR ER - HERAREERRTBNE adjustment are performed from time to time =
SRIBTCES - SHIREMAEBR TR @ EREERREFERR  FEXKEENEF - EHETIREE B XERT > WFHERWRENAR &
Raw Material Procurement, Some of the raw materials used in pharmaceutical section are plant and animal, of »  Strictly monitor relevant regulations and assess their impacts on the manufacture and ;
Safety and Relevant which some of them are rare chinese medicine or endangered species and are operations &
Regulations Risk governed by relevant laws and regulations. If the laws or regulations relating to the BEERHEBERRIGEEEREEEEENTE i
R EERE 22 R usage of raw materials are changed, or the suppliers cannot provide the materials + The Group performs quality control inspection on materials from the suppliers to 5
SEIRAERE R on time, or there is a change in the price or the quality of raw materials, the product ensure that their quality can meet the Group’s requirement BR
research and development, manufacture, operation and reputation of the Group will AEEEEFETHERIMPNEERE  BRRAESEZIFEENER o
be affected. »  Strictly follow the requirement of “GMP” to ensure the quality of each batch of raw Gl
AEBRHERVEMBRBENMH > HHERBRETERBALRE  SHEERE materials
BEE o EAEEREREAM R AR HEREAREHR AR  REMHOR BREGVPHEE  RESHENGSERER 151
®oEERE AEENERTR LELERBENESIFE - -
Change of Worldwide The Group’s business covers Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas areas. If + The Group assesses the changes of economy and business environment of the z
Economy and Commercial there are changes in economies, social environment, politics, laws and regulations relevant areas and their impacts on the Group’s business -
Environment Risk of the relevant areas, the Group’s business, operating results and financial condition AEBERAFHEHEGNSENLEHRENEE  URTHESHAEEERNTE t
EREBEREERE may be affected. i
R AEENEBBERS PEREMSIMEE  ZHBEBHENEE £2RIR - K -

B RRERSHREE  TWHREEAEENEY  KEXERIBNRR -
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Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, covering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment of the Group, the effectiveness on the measures of
significant risks, the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems, the duties of internal audit department and its effectiveness, etc.

Based on the results of the above review, for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board thinks the risk
management and internal monitor systems are still effective. Such systems of the Group are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has set up an independent internal audit department which regularly report directly to the Audit
Committee. The internal audit department is responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk
management, corporate governance processes and constantly supervising the work flow and risk assessment of
each department of the Group, and to independently assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems and
risk management process in order to seek continuous improvement.

Being an integral part of the risk management to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management process and system of internal control, the internal audit department regularly carries out assessment
on the risk management progress and risk responses submitted by risk owners. When developing the annual audit
plan, the internal audit department identifies, prioritises and formulates the audit works by a continuous risk
assessment of the Group’s business activities with significant risks. The Audit Committee reviews and approves the
annual audit plan and approve all subsequent major changes during the quarterly meeting. In the individual audit
project, the internal audit department will further assess the key areas of financial, operational, compliance and fraud
risk to evaluate the control effectiveness and the mitigation measures adopted by management.

The internal audit department reports significant risks, material changes and the associated mitigating actions and
highlights to the Audit Committee quarterly to enhance the accountability and quality of the risk management
process. The internal audit department will communicate with management in details on all findings and
recommendations on internal control deficiencies identified from each audit work. Management will establish
remedial plans to improve those internal control deficiencies within a reasonable time period. The internal audit
department will report significant deficiencies of individual engagement to the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee held 4 meetings with the internal audit department. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed
the works done and planning reports submitted by the internal audit department and reported the results of review
and discussion to the Board.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and the GEM Listing Rules that inside information should be announced to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable.

The procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

The Board shall take reasonable precautions for preserving the confidentiality of Inside Information and the
relevant announcement (if applicable) before publication;

Before the relevant information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group should ensure that all Inside
Information must be treated strictly confidential; and

Disclosure must be made in a manner that provides the public with an equal, timely and effective access to
the inside information disclosed, such as through the electronic publication system operated by the Exchange.
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Effective Communications with Shareholders

The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and
position in all shareholder communications. The Board is aware of and updated with the requirements under the
applicable rules and regulations about timely disclosure of inside information or matters regarding the Company and
will authorise the publication of such announcements as and when the occasion arises.

The Board adopted a Shareholder’s Communication Policy on 8 May 2013 which provides that the Board should
endeavour to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their participation. Such policy is
being reviewed from time to time to ensure its effectiveness. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders and investors, including:

(i) printed copies of corporate communications (including but not limited to financial reports, notices of meetings,
circulars and proxy forms) required under the GEM Listing Rules;

(ii) the annual general meeting and other shareholders meetings provide a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board;

(i)  update and key information on the Group is available on the website (www.tongrentangcm.com) of the
Company;

(iv) the Company’s website (www.tongrentangcm.com) offers a communication channel between the Company
and its shareholders and stakeholders;

(v) briefing meetings with analysts are arranged from time to time to update on the performance of the Group;

(vi)  the Executive Directors and senior management of the Company hold regular briefings and attend investor
forums with institutional investors and financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries from
time to time;

(viiy the Company’s Registrar deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters; and
(viii)  the investor relations department of the Company handles enquires from shareholders and investors generally.

In 2017, the Board members, the Company’s senior management, external auditor and legal advisor attended the
annual general meeting, and were available to answer questions. The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2017
annual general meeting of the Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

Voting by Poll

At the annual general meeting held in 2017, the Chairman of the meeting (i) explained the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll, and answered questions from shareholders; (ii) exercised his power under the Company’s Articles
of Association to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll.

Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll
votes cast at the annual general meeting held in 2017. Poll results were then posted on the websites of the Company
and the Exchange.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the
Board. An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined
by the Board. Any general meeting other than an annual general meeting shall be referred to as an EGM.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s Articles of
Association, an EGM can be convened to consider proposals in accordance with the following provisions:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an EGM, and EGM shall also be convened on such requisition, or in
default may be convened by such requisitionist(s), holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members
having a right to vote at general meetings. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a
quorum, any Director or any 2 shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may convene
an EGM in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which a meeting may be convened by the Directors.

SN I S

N L
(S SN ERITEE

B S A S

ESERIRERRRXAG LEARGETEAEEANRENER - ESSAERTHERRES
ARABEERSEARRARRINENAE  URERERHRRRETERBAS -

EEGN2013E- A8 ERMBRTEBER  AEESSR[EERRRBBE  BR2ANARK
BEASHHEMBRRASHERRESE  SEARKSE - RQATEHRFZBER > UWBREN - 82
2017F 12 A1 ALEE  APAARELEEEREERRARREERR 8

() WEGEMLIWRAMERHBLEBADRA (EFETRAVHRE FBRS - BER
REBEERK)

iy CHERRBEASRHEMBRREE RUBEHBRRREEZEREESERIRN
(i)  MAARATHIE (www.tongrentangecm.com) BEHAEBRFREEREE |
(iv)  RERATHIE (www.tongrentangecm.com) BB BREEAATNERRNFHEEE |

(v) FEBHIMAERGAMAEERRE

(Vi) BITESRALASHREBEASETEH  EERSNMERELBREERMESMETHE
TEHEHRREEREERE

(i) BRAUBTEEERROBROEEREESZSE R

(vii) BRAUBEEBEINSR - EERREREZNHAD -

20175 EEEHE AR ABAREEAR  HEREAREEZERALERRBEFASAEER
B ADE01I7FRFAFASEERREAZV20EZTELEATFRR -

DL oNdeik

R2017EBANRRBEAS  SREIF MM T RAWHART - LEIFRRREMR () TEE
RAERETZENBRUARESARRBAFHASHRER -

ARABEBRVBFELEAREZEAN017TFEMNRRBFASNERS BEEERE
REERY REXRREREZREQARBIAELEEH -

J T RER

FARARRAERARSBERREESTBEIR A QXA ESFEMIARREF RS B
ESERE - EAUFRRBFASNRRASHRRREBAE -

ERFEHBEERER (BEGEMLETRARARNER)WERT  RRENASTERTHERER
PRI

ESEUTRARRBEEREARARREBIAE  SHTERBERBMRREFEFIAE  WESEREERE
ERBARRBEHIAE » AAFEAERRRAERRNAERR 2BARRAERDS%NHALER -
HREAREESABTREEAY  AEM1 EESRAREERRASINELREZ2ER
RARBEACHESARASZ I ABHRRESRIAE -

—
[9)]
(933

Il s> R o A bk TT 3 S

WA M



panwi Auedwo) suioipsy asauly) Bue] usy Buoj Bullleg

—
N
N

/102 Hodey [enuuy

Corporate Governance Report

The requirements and procedures as set out in section 566 to section 569 of the Companies Ordinance are
summarised as follows:

The requisition must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include

the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, and must be

signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company which is presently situated
at Room 1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

In addition, shareholders are requested to follow section 615 of the Companies Ordinance for including a resolution
at an annual general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out below:

@

(ii)

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 25% of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the annual general meeting to which the requisition
relates, or not less than 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate, may submit a requisition in writing to put forward a resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an annual general meeting.

The Company shall not be bound by the Companies Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of an annual general meeting unless a request (a) is
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (b) the resolution of which notice is to be given is
identified; (c) is authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) is received by the Company not later
than (i) 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which
notice is given of that meeting.

The Company welcomes shareholders’ views and concerns relating to the Group’s management and corporate
governance. The Company’s website (www.tongrentangcm.com) provides email address (for enquiry purpose only),
postal address, fax number and telephone number by which Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board. Shareholders may also put forward their enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

Articles of Association

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no change to the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Members of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 247, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;
the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment of goodwiill.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of goodwill We evaluated management’s impairment assessment including
cash flow forecast, and the process by which they were drawn up,

Refer to note 4 (Critical accounting and tested the underlying calculations.

estimates and judgments) and note 16 to

the consolidated financial statements. Specific work we performed over the impairment assessment
included:

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a
goodwill of HK$49,419,000 and it was . comparing management’s short-term forecasted sales and
significant to the consolidated financial profit margins with historical performance;

statements.

. comparing the management’s key assumptions for discount
Management prepared the value-in-use rate and long-term growth rate in the forecast with industry
calculation based on cash flow forecast of data; and
the cash-generating unit that included this
goodwill to determine whether there was o obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis over the key
any impairment. We focused on this area assumptions of the cash flow forecast to analyse the
due to the size of the goodwill balance and potential impact of a range of possible outcomes.
the significant judgments and assumptions
the management used in preparation of We found management’s assessments that there was no

impairment of goodwill is supportable by the evidence we gathered
and consistent with our expectation.

value-in-use calculation.

Management has concluded that there is
no impairment of goodwill.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ 201712 B31 HIEFE

2017 2016

Revenue Yt A
Cost of sales $HE KA
Gross profit &£l
Distribution and selling expenses 7 #8 & $5 &5 52
General and administrative expenses —f& & 1T BB 5%
Other net gains H 7|15 — F58
Operating profit & X34
Finance income Bf % U=
Finance costs 817537 Hi
Finance income, net /3 81 7k &%
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{E IR ERE AR 2 RE KB
Impairment loss on an investment accounted for using the equity method & A5 A BR 2 R E Z R E TR
Profit before income tax BX f7 18 % A1 8
Income tax expense Fri5%i5
Profit for the year & E 78
Profit attributable to: AT A L FE/EFIE :
Owners of the Company A2 B #HE A
Non-controlling interests FE1% IR 25

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for the year (expressed in HK$ per share)
FARRFEBEAERLEETREF (UEREBTIITR)
Basic and diluted earnings per share SR E &K #55 2 F

The notes on pages 156 to 247 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

LI ER TS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B £2017F 12 B31 HIEFE

Note HfizE HK$’000 Fi#& T HK$’000 F#& 7T
5 1,265,994 1,084,280
6 (349,561) (289,193)

916,433 795,087

(193,517) (161,901)

(127,293) (109,611)

2,061 3,924

597,684 527,499

- 13356 7,913

(32) (43)

13,324 7,870

0 @2 (1,809
10 = (1,290)
610,966 532,270

11 (105,454) (92,390)
505,512 439,880

489,967 420,315

15,545 19,565

505,512 439,880

12 0.59 0.50

F156 2247 BT BZE S MK RENARIBD
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income OrOFER TR %

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ 201712 B31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017 B £2017F 12 B31 HIEFE

2017 2016
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Note Ffizt HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 Fi&7T

Profit for the year FE F|¥ 505,512 439,880
Other comprehensive income/(losses): Efti4& W (FE) :
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss E# AJEE# 7 HZ 8z 198 B

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset AJ{t HE £ RIE E D A EEE S 17 2,005 (475)

Currency translation differences & % 5 i = 28 16,519 (4,721)
Other comprehensive income/(losses) for the year £ EH 4z & Wz (F18) 185824 | (5,196)
Total comprehensive income for the year £ E#H# 4 N E 5 524,036 434,684
Attributable to: AT A £ &1L :

Owners of the Company &2 F#HA A 504,287 415,656

Non-controlling interests JE 2 R #E &5 19,749 19,028
Total comprehensive income for the year £ E #4545 524,036 434,684

The notes on pages 156 to 247 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet BPrE A AR

As at 31 December 2017 42017 %12 831 H As at 31 December 2017 7201712 A 31 H
07 20|
Note FfizE HK$’000 % T HK$’000 F#& 7T
Assets B &
Non-current assets JE R EN & E
Leasehold land A& £ ib 14 16,008 16,551
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - = &2 15 263,555 256,012
Intangible assets & & 16 79,001 81,279
Investments accounted for using the equity method & E AR ZIRE 10 20,766 19,810
Available-for-sale financial asset Al it HE SR EE 17 15,318 13,313
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment BE¥ % - MERRENE S 1,988 1,221
Deferred income tax assets IEFEFFE55i & = 18 9,132 9,990
405,768 398,176
Currentassets REVEE
Inventories & 19 235,536 178,539
Trade receivables and other current assets B 5 EWRIER HttREEE 20 221,570 194,506
Short-term bank deposits 528158 7 7 2% 21 1,147,338 786,044
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & K ESEEY 21 750,443 797,557
... 2354887 1,956,646
Total assets B EE 2,760,655 2,354,822

Equity and liabilities &= R & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z& 2 B #H A EiG &

Share capital g7 22 938,789 938,789
Reserves f# 23
— Other reserves E A& (11,047) (26,301)
— Retained earnings 7 % Bt F1 ;& 1,565,150 1,210,053
2,492,892 2,122,541
Non-controlling interests JE3% IR 115,285 104,696
Total equity #3448  2e08177 2227287
Liabilities & &
Non-current liabilities 357 8 & f&
Borrowing {6 & 24 605 556
Deferred income tax liabilities JEZEFT 55 & & 18 4,419 4,138
D024 4694
Current liabilities 7 & & &
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fh fE {1 5k 18 25 114,486 88,372
Current income tax liabilities & 8715 & & 32,968 34,519
e 147454 122,891
Total liabilities # & & 152,478 = 127,585
Total equity and liabilities ## & & &4 58 2,760,655 2,354,822
The notes on pages 156 to 247 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. E156 2247 MM R ZE S MM BIRROAR B ©
The consolidated financial statements on pages 146 to 247 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March F146 B 24T BN AT HRERNR2018EI A 12 HEESSHE  WHUTRREE -

2018 and were signed on its behalf.

T K& £

Ding Yong Ling Lin Man
EE EE

Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity & DRHER: 5 B 2

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ 201712 B31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017 B £2017F 12 B31 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2PN 4

Non-

Share Merger Other Statutory  Exchange Retained controlling
capital reserve reserves reserve reserve earnings Total interests

Ve RftRE Hitofd EERE B fRE W A FERERS

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER FET FET TR TR

At 1 January 2016 142016 1 A1 H 938,789 (13,124) 830 4,130 (14,643) 899,726 1,815,708 93,207 1,908,915
Comprehensive income %4 Wz
Profit for the year FE F|# = = = = = 420,315 420,315 19,565 439,880
Other comprehensive loss Eftt &4 F1E
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset ATt HESREE N A EELD = = (475) S S S (479) - (479)
Currency translation differences & ¥ 2 Z2§
— Group A& @l - - - - 4,012) - 4,012) (537) (4,549)
— Joint ventures & (b3 - - - - (172) - (172) - (172)
Total comprehensive income %44 W& A% - - (475) - (4,184) 420,315 415,656 19,028 434,684
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EEEfAEUEFIEENERETHRS
Transfer of retained earnings to statutory reserve ERREWEZ ETHE = = = 1,165 = (1,165) - - -
Dividends relating to 2015 2015 £ 2RI & - - - - - (108823  (108,823) (19.239)  (128,062)
Capital injections into subsidiaries BB 2 AT E - - - - - - - 11,700 11,700
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners E2EEZFIEEUEFEEN G RETHR ZNEE - - - 1,165 - (109,988) (108,823) (7,539) (116,362)
At 31 December 2016 742016 12 A 31 938,789 (13,124) 355 5,295 (18,827) 1,210,053 2,122,541 104,696 2,227,237
At 1 January 2017 A2017 181 H 938,789 (13,124) 355 5,295 (18,827) 1,210,053 2,122,541 104,696 2,227,237
Comprehensive income %4 W&
Profit for the year & EE&|H - - - - - 489,967 489,967 15,545 505,512
Other comprehensive income Hiti434
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset It E£HEE A A BELE - - 2,005 - - - 2,005 - 2,005
Currency translation differences & 5 2 £ 2§
— Group A& - - - - 11,317 - 11,317 4,204 15,521
— Joint ventures & (b3 - - - - 998 - 998 - 998
Total comprehensive income #4458 - - 2,005 - 12,315 489,967 504,287 19,749 524,036
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B FiEE U FEENENETHRS
Transfer of retained earnings to statutory reserve BB R B W HEZ LT G - - - 934 - (934) - - -
Dividends relating to 2016 2016 £ 18RI & - - - - - (133936)  (133,936) (24,665)  (158,601)
Capital injections into subsidiaries [1}iB 2 & & - - - - - - - 15,505 15,505
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B R FIEEUEFREENINETHRZNEE - - - 934 - (134,870) (133,936) (9,160) (143,096)
At 31 December 2017 742017 £12 A 31 B 938,789 (13,124) 2,360 6,229 (6,512) 1,565,150 2,492,892 115,285 2,608,177
The notes on pages 156 to 247 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. HE156 B 247 BN AZE SR IRREWARIT D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows IR RN TR e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ 201712 B31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017 B £2017F 12 B31 HIEFE

2017 2016

Note FfizE HK$’000 % T HK$’000 F#& 7T
Cash flows from operating activities R FBFFELNRERE
Cash generated from operations & & frE £ R & 26(a) 575,085 563,642
Interest paid 21+ FI 8 (32) (43)
Income tax paid B {3 Fr{5%i (105,909) (95,878)
Net cash generated from operating activities #& & E 8 FrE £ MR £ H 58 469,144 467,721
Cash flows from investing activities REEBFELWBSRE
Interest received B W I & 13,356 7,913
Dividends received & W i% £ 135 -
Increase in short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months
BEHIR A =188 U L2 B HER T EFE N (361,294) (265,638)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment &Y% - BiRE R REFREXR 26(b) 63 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BE¥)% - EK&RE (30,917) (13,915)
Purchase of intangible assets & E £ &= 16 = (21,660)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial asset B E Al HES R EE 17 - (13,788)
Deposit paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment BEY % - BERRENES FESE (3,168) (2,689)
Net cash used in investing activities %% % &) 7T 3R & 548 (381,825) (309,777)
Cash flows from financing activities MEZEBREBENBEERE
Capital injections by non-controlling interests FiZREZRTE 15,505 11,700
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders E {37~ 2 &) IR R K IR E (133,936) (108,823)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests & 13 3E 1 R B HIIR S (23,444) (19,239)
Net cash used in financing activities BMESEBIFTAIREFE (141,875) | (116,362)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents HERB L ZEY (D), EINEE (54,556) 41,582
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £#] 23 & R IREEEY 797,557 759,860
Exchange gain/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents & R B SEYE LU (1B%) 7,442 (3,885)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FR 2 HERREZEY 750,443 797,557
The notes on pages 156 to 247 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. E156 2247 EN M RZE S M BIRRNAR B ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare
products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The immediate holding company of
the Company is Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Technologies”) which is a joint stock
limited company established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and is listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The intermediate holding company of the Company is Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Company Limited (“Tong Ren Tang Ltd.”) which is a joint stock limited company incorporated
in the PRC and is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Holdings”) which is a company incorporated in
the PRC.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
Room 1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 March
2018.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial asset, which is carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(1) Adoption of amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and are mandatory for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2017:

HKAS 7 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
HKFRS 12 (Amendment) Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The adoption of the above amendments to standards did not have any significant financial impact
on these consolidated financial statements.
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2 RREHFBORBE (8)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) i BLBLHE ()
(ii) AR AR NHT R HER B R S HE RN 2 i T

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(1) New standards, interpretations and amendments to standards which
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are not yet effective

The following are new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards that have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 or later periods, but have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKAS 28 (Amendment) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures!"

HKAS 40 (Amendment) Transfers of Investment Property™

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards®

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Classification and Measurement of Share based
Payment Transactions"

HKFRS 4 (Amendment) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts"

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) Prepayment Features with Negative compensation®

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
(Amendment) and its Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 (Amendment) Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®

M Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2018

@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2019
@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2021
@ Effective date to be determined

The Group will apply the above new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards
when they become effective. The Group has commenced an assessment of the expected impact
of the HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16 as set out below. Except for HKFRS 16, none of the
rest of the new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 “Financial instrument” addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and liabilities. It replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments.

HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected
credit losses rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39.

It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a
detailed review. Other than the adoption of an expected credit losses impairment model and
disclosure changes, adoption of HKFRS 9 is currently not expected to have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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2 RREHFBORBE (8)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) i BLBLHE ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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(1) New standards, interpretations and amendments to standards which

are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” replaces the previous revenue standards
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations on
revenue recognition. Under HKFRS 15, an entity normally recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied. Impact on the revenue recognition may arise when multiple
performance obligations are identified. The Group’s assessment of the potential impact of the
application of HKFRS 15 is that it would not result in any significant impact on the Group’s
financial position and the timing of revenue recognition.

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases
and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about
the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors.

The Group is a lessee of various properties which are currently classified as operating leases. The
current accounting policy of such leases and the Group’s future operating lease commitments are
set out in Note 2(w) and Note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting treatment of leases and will no longer allow
lessees to recognise certain leases outside the consolidated balance sheet in the future. Instead,
when the Group is the lessee, almost all leases must be recognised in the form of an asset (for
the right-of-use) and a financial liability (for the payment obligation). The new standard will
therefore result in an increase in assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet
to the Group upon initial adoption. As for the financial impact in the consolidated income
statement, rental expenses will be replaced with straight-line depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset and interest expenses on the lease liability. The combination of the straight-line
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective interest rate method applied to the lease
liability will result in a higher total charge to the consolidated income statement in the initial years
of the lease, and a lower total charge during the latter part of the lease term.

This new standard is not expected to be applied until the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries

@)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

Except for business combination under common control, the Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint ventures or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

2 UM

T ORI B AL M R E

af BORBEE (1)

()

(1)

& bf

MBARRAKREHEREZFENERE (BRERER) - EXAKREARAE
FEE2RETRERFAE2TEORNARNER > UEEBAEZERN
BAOZEZER®  AAEEHZERATEHE WEAR RN EES
FEEERRAHE  UAZEFNEKILERETBEHTH -

EEBaH

BRARZEHTHEBSHIN  WBERELAREXEBSHOAREE - B
BHWEARMERNREAMBEREE RUBLIAREEELENRERSE
SEMBRTRENAAEE FEENRECRIEREZHELENENE
EREBENAABE - EBEHTARBITANEEEMAEEERIEE
& NSURERRBERNQIAEEE -

FEEZRZERBEERIRWBINEMFERES BRKREEERS
BEFHAEARIREERREMZAEREEFENREBL FERERS
BAABEIRSAERESREOBGREBLIRINEEFENRRS
Bt - RIBTEUBBRELENZRRAHMABEE  TRAIEMAEIFE
RESRIMIGEWBRRNAABETE -

W B R AR EEE R

fisi 75 5 5 0 B AT - BIWUEB 5 SR AT AT i W BB 05 IR A A U A8 B A Y BR
ERWERHNAABEENAE EFFEMELENETAREREENE

HR o

BEZMEERE HUBAFERESSERBRWE L EARERKER
MARBEBHABBIRNEEFEAABENNRIFTE - MAEREQ
B ERFAFEREZRTENCAHMSEZARERZEBETRENEB
NEEEFEZAAEE  EHEERSHIRERER -

EEARS #HREERLBBERXSAERSRNE T UEE - RERE
BAFUEE MER WELAIZERYBFE FURAE  UEAKES
HEREF B -

TERRAESH I HEATMBHESRE

TEHYREEFRFEREZR S ARIIEEEZRS — BURELES
AZEHENBLARAEREAETRS - FASHRENQ ABEEREMFTR
BWELAREEFERAEHEENINEENERIR - PFERESHE
M SERE BT RS IR o

HEMBEAR

ARBETBEEHE IERZERZAMREESEAEZEHEERZ
NABEEHFE MREEZDINESER - BRERARIEREQ
Al fELCXNCREENRERR  AAEEEVRKREE- - £
REMGSNERREZERABRNEIMSRRBNAEECERHENRR
EEFEENAAAR ETRERZLAANAMGEERERANEHED

BEEHE -

L
o~

sob

[
N
N

Il 5> R I o B bk 7T E

e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)
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(i1) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes directly
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from
these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investments in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the group’s
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “’share of profit/loss of investments accounted for using equity
method”, in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the income statement.

In the balance sheet of the Company, its investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for
any impairment losses. Income from associates is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

In the balance sheet of the Company, impairment testing of the investments in associates is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Joint arrangements

(e)

®

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint

arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference
between the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint
ventures equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the balance sheet of the Company, its investments in joint ventures are stated at cost less provision
for any impairment losses. Income from joint ventures is recognised by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

In the balance sheet of the Company, impairment testing of the investments in joint ventures is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the joint ventures in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Company’s
board of executive directors and non-executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(1) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

T ORI B AL M R E

2 FEERHEORBEE (#)
) FER

()

®

AEBEHMERERHEATBYRBEENE 11 - RESBUBRELEL
B RAEZHFNREVRTFEREFNANBIREESIBAREXKIS
EhE - AEBECTHEERHNNE  BEEERGELX - SEERESTE
N

RIBESZEE  REELECRSOSERAER  BRAZURIANEEENS
PERFEREEREMRA RG22 - AEEARSECENREBERBRE
ENHE WEALLCEXNMARERE  SELENRABIEERESERE
ARNEEREENAABEFENEAEZR/ARIETE - fAEERESED
EBBRERABBMBAELX AR (BREBBRASERGELXREF
BFzEARMER)  AEETBRIABE  RELEAELEEEIREGELEN
Ko BIERIG o

FEEHASECERG2AERPUETHE  UAKERFSELX BTSSR
ReBIARBERISGTIEREEHRRE  SUREREETEHE -8
TENEFRRNEEZC R AT REERMNBEK -

EARBNEERERD  REELENREZRABREMBRESERBIR - K
RAREBRERREEARBSE R ENWES -

EADBRNEEEERY URESECENHZREBBERBREHMANEGELE
MRS KRERE  RBLVERRNRERAEBBEHUBRRBERELANEE
FEHEEFB)NERIE  AXEHSECXREMFERENH -

pagtiee v
EESBNESRHRAOEBEERKEREOABEE—H - TREERKER
ESREAFRRFEHESBRR  CREAFUEWATNALIRTESRIEH
TES -

AL
G) g R BEWRE R
AEBETSEEB VBRI EEYEEEHEERECEMEFTELER

BrEB (et ¥ ) At EEN - SHHBHRERUBT (BT SR - B
TNAARZhEEERAEEZ2HER -

(1) 5 KA e
IER SRR G EIREEEF N EGEER BT CERREATNEEY -
ZERBEENUNET ENE S EEN EBRFLAERREELE ZIHIEE
HiER  RWRERER -

&

5 o0t R ot B E kT @

e



panwi Auedwo) suioipsy asauly) Bue] usy Buoj Bullleg

—
[=))
oo

/102 Hodey [enuuy

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

®

(€3]

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(111) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly a factory, offices and retail shops. Leasehold land classified as
finance lease and all other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold
land classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land held under finance lease Over the lease term of 34 to 47 years
— Buildings 33 to 50 years

— Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life
— Plant and machinery 3to 12 years
— Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years

— Furniture and equipment 2.5t0 12 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(j)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Intangible assets

()

G)

(1) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(i1) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the customer relationships of ten years.

(ii1) Other intangible assets

Within the Group there are two types of other intangible assets: management contract and
exclusive supply contract. These intangible assets acquired have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over their expected useful lives within 20 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(1) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables and available for sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the investments are acquired.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables and other current assets”, “short-term
bank deposits” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated balance sheet (Notes

2(m) and 2(n)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Financial assets (Continued)

@)

(i1)

(iii)

Classification (Continued)
(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the consolidated income
statement as gains or losses from financial assets.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

(k) Impairment of financial assets

)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i1) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is reclassified
from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,

direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).

It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

(m) Trade receivables and other current assets

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. Other current assets include prepayment, deposits and other receivables.
If collection of trade receivables and other current assets is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables and other current assets, excluding prepayments, are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts (if any).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(q) Borrowings

(r)

(s)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(1) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(i) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(w)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable
temporary differences arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(ii1) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes which are defined contribution plans and are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds. The Group
has adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and has also participated in employee pension schemes organised
and governed by the relevant local authorities for its employees in the PRC and overseas countries/
regions.

(1) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

(i) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FREGGHERBEE (B)
(v) Revenue recognition ) WAERR

panwi Auedwo) suioipsy asauly) Bue] usy Buoj Bullleg

—
(e}
=

/102 Hodey [enuuy

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied and services rendered, stated net of discounts, returns, rebates
and value added taxes and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

(1) Sales of goods

The Group sells healthcare products and Chinese medicine to wholesalers and individual
customers. Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has delivered products to the
wholesaler or customer.

For wholesales, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery does not occur until the products have been shipped to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
Sales are recorded based on the price specified in the sales contracts.

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling products. Sales of goods
are recognised when a Group entity sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are usually in
cash or by credit card.

(1) Service income
The Group provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in retail outlets. Service income
is recognised in the accounting period in which the service is provided to the customer and it is
settled in cash or by credit card.

(i11) Royalty fee income
Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total turnover of overseas entities for
them to use the “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. Royalty fee is recognised in the income statement
on an accrual basis upon sales recognised by the overseas entities.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by management of each
individual entity within the Group.

(1) Market risk

(1) Foreign exchange risk

Each individual group entity has its own functional currency. Foreign exchange risk to each
individual group entity arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the group entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The Group manages its foreign currencies risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

At 31 December 2017, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by 5% against Hong Kong
dollar, with all other variables held constant, the profit before income tax for the year ended
31 December 2017 would have been HK$5,616,000 (2016: HK$3,012,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Hong Kong dollar-
denominated trade payables held by a PRC subsidiary whose functional currency is
Renminbi. Whereas, the exposure arising from the other foreign currencies is not significant
to the Group.

(2) Cash flow interest rate risk

Other than short-term bank deposits and bank balances, the Group does not have
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of the market interest
rates on its cash flows are not deemed to be substantial in the view of the Directors based
on the nature of the assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2017, if the interest rates on bank deposits had been 50 basis-points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit before income tax for the year
would have been HK$9,478,000 (2016: HK$7,907,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest income on bank deposits.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and trade receivables (including trade receivables from
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate) and other current assets.

All the bank deposits are placed with banks with good credit ratings to mitigate the risk. For trade
receivables (including trade receivables from group companies) and other current assets, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the counter parties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of
these receivables and follows up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The management is
of the opinion that the risk of default by counterparties is low. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

Majority of the Group’s trade receivables are due within 90 days from the date of billings. As at 31
December 2017, 74.3% of the Group’s trade receivables were due within 90 days (2016: 89.6%).

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of trade receivables

in the consolidated balance sheet.

(1) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its working capital
requirements. The Group has steady cash inflow from operations and has adequate financial
resources to fund its operations and future expansions. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
financial liabilities were mainly trade and other payables amounting to HK$114,486,000 (2016:

HK$88,372,000), which were due within 12 months and equal their carrying balance as the impact
of discounting is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Capital management

(©)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance sheet. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s available-for-sale financial asset is carried at fair value as at 31 December 2017 by level of
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three
levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.
The Group’s available-for-sale financial asset is included in level 1.

Details on the fair value measurement for available-for-sale financial asset are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The rest of the Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables and other current assets, approximate their
fair values due to their short maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other payables and
borrowing are measured at amortised cost.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(@)

(b)

Goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment according to their recoverable
amounts determined by the cash-generating units based on value in use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates which are subject to change of economic environment in
future. Details are set out in Note 16.

Other intangible assets

The Group tests whether the other intangible assets have suffered any impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(h). The recoverable amount of the other intangible assets has
been determined as its value in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive directors and non-executive director
of the Company (the “Executive Directors” and the “Non-executive Director”). The Executive Directors and
Non-executive Director review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources and have determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors and Non-executive Director consider the Group’s business from a geographic
perspective and have determined that the Group has three reportable operating segments.

The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on location where goods are sold and services are
provided. The details are set out as follows:

(i) Hong Kong — sale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese
medical consultation and treatments through retail outlets as well as wholesale of Chinese medicine
products and healthcare products in Hong Kong. In addition, it includes the royalty fee income received
from overseas entities for using “Tong Ren Tang” brand name.

(if) PRC — wholesale of healthcare products in the PRC and the sole distribution of Tong Ren Tang
branded products of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. to customers outside the
PRC.

(iliy  Overseas — retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision
of Chinese medical consultation and treatments in other overseas countries, including Macao.

Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses.
Sales between segments are carried in accordance with terms agreed by the parties involved.

The Executive Directors and Non-executive Director assess the performance of the operating segments based
on revenue and segment results of each segment. Management has determined the operating segments
based on the location of the entities and the information reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

Segment assets include leasehold land, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments
accounted for using equity method, available-for-sale financial asset, deferred tax assets, deposits paid for
purchase of property, plant and equipment, inventories, trade receivables and other current assets, short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Segment liabilities include borrowing, trade and other payables,
current and deferred income tax liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 srabE R ()
(a) Analysis of consolidated income statements (a) OIFBAR 2T
Hong Kong Overseas
Bk g o
HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 & 7T HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 F#& 7T
Year ended 31 December 2017 E £ 2017 £12 A31 HILLFE
Segment revenue 7 ZBULA 936,461 425,532 307,607 1,669,600
Inter-segment revenue 73S & U A (300,204) (102,654) (748) (403,606)
Revenue from external customers 2R B /M EE B 2 WA 636,257 322,878 306,859 1,265,994
Contribution to segment results 7 Sf 248 = B Bk 577,880 27,866 24,935 630,681
Depreciation and amortisation #7 & % # 85 (15,082) (644) (8,969) (24,695)
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & = #i 4 (1,300) - (1,146) (2,446)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment #J2 - &= & %18 2 BETIZ (5,509) = (1,177) (6,686)
Impairment loss on inventories 175 Z E B TR - - (523) (523)
Write-off of inventories 17 & #iUR (950) - (534) (1,484)
Segment results 7 S 4E 555,039 27,222 12,586 594,847
Inter-segment elimination % 2B &% £ 2,837
Operating profit £ F;4 597,684
Finance income 7 7% W &% 13,025 225 106 13,356
Finance cost 8173 tH = = (32) (32)
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method
EihizEmE A RZRERE (42)
Profit before income tax B& Fr 18 %4 Al I H 610,966
Income tax expense FriS%iFH s (94,350) (7,163) (3,941) (105,454)
Profit for the year & FI8 505,512
Hong Kong Overseas
i =g
HK$°000 F& 7t HK$’000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F& T HK$’000 F%& T
Year ended 31 December 2016 B £2016F 12 A 31 HLLFE
Segment revenue 2 ZBULA 826,109 316,892 252,842 1,395,843
Inter-segment revenue 7 =B R A (229,022) (82,187) (354) (311,563)
Revenue from external customers 3 B 4h 2R F Z WA 597,087 234,705 252,488 1,084,280
Contribution to segment results 2 8248 = S f&f 530,060 15,918 24,646 570,624
Depreciation and amortisation 378 % {# (15,183) (605) (6,670) (22,458)
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & 7= ## £ (1,300) = (417) (1,717)
Write-off of inventories 17 & il (730) (17) (115) (862)
Segment results 7 SF £ 4& 512,847 15,296 17,444 545,587
Inter-segment elimination 7 %0 &5 ¥ £ (18,088)
Operating profit &< F;4 527,499
Finance income B1 7§ W& 7,494 180 239 7,913
Finance cost 8173z (12) - (31) (43)
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method fE{E IR R E A IR 2 R B E5E (1,809)
Impairment loss on an investment accounted for using the equity method 2 %55 A BR 2 R E Z R EFHE (1,290)
Profit before income tax Kk TS %1 A1 A58 532,270
Income tax expense FT{5%i R X (85,648) (2,502) (4,240) (92,390)
Profit for the year & EE ¥ 439,880
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 srabE R ()
Analysis of consolidated balance sheets (b) SUFERE AR T

()

(©)

(d)

Hong Kong Overseas
Bk g o
HK$’000 F3& 7T HK$’000 F3&7T HK$’000 F3& 7T HK$’000 F3& 7T
At 31 December 2017 74201712 831 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 HEER & &
Total assets #EE 2,260,150 203,558 296,947 2,760,655
Investments accounted for using the equity method R E AR ZIRE 12,900 - 7,866 20,766
Additions to non-current assets O 3ER BN E & 2 1 0 O 8,083 122 26,068 34,273
Total liabilities 22 & f& (86,864) (33,576) (32,038) (152,478)
At 31 December 2016 #2016 12 531 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 HEER A&
Total assets #EE 1,976,634 122,994 255,194 2,354,822
Investments accounted for using the equity method &z A AR ZIZE 11,467 = 8,343 19,810
Additions to non-current assets " JERENE = 2O 4,430 263 34,150 38,843
Total liabilities Z2 & & (73,863) (28,653) (25,069) (127,585)
M In this analysis, additions to non-current assets exclude investments accounted for using the equity method, (U] KAOWP R EEZENMAEIEIREREARZERE  AHEESREEN
available-for-sale financial asset and deferred tax assets. EEFREKRERE o
Revenue © WA
The analysis of revenue by category is as follows: RERESHBADHMT :
2017 2016
HK$’000 F3#& T HK$’000 F#& T
Sales of products $5&E 1,217,907 1,044,886
Service income ARFEULA 47,548 38,519
Royalty fee income f & {5 FI & U 5 539 875
1,265,994 1,084,280
Information about major customers (d) HRTEEFNER
For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from three (2016: three) customers each accounted for HE2017E12A31BILEEE FH=F(2016F : =) EFHRAZ(EAER
more than ten percent of the Group’s total revenue. These revenues are attributable to the Hong Kong BRABRZTUE c ZZEWAKEEBIBRTHAII - REZZEEFE KUK A
segment and the PRC segment. The revenues from these customers are summarised below: W
2017 2016
HK$’000 T % T HK$°000 F#& 7t
Revenue from: 3R E AT A ZHIUA :
— Customer A EF A 239,930 227,517
— Entities under the control of the ultimate holding company @ (Note 28(a))
BRAERATIEGHNER O (ME28() 197,304 151,780
— Customer B £F B 138,479 142,603
575,713 521,900
o It represents a group of entities under common control considered as a single customer. @ ESHEZENN-—HER RAE—FF
There are no customers of other segments individually accounted for ten percent or more of the Group’s BZE2017F12A31HLEE  Htto BMEEF (2016 F : &) BREAREEE
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil). WARBD 2T L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 Segment information (Continued)

(e) Information about geographical areas

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. An analysis of revenue from external customers and non-
current assets of the Group by geographical area is set out below:

(1) Revenue®

Hong Kong &8

PRC [

Macao BP9

Australia & Al g5
Canada & X
Singapore # 03K

New Zealand % 74
Other countries E I F =

(i) Non-current assets®

Hong Kong &8
PRC

Macao BP9
Australia & A K28
Canada € X
Singapore 703
New Zealand 3 74 5
United States %
Switzerland ¥+

Other countries E {1

M The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on the location where goods are sold and

services are provided.

@ The geographical location of non-current assets is analysed based on where the assets are located or
held. In this analysis, the total of non-current assets excludes investments accounted for using the equity
method, available-for-sale financial asset and deferred tax assets.

5

5 DF W4 255 8 22 I it

oy iR R (D
(e) FiRMBIEIRIZER}

AREREBEE -AEERMBEIADNREIAEF ZRARFRBEENDN

i

mT
(i) WA®
2017 2016
HK$’°000 T & Tt HK$’000 T8t
636,257 597,087
322,878 234,705
142,300 110,190
53,173 45,353
35,943 33,320
23,969 23,945
19,627 17,023
31,847 22,657
1,265,994 1,084,280

(ii) R B & A @

2017

2016

HK$’000 F3& T HK$°000 F#& 7T
250,048 263,883
1,600 2,000
8,802 9,500
40,803 36,296
8,722 4,828
666 759
5,644 5,555
24,201 24,868
12,351 =
7,715 7,374
360,552 355,063

o WA R B R EEE R RERBAE DA -

@ FRBDEERMESMERBZEENMEH RIS HHERE - 224+
FRBEEARTEREESZEARZRE THEESREENELMH

BHEE -

g RTESIE I 2 e I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 Expenses by nature

2017 2016

Cost of inventories sold (Note 19) HEF & A (FizE19)

Employee benefit expenses (Note 7) {E £ B HIBI 3z (HizE7)

Operating leases payments && &

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 14) T8 { & & 0 S ZB #85 (MizE 14)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) . & E#i 8 (FizE 16)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 15) #12 ~ = & RETE (5L 15)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (Note 15) #13 « k&= K 528 Z B E TR (izE 15)
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 26) HEY % « BiE - 3RE 2 E51E (KizE26)
Impairment loss on inventories (Note 19) 7 & B ETE (FEE19)

Write-off of inventories (Note 19) 17 & MU (HizE 19)

Auditors’ remuneration 4% ZEH B &

— Audit services ZZ RS

— Non-audit services JE4% B IR

Research and development #ff &

Net exchange (gain)/loss & 5, (U3) /&518 F 48

Promotion and advertising expenses S & & 4B %

Legal and professional expenses S:#2 & B[ %

T ORI B AL M R E

6 {ZTEH s RN b

HK$’000 T % T
278,329
175,818

75,321
543
2,446
24,152
6,686
110
523
1,484

3,850
155
9,581
(286)
22,540
6,671

HK$000 T8 7T
226,757
155,636

61,890
543
1,717
21,915

35

862

2,924
790
4,273
76
15,943
6,758

p—
\©
Ot

S &

Il 5> R I o B bk 7T E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E

7 Employee benefit expenses, including directors’ emoluments 7 BB MAIDESZ, b s e
HK$’000 &t HK$’000 F & T
Salaries, wages and bonuses #& + TEREAL 154,366 137,082
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & K4S - EEE AR E 10,280 8,999
Other benefits H fi11& Fl 11,172 9,555
175,818 155,636

(@)

(b)

(©)

Five highest paid individuals () htamEH N\ L

AEBEANAEBRSHFATEEWL (201645 : M) ES - HESRKH L 8(a)
DHARM - FRAESHHEFEET =2 (2016 F : =) ALHESWT :

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two (2016:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 8(a). The emoluments
paid or payable to the remaining three (2016: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2017 2016

HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 F & T

Basic salaries and other benefits EZ4N# & & H 15| 1,208 1,559
Bonuses fE4L 2,874 2,519
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & A - E2EHEFETE 106 36
4,188 4114

The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENFUTEE :

Number of individuals A £
2017 2016

Emolument bands B <& £ E
HK$ 78t 1,000,001 — HK$ 7 T 1,500,000 3 3

Senior management’s emoluments (b) R BN E <

The emoluments paid or payable to senior management for the year ended 31 December 2017 fell
within the following bands:

BZE2017F 12831 HEFEENSENESREBAEBNHEN FUTEHE :

Number of individuals A 2{
2017 2016

Emolument bands B 25 &
HK$ 7% 7t 1,000,001 — HK$ 7% Jt 1,500,000 3 3

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no emoluments (2016: nil) were paid by the Group to any of the (c) BZE2017F12A3ALEE FEALEOREREFALZAETABE (2016
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for FE) FRARSIEMASIMAXREBSHRBARBHEE  TEESHFALR
loss of office, and no arrangement under which any of the highest paid individuals waived or agreed to RYRARHEEAHES L -

waive any of the emoluments.

—
=}
N

T a o

fk

al > E ot i E

Eeg A e



pajywi] Auedwo) auoips|y @sauly) Buel usy Buo) Bullleg

—
\O
2]

/102 Hodey [enuuy

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing
Rules)

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE 201712 A 31 B ILFE

Non-executive Director FEHITEE

Mr. Mei Qun #8854

Executive Directors $1{TE %5

Ms. Ding Yong Ling 0 T 7k ¥ 2z = ()

Mr. Zhang Huan Ping iRJ&F &4

Ms. Lin Man #A& Z +

Independent Non-executive Directors &M JEHI{TES
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & £Em% 504 @
Ms. Leung, Qi Sie Elsie 2F&F#+ 0

Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen #8F #& 554

Mr. Chan Ngai Chi R 2% Bth & 4

T ORI B AL M R E

wmHNF IS ARES (B &S (Al EH) (55 622
71 ) o5 383 15k B v ] (9% 85 H A AL EORE) BL))
(%5 622G 71 ) Bl W §% 2 B 1 vid B HIBL & 1Yy B%

%)

(a) I

BZE2017FK2016F 12 B31 BELFENAQATZSESHFMOT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

ERES (FERFTAFARHEFLAALE) RHBEMZFREKRNH S
Employer’s
contribution to
a retirement
Discretionary benefit scheme

bonuses EBExZEKSE
BIETEAL TEHR

HK$’000 T3#&7Tt HK$000 %t HK$000 F#E7T HK$000 T#E7T HK$000 F& T

- 715 928 18 1,661
- 715 928 18 1,661
80 — - - 80
180 - - - 180
240 - - - 240
240 - = = 240
740 1,430 1,856 36 4,062

E- R A E Il s> o o E bk TT 3 ok &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by

section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing
Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

@)

©®)

@

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016 £ 12 A 31 B I E

Non-executive Director JEH1TESE

Mr. Mei Qun #8854

Executive Directors $I{TE%

Ms. Ding Yong Ling ® T k¥ 2+ ™

Mr. Zhang Huan Ping iRJ&F &4

Ms. Lin Man & 2z +

Independent Non-executive Directors B EHTES
Ms. Leung, Oi Sie Elsie 2E:F &+

Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen #F iR 5E4E

Mr. Chan Ngai Chi R 2% Bth 5t &

Ms. Ding Yong Ling is also the Chief Executive of the Company.

Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper was appointed as the independent non-executive director of the Company on 12
September 2017.

Ms. Leung, Oi Sie Elsie was resigned from the independent non-executive director of the Company on 12
September 2017.

Ms. Ding Yong Ling returned salary of HK$272,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the Company in
2016.

Except for the disclosure for directors’ emolument made in foot note (4) above, no other directors of the
Company waived or returned any emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for
loss of office as a director.

T ORI B AL M R E

o A A AORE 4 (il 75 38 (o ml ) (585 622

) 55 383 o b 23 ml (9% i 91 HF A ZORE) BLA)
(35 622G 52 ) Bl 1R 4% % Je L vid BB 5 11 9%
#) (1)

(a) HHMSE ()

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

ERES (TERAQAFHFAREE) RERBM A RERNHE

Employer’s

contribution to

a retirement

Discretionary  benefit scheme

Salary bonuses EEx2RKE
e BIBIEAL sTEMR
HK$’000 &7t HK$000 F#ET HK$000 FEmT HK$000 FETT HK$000 FiET
- 400 - 6 406
- 715 1,011 18 1,744
- 715 1,011 18 1,744
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
720 1,830 2,022 42 4,614

Q]

@

®)

@

TARBRZEFRBAREARSTHRAS -

BEMREER2017FIR12BEERA R ABUFHITES -

REFLTR2017FIR12HBEARRRABILIATES -

*/

T 7]
NS

all

KL+ R2016 FEEHZE2016F12 831 A ILFENH£272,000/8 T F R

BRTAERBERMEGNWESHE)N AT LBESHREAME - XEEF
BEERERTAMNE  FRARIMARBZRBIEMASRBREDBRBEHE -

L
&

ol > E ot 8 E Wk TT a Sok

o
S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by

section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing
Rules) (Continued)

()

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to any directors as compensation for the early termination of the appointment
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

No payment was made to the former employer of any directors for making available the services of them
as a director of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: Nil).

9 Finance income, net

T ORI B AL M R E

o A A AORE 4 (il 75 38 (o ml ) (585 622
) 55 383 o b 23 ml (9% i 91 HF A ZORE) BLA)
(%5 622G ) BLE I 3% i Be b i 510 BL 7 1 8%
#) (1)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e

®

HOHR AR

AEERATEENREFESEREN  EFAREMAQAARENBENSEEE
MEEMRE 2B (2016 F : &) -

O EHE A
AEENLROESZHEANS - (£ RRNBENHBAE (20165 : ) -

WSS — 5 N B Ry R SO IR AR

AEERATEAETE=AAEEARAEEMEXNAZSAERNTEEINNKE
(2016 4F : #&) ©

o, HRPERIACE, SRR i 2 B, MR DR
oAt 22 S A BHAS 12

AEENLRES EFRHLE ESHBRRZEN  ERRURHMZ A
BIfE 2 (20164 : £&) ©

L EAEMIEINIZR Y LA A v TR RE AR

REEARFER  ARERERTEASRAEE 2 EBMARA 2ESHER
BMEEETHEEEARECEERS  REREE (2016 F : &) -

9 MBI AR

2017 2016

Finance income 17§ Yt
Finance costs 817§ Hi

Finance income, net jF & #5 Uz

HK$’000 & 7T HK$'000 Fi& 7T
13,356 7,913

(32) (43)

13,324 7,870

e E Il s> R oo B bk T 3 o &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E

10 Investments accounted for using the equity method 10 fEREAR IR AMR 2 &

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as (a) REUFEREAEEHEERNSRNT
follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 F3& 7T HK$'000 F & 7T
At 31 December X 12 A 31 H
Joint ventures & 13 20,766 19,810
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as (b) RETFBAS R MR AN T -
follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 F%& 7t HK$°000 F &7t
For the year ended 31 December HiZ 12 31 BILEE
Joint ventures && 3 (42) (3,099)
Interests in joint ventures (c) REEMSE R
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures. The following table AEEBREEETEANTEANGELENER - TRONMAEESHAHZESE
analyses, in aggregate, the movement of the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these joint TENEZFEOEZDNELZECELENES  HGSWERAE -
ventures, and its share of results, other comprehensive income and commitments of these joint
ventures.
2017 2016
HK$’000 F &t HK$°000 F7& 7T
At 1 January ®1B1H 19,810 23,081
Share of losses for the year FE{h & E K518 (42) (1,809)
Share of other comprehensive income/(losses) fE1E H 4R & Wiz~ (E518)
— Currency translation differences E# 7 =% 998 (172)
Impairment loss JR{E 2 = (1,290)
At 31 December 7412 B 31 H 20,766 19,810
The Group’s share of joint ventures’ commitments 25 B fE{5 & & 1B HERIE 5,657 5,424
Notes: By =t
(a) The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) EECEANRAQRT  HBROLEHHRE -
(b)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in joint ventures. (b) YEFEAKEMSEELERRNITEE-
(c)  Details of the joint ventures are set out in Note 29. (c) EELEFBRARMT29-
Interests in associates d) RN 2R
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates. AEBEELETENTERNEE ATNESR -
2017 2016
HK$’000 F3& T HK$°000 &7t
At 1 January and 31 December A1 81HKX12H31H = =
Notes: B
(@)  The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) HMEQARANRIARTE HROIETHHRE -
(b)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in associates. (b) YEEEAAKEMFHELARRZNIEEE -
(c) At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s investment in one of the associates which is still under the (c) R2017FR2016F12A31 B AEBMEF —HEEAANERECBREEE W It
process of being wound up, was fully impaired. BN T S IE B o
(d) In 2017, the Group has not recognised its share of loss of one of its associates as its share of accumulated (d) AEBEE-—EHBELARANEEBBERBAEENZBE AR ZRERS » R

losses has exceeded its investment cost. 2017 FWEBERHELHERE -

S &

TR S VY § o5 W B kT @



=)

/102 Woday [enuuy E penwi Auedwo) suioipsy eseuly) buel usy buo) Bullleg

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

5 DF W4 255 8 22 I it

F={

11 Fifa B i

MERBETERRFIBIR16.5% (2016 F : 16.5%) W XA REBFEH - RHBEEE
M A R F R R ERBLR R 25% (2016 F 1 25% ) MBI R RPBEBXMAER < B
FHNREERFRGAERBFBRAEELLERERARNRITRETEH -

Current income tax EHiFT 55
— Current year NEE
— Over provision in prior years ¥ & % 5% 1%

Deferred income tax (Note 18) IEFEFTS % (FfzE18)
Income tax expense {58 H

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 F38 7T HK$'000 387t
105,249 95,400

(988) (745)

104,261 94,655

1,193 (2,265)

105,454 92,390

REERBAFNENAEHERABEARSHAREEBAENMETIREAETNER

Profit before income tax B} F7 15 %1 5 78
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries
1248 B B = A A8 B8 A B A B R 5 E 2 B 1E
Tax effects of: LA T BR824
— Income not subject to tax T & UK &
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ 8] H1Fif8
— Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised
RERELEFSHEENTIEEER
— Withholding income tax on royalty fee from overseas entities B S /NS8& & B BRI FTEH
— Over provision in prior years 1E 4 % 51 &
— Others EAth

Income tax expense Fif5 8t

12 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary share in issue during the year.

SHEERNT
2017 2016
HK$’000 F3& 7T HK$’000 T8 7T
610,966 532,270
101,464 90,035
(3,857) (4,097)
2,125 2,404
4,478 3,018
284 247
(988) (745)
1,948 1,528
105,454 92,390

12 BRI E A

BREABRTDEARRAEBABERBRUFASHTEBROMEFIHTEH -

@

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 2~ 2 T # A A FE(L 758
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) & 217 & IR i F 5 & (F i)
Earnings per share (HK$) B 2RI (B t)

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share as there were no potential dilutive shares.

2017 2016
HK$000 F 3 7t HK$'000 F 38T
489,967 420,315
837,100 837,100

0.59 0.50

BZE2017ER2016F 12831 HILEE  BEAEEREREZRND -

S &

Il 5> R I o B bk 7T E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Dividends

The dividends paid in 2017 and 2016 were HK$133,936,000 (HK$0.16 per share) and HK$108,823,000
(HK$0.13 per share) respectively. Dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of HK$0.19 per
share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$159,049,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on
7 May 2018. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

2017 2016

Interim dividend paid of HK$Nil (2016: HK$Nil) per ordinary share
ENEREBERPHBREZTHET (2016 F 1 TBT)

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.19 (2016: HK$0.16) per ordinary share
EERSRTBRAHRES0.19/4 T (2016 F : 0.16 8 7T)

14 Leasehold land

The Group’s interest in leasehold land represents prepaid operating lease payments and its net book value is
analysed as follows:

B

5 DF WA 255 8 2 I i

13 S

2017 E K 2016 EME IR E 2 Bl A 133,936,000 T (F % 0.16 78 7t ) & 108,823,000
B (ER0.13BT) - BE2017F 12831 BLEENRESRI9B T (RELES
159,049,000/ 8 T) SN A AT E2018F5 A7 ARITHRRBFRELIRSE - ZZUHK
MERWBERRZEFRE °

HK$’000 % T HK$’000 F & T
159,049 133,936
159,049 133,936

14 & 1

FEBHELHNBESERANKCERHENR  AREFEINAOT ¢

2017 2016

In Hong Kong, held on: R& B

Lease of between 10 and 50 years i % 10 & 50 &

At 1 January 1818

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 6) &1 4% % 30 & 5% 18 # &5 ({7t 6)
At 31 December 412 A31H

HK$’000 F3& 7T HK$000 F &7t
16,008 16,551

16,551 17,094

(543) (543)

16,008 16,551

S &

§ SR RN

Eeg A e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land
and leasehold
land held under
finance lease

15 VIR, Widbs B fi

T ORI B AL M R E

KAEREL
RRERE Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and
HEHEN Buildings  improvement machinery equipment Motor vehicles
HE L BF HEMERE BERBESE RERRE RE
HK$'000 T8t HK$000 T HK$000 FET HKS000 FE7T HK$000 FET HK$000 FEL HKS000 FET
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016 12831 HILFE
Opening net book amount 5 #1R FFE{E 100,516 102,313 31,848 13,540 13,211 1,002 262,430
Additions &1 - - 9,446 54 6,280 516 16,296
Disposals (Note 26(b)) H & (KizF 26(b)) - - (16) - (19) - (35)
Depreciation charge (Note 6) & 3 i (Kt 6) 2,127) (2,779 (9,671) (3,594) (3,258) (486) (21,915)
Currency translation differences & # 5 2 = 48 (66) 212) (93) - (391) @) (764)
Closing net book amount i K ik E E{E 98,323 99,322 31,514 10,000 15,823 1,030 256,012
At 31 December 2016 42016 12 531 H
Cost f A 107,227 121,385 70,270 49,835 28,363 3,477 380,557
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Z&H#7 & K& iR {E (8,904) (22,063) (38,756) (39,835) (12,540) (2,447) (124,545)
Net book amount ik H F{E 98,323 99,322 31,514 10,000 15,823 1,030 256,012
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ 2017512831 B L EE
Opening net book amount H @11k EFE 98,323 99,322 31,514 10,000 15,823 1,030 256,012
Additions & 6,802 5,550 13,114 3,472 4,339 229 33,506
Disposals (Note 26(b)) H & (FftzE 26(b)) - - (1) = (120) (52) (173)
Depreciation charge (Note 6) #1832 i (KX 6) (2,127) (2,796) (11,350) (3,029) (4,451) (399) (24,152)
Impairment loss BBz - - (5,963) - (723) - (6,686)
Currency translation differences & # 5 & Z 28 651 2,174 1,177 - 1,023 23 5,048
Closing net book amount i K iRk EFE & 103,649 104,250 28,491 10,443 15,891 831 263,555
At 31 December 2017 42017512531 H
Cost B 114,680 129,176 83,264 53,056 33,790 3,097 417,063
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2537 & K R{E (11,031) (24,926) (54,773) (42,613) (17,899) (2,266) (153,508)
Net book amount ik EE{E 103,649 104,250 28,491 10,443 15,891 831 263,555
The net book value of the interests in freehold land and leasehold land classified as finance lease are analysed PEAKAEETHRBREREHEFENHSE L HERNRMFEINUOT ¢
as follows:
HK$’000 T &t HK$°000 &7t
In Hong Kong, held on: R& B F#F :
Leases of between 10 and 50 years E & 10 £ 50 & 87,469 89,596
Outside Hong Kong, held on: A& B E NS ¢
Freehold kK A 16,180 8,727

M2017F 128318 - RITHE K LLIRME 12,343,0005% 7t (2016 % : 11,585,000 7T )
KK A ERE L REFERIKA (ME24) o

As at 31 December 2017, bank borrowing is secured by a freehold land and building amounted to HK$12,343,000
(2016: HK$11,585,000) (Note 24).

Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income statements as follows: BAOtNE R ENITERSAT

2017 2016 =

0O o o E bk TT 3 ok

al

0 HK$’000 F &t HK$°000 &7t
Cost of sales $HE& KA 6,122 6,671

Distribution and selling expenses 7 #5 & $5 & B8 52 11,356 9,731

General and administrative expenses — & & 17 B 5 5% 6,674 5,513

24,152 21,915

REENEEEEHETRESENEZRE  BEHRERN—RRITEBEXIZHENRET
124 6,686,000 7T (2016 F : &) ©

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$6,686,000 (2016: nil) was charged to general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income statements by which the carrying amounts of the assets
exceed their recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 Intangible assets

The net book value of the Group’s intangible assets is analysed as follows:

At 1 January 2016 /220161 A1 H

Additions

Amortisation (Note 6) #i 4 (FizE6)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017742016 12 831 H}® 20175181 H
Amortisation (Note 6) # 4 (FizE6)

Currency translation difference & ¥ i 2 = %8

At 31 December 2017 2017512 B 31 H

Note:

Other intangible assets represent customer relationships, a management contract and an exclusive supply contract.

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is monitored by management at the operating segment level. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”) within the Hong
Kong segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by management based on value-in-use calculation. The
key assumptions adopted in the value-in-use calculation are based on management’s best estimates and past
experience.

The value-in-use calculation is based on a five-year financial budget approved by management. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate of 3%. A pre-tax discount rate
of 16% (2016: 16%) is used which reflects the specific risks relating to the relevant operating segment.

The Group recognised a goodwill of HK$49,419,000 in 2015 as a result of the acquisition of the equity interest
in Honour Essence Trading Limited, which is principally engaged in the distribution of Chinese medicine
products in Hong Kong. The goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing to Honour Essence Trading
Limited’s cash-generating unit within the Hong Kong segment.

An increase in the pre-tax discount rate to 22% or a decrease in forecast sales growth rate to 1% and terminal
growth rate to 1%, all changes taken in isolation, would remove the remaining headroom.

17 Available-for-sale financial asset

T ORI B AL M R E

16 MEJE & A

FEENELEENREFIEINAOT :

Other intangible

Goodwill assets
Gk HitBEEE
HK$’000 F#& 7T HK$°000 T3 7T HK$’000 %7t
49,419 11,917 61,336
- 21,660 21,660
- (1,717) (1,717)
49,419 31,860 81,279
- (2,446) (2,446)
- 168 168
49,419 29,582 79,001

M 5E
HitBFEES N ARFEE BEESRARBRMHESH -
25k A 0 sk

EEEAKE I MERENBE - ATREINZNEN  HECIREAEEZETBBE
ANEMEHOREEELEMN -

REEABEUNTWNEREEEREEAEEFELIMNEE - AR EERAEENE
EEREENEERNSEMGMTNBENERMETE -

EREEAERENEEEABNIFYHES - AFHUR W RAETEA 3% Bk
FTEREES - TAZBATBRERER16% (2016 : 16%) ' TRMREBE D I 245 ERE

AEER0I5FRBALREZERAA(HFTEEXZXARETBRESIHPEER) BER
HEE 5 49,419,0008 T - EBW AR EREIBAEEZERLATAMNESEHETLH
EITRER -

RAMBRELAZ2% A HEEREZTHRE 1B RERERZE 1% (2HBERBY
28 ERLERERERE o

17 {3t 15 < il e

2017 2016

At 1 January A1 818

Addition ¥ n

Gain/(loss) transfer to equity (Note 23) 1§/ (&518) BB Z R (FfE23)
At 31 December ¥ 12 A 31 H

The available-for-sale financial asset represents a Hong Kong listed equity security which is denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The fair value is within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

HK$°000 F 35 7T HK$’000 F &7t
13,313 ~

= 13,788

2,005 (475)

15,318 13,313

AHEESREERUBAAENT B LT ARES  EAAEBEERARNEBRNE —F -

ol s &

.
Il

Il 5> R D o B b

N
—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B D 15 0 HT 3

0 N VA
18 Deferred income tax 18 0% 4L jir 1585t
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BREMEHEERBBENSNUT:
2017 2016
HK$’000 F &t HK$°000 F7& 7T
Deferred income tax assets & iE FT 1551 & &=
— to be recovered after more than 12 months #7121 B #% Uz = - -
— to be recovered within 12 months #5128 B AUk E 9,132 9,990
9,132 9,990
Deferred income tax liabilities IEZEFF 155 & /&
— to be settled after more than 12 months #§RBB 12E B E&EE (3,106) (2,627)
— to be settled within 12 months &R 128 B A& E (1,313) (1,511)
(4,419) (4,138)
Deferred income tax assets, net JEFE TS &= F4E 4,713 5,852
The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows: BEAERMSHRE FEEBMT @
2017 2016
HK$’000 T3 T HK$’000 F7& 7T
At 1 January ®1 B 1H 5,852 3,729
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (Note 11) (¥18) st A &G R (FizE11) (1,193) 2,265
Currency translation differences & % 5 i = 28 54 (142)
At 31 December 212 B 31 H 4,713 5,852
The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into consideration the EREER BB LRERAREENERT ELFMEHNHEEREBEREFHNT ¢

offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Accelerated
accounting Unrealised

depreciation profit Provision

IEEEHTE REBRFIHE B

HK$’000 T8 7T HK$’000 T8 7t HK$’000 T8 T HK$’000 F7& T
Deferred income tax assets JEZEFF8FH & &

At 1 January 2016 2201641 81 H 284 5,327 2,909 8,520
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated income statement 5t A (18 ) & #f i EF & (237) 3,049 (1,202) 1,610
Currency translation differences & 5 5 = 55 (6) - (134) (140)
At 31 December 2016 R 2016 512 A 31 H 41 8,376 1,573 9,990
At 1 January 2017 220171 81 H 41 8,376 1,573 9,990
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (318 ) st A& Hflik & 11 695 (1,626) (920)
Currency translation differences &% R =48 4 5 53 62
At 31 December 2017 74201712831 H 56 9,076 - 9,132

L
&

E SR R ek
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18

19

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities iEE ff 551 & &

At 1 January 2016 220161 811

Credited to the consolidated income statement st A & #f Uk & &

Currency translation differences & # 5 = 48

At 31 December 2016 #2016 12 A 31 H

At 1 January 2017 A 20171 811

(Credited)/charged to the consolidated income statement (5t A) /H1 B & ftlkE X
Currency translation differences & ¥ 5 #1 = 28

At 31 December 2017 122017 512 A 31 A

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of approximately HK$11,463,000 (2016: HK$6,333,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to
approximately HK$61,348,000 (2016: HK$33,845,000) at 31 December 2017 that can be carried forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of
HK$24,255,000 (2016: HK$18,858,000) which will expire between 2018 and 2037 (2016: expire between 2017
and 2036).

The Group did not recognise the deferred income tax liabilities of HK$3,521,000 (2016: HK$2,713,000) in
respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries
amounting to HK$66,228,000 (2016: HK$46,271,000) at 31 December 2017, as the Group can control the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and these unremitted earnings will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

Inventories

T ORI B AL M R E

18 JEAE P19 BE ()

Accelerated tax

depreciation

IEEB BT E
HK$'000 F 3% 7T HK$’000 F 35 7T HK$'000 F 35 7T
(3,969) (822) @,791)
378 277 655
) = @)
(3,593) (545) (4,138)
(3,593) (545) (4,138)
(382) 109 (273)
(8) = (8)
(3,983) (436) (4,419)

HMAEBRRERFHIAEEEEEREES RS EFELERIAEEMEREE - &
£ B0 58 T AT 4 8 LUK 85 oK SR FE SR B U 2 (Y 85 18 61,348,000 78 7t (2016 £ : 33,845,000
BIT) ERIELEFFSHEELN11,463,0005% 7T (2016 FF : 6,333,00058 7T) - BB EE B
24,255,000 7t (2016 £ : 18,858,0007%8 T ) 1ff R 2018 2037 & & 2 £ (2016 £ :
2017 Z2036 FEZEIH)  ZEHREBBUEERAH -

MR2017F12A8310 » AEBELENE THE QA RKREE 2R7F166,228,000/ 7T (2016 F :
46,271,000 7t ) sTIRES 2 R B 1H 2 IE & Fr 15 F & 53,521,000 T (2016 £ :
2,713,000 ) WIIHREBEMNEHELHBARANKERRK  LHEERLEED
FEATEEANERENREDE °

19 +H

2017 2016

Raw materials A7 %
Work in progress £ & &
Finished goods and trading merchandise &% @& & 5 & @

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$278,329,000
(2016: HK$226,757,000) and the impairment loss on inventories and write-off of inventories included in the
“general and administrative expenses” and “distribution and selling expenses” amounted to HK$523,000
(2016: Nil) and HK$1,484,000 (2016: HK$862,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017, respectively.

HK$’000 & T HK$°000 F%& 7T
115,833 65,474

8,050 5,107

111,653 107,958
235,536 178,539

BZE2017TF12AIALEE BRABRIAFAIHEALTINEERE A
278,329,000 Jt (2016 & : 226,757,000/ 7T) ' st A —RETHEAXZ I R[5 HE R
ERXINEFEREBEFEREFEEMEED BA523,000/8 7T (2016 F : M) & 1,484,000%8 T
(2016 £ : 862,000 7T) °

S &
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20 B B M WOaK PA e L Ath 3 B8 2 )

20 Trade receivables and other current assets

2017 2016
HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 F#& 7T
Trade receivables & 5 & K18
— fellow subsidiaries [E Z & 2 & 50,110 45,797
— joint ventures & & % 2,558 162
— associate B A 7 1,877 -
— third parties £=7 116,222 98,618
Trade receivables & 5 FEUNFRIE 170,767 144,577
Prepayments and other receivables 7813718 & H fth FE UL 7118 26,080 29,863
Deposits & & 23,609 18,952
Amount due from a joint venture (Note b) FEULE & 2 Fh1E (KfzEb) 1,114 1,114
221,570 194,506
Notes: MizE :
(a) The fair values of trade receivables and other currents assets approximate their carrying amounts. (@) EBIZEWFEREMABHEENQAAEEEERAEEMRS
(b)  The amount is repayable on demand, unsecured in nature and bears no interest. (b) RZFEAREREBEE. BEEANRE -
(c) Retail sales at the Group’s stores are usually made in cash or by debit or credit cards. For wholesales to distributors (c) AEFTELRBEEURS A2 FREAFET MAMBRFIoEH (BERRKEA
(including fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate), the Group normally grants credit periods ranging from T AELERKEAT) M  AEEEEEENEEYA30F90R -

30 to 90 days.

R20175R20165F 128310 REB/ZAHNEZRUR B (BRRREEINES
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date (including amounts due HIB)WBEEROWFOT
from related parties of trading in nature) is as follows:

2017 2016

HK$’000 7% 7t HK$’000 T8t
Up to 3 months 31& B = LA R 126,921 129,603
3 to 6 months 3Z 61E A 31,275 12,193
6 months to 1 year 6 {8 5 =14 6,905 382
Over 1 year 1L E 5,666 2,399
170,767 144,577
(d) At 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade receivables of HK$36,274,000 (2016: HK$36,360,000) were past due but not (d) MA2017F 128318 REENE F EURFIE 36,274,000 78 7t (2016 £ : 36,360,000 /8
impaired. These trade receivables relate to a number of customers, including fellow subsidiaries and joint ventures, for T EEHERRBE ZSEFRVAREHEZNEF (BEREAHBATRREGERE)AE
whom there is no recent history of default. B WMEMBUESENEENGCE -
The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: ZEEZBUGRENRER AT ¢
2017 2016
HK$’000 37T HK$°000 F3#& 7T
Past due less than 3 months BEIEI R 31E8 B 27,937 22,823
Past due within 3 to 6 months ¥ 3 = 6 & A 1,983 10,818
Past due over 6 months #1H3 618 B LA £ 6,354 2,719
36,274 36,360

S &

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 Trade receivables and other current assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e) At 31 December 2017, no trade receivables of the Group were impaired (2016: nil).
) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables and other current assets are denominated in the following
currencies:

Hong Kong dollar /&7t
Renminbi A F#&

United States dollar 37t
Australian dollar J&7t
South Korea won 87T
Canadian dollar 77T

Euro BT

Other currencies Hfth & #

(9) At 31 December 2017, the Group does not hold any collateral as security (2016: nil).

21 Cash and bank balances

T ORI B AL M R E

20 B 5 MWK I b LAt 3 B A (B
MizE : (48)
(e) M2017F12A318 AEBELEE S EWRIEDHE (2016 F : &) ©

fH AEENEZEYWREREMRBDEENREENNTIEBEE :

2017 2016
HK$’000 T3 T HK$'000 F& T
123,162 112,409
53,970 52,405

27,718 7,767

4,961 2,618

3,752 8,809

1,520 2,762

1,119 3,037

5,368 4,699

221,570 194,506

(9 AEEXEFEEMERRERER(2016F 1 &) ©

21 Bl ST G BR

Cash and cash equivalents I & R IE & ZEY
— Cash at bank and on hand TR EFRE
— Short-term bank deposits with original maturities within three months iR B =18 A s E 2R HARITER

Short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months FEHifR A2 =18 B UL £ 2B HiRITERK
Total 45t

At 31 December 2017, the Group has no bank overdraft (2016: nil).

2017 2016

HK$’000 & T HK$’000 F & T
749,562 740,325

881 57,232

750,443 797,557
1,147,338 786,044
1,897,781 1,583,601

M2017F 128318 AEBWFERTESL (2016 F : &) °

S &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2l

22

Cash and bank balances (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits included
balances of HK$49,994,000 (2016: HK$30,348,000), which were deposits with banks in the PRC. The
remittance of such balances out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

i

5 DF W4 255 8 22 I it

21 Bl B AT G R (F8)

R2017F 128318  AEENRERESZEY AR EHIRITERETE 49,994,000 &
7t (2016 % : 30,348,000 t) * ZEREBETHBERZBITHNER - BZELERE D
FEBSHEBNBGNIMESHBRIREARES -

FEENRERRESEYUARERRTEFRNWREEUT I EETE

2017 2016

Hong Kong dollar #& 7t
Renminbi A R#

Macao pataca 2F9 T
Singapore dollar # bl 7t
United States dollar 37t
South African Rand EI3EEE 45
Canadian dollar it
Australian dollar &7t

New Zealand dollar 778 & 7t
Other currencies Hfh & #&

Share capital

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid © 21T R & 2 @ &%
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 742016 £ % 201712831 H

22 JEA

HK$’000 T %t HK$’000 %7t
1,719,517 1,454,549
50,837 31,498

23,289 22,842

22,666 19,520

19,018 12,486

14,680 =

14,128 16,507

12,388 10,477

6,340 5,136

14,918 10,586
1,897,781 1,583,601
Number of shares Share capital
RH#HE &S
HK$’000 %7t

837,100,000 938,789

S &
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23 Reserves

23 fift P

T ORI B AL M R E

S &

/102 Woday [enuuy § penwi Auedwo) suioipsy eseuly) buel usy buo) Bullleg
-

Merger Statutory
reserve reserve
(Note a) Other (Note b) Exchange Retained
EOtRE reserves EEE reserve earnings
(KfzEa) HAtif# e (Ff=EDb) B 5 e R W
HK$'000 F&t HK$000 FEX HK$000 FEX HK$000 FET HKS000 FERT HK$000 FET
At 1 January 2016 7420165151 H (13,124) 830 4,130 (14,643) 899,726 876,919
Comprehensive income 44 W
Profit for the year & E ;8 - - - - 420,315 420,315
Other comprehensive losses E 4R & &2
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset Al HEERMEE N L EEEH - (475) - - = (475)
Currency translation differences &% 7 & = 28
— Group REH - - - 4,012) - (4,012)
— Joint ventures A& ¥ = = = (172) = (172)
Total comprehensive income %44 & 448 - (475) - (4,184) 420,315 415,656
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners BRI EUEMBEENERETHNR B WEE
Transfer of retained earnings to statutory reserve BB RE N EZEEHE - - 1,165 - (1,165) -
Dividends relating to 2015 (Note 13) 2015 S 48R3 2. (Fft 5% 13) - - - - (108,823) (108,823)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EBEH AL UEAEN S DETHNR S NALE = = 1,165 - (109,988) (108,823)
At 31 December 2016 42016 £12 831 H (13,124) 355 5,295 (18,827) 1,210,053 1,183,752
At 1 January 2017 20171 A 1H (13,124) 355 5,295 (18,827) 1,210,053 1,183,752
Comprehensive income %44 W&
Profit for the year % & I8 g - - - 489,967 489,967
Other comprehensive income H 44 i
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset Al HEERMEE L L EEEH - 2,005 - - - 2,005
Currency translation differences &% R &= 5
— Group K&E - - - 11,317 - 11,317
— Joint ventures & & ¥ - - - 998 - 998
Total comprehensive income 44 W 458 - 2,005 - 12,315 489,967 504,287
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners BRI EUEMEENERETHNRZ WEAE
Transfer of retained earnings to statutory reserve BB R BN BEZ EEHE - - 934 = (934) =
Dividends relating to 2016 (Note 13) 2016 EA8BIE £ (HEF 13) - - - - (133,936) (133,936)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EEZFfIEEUEFEEN S HETHNR I WAL - - 934 = (134,870) (133,936)
At 31 December 2017 742017 €12 A 31 H (13,124) 2,360 6,229 (6,512) 1,565,150 1,554,103
Notes: B 5E
(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the net book value of the entities that had been (@ FAEENEGHEFEECUBEENEETEREAQATAAR2010FETEAMIANRE
acquired and the investment consideration paid by the Company to effect a reorganisation that took place in 2010. REMEL -
(b)  The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which (b) HFEEERAERRE  EFEZMONIRAAREREASRKIEA  AREBAEHBE

BERMEBHOFABERFEUETFENRABER) P PEFRUERE TREMHME -
FBLAEREDABEREMRL - PEQRARIIREFENRBEFER - AREE
EEDBEEFNEN10% - ELTEERBHAINBBHEEIMEARNS50% 8 - DE A
FLEDE - ZEREIATAEAEQITINEE BARARANEELERBMOTINES -
o ZRESFRBR  ARAUEAERBEAN B EERBEHE-SHKR -

are to be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their
respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created
for specific purposes. PRC company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory reserves, upon
distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate
sum of the statutory reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production operations, or to increase the capital of the
companies. In addition, a company may make further contribution to the statutory reserve using its post-tax profits in
accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

TR G RV § o5 F oW T &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 Borrowing

Secured bank borrowing BIE R TE R

Notes: BEE

(a) The bank borrowing is secured by the land and building of the Group amounted to HK$12,343,000 (2016: @
HK$11,585,000) (Note 15).

(b) The bank borrowing bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in (b)
2020. The Group has HK$7,956,000 (2016: HK$7,300,000) undrawn borrowing facility with floating rate expiring
beyond one year.

(c) The bank borrowing is denominated in Australian dollar and its carrying amount approximates its fair values. (c)

25 Trade and other payables

Trade payables E 3 fE{ 718

— intermediate holding company A & i 2 &)

— immediate holding company E #3882 &

— third parties 8=7
Trade payables (Note a) & 5 FE{JFRIE (FfEE a)
Accruals and other payables fE&TE A K H b B 78

Notes: M5E -

@) At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the aging analysis of the trade payables (including amounts due to the related parties (a)
of trading in nature) based on invoice date is as follows:

2017 2016

Up to 3 months 3 1@ A =i XA

3 to 6 months 3Z 6 A

6 months to 1 year 6 {8 8 & 14
1to2years 1 E24F

(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: (b)

T ORI B AL M R E

24 I E&

HK$000 T 7& 7T HK$'000 F &
605 556

RATERBAERR12,343,00078 T £ it RAEFHIKIF (20165 : 11,585,00078 ¥ ) (K
&£ 15) ©

BITEREBRANTNRTEZENRMI5%ZETE » F AETERER2020F 22
832 - NEE A 7,956,000 7T (2016 & : 7,300,00058 7T) A E AT BN REEHEE
ZER BB —F o

- BEIRAEEAABEMES °

25 BU5h B JUAUL K fF 2 5

HK$’000 & T HK$°000 F%& 7T
16,270 15,793

5,688 2,962

30,721 17,489

52,679 36,244

61,807 52,128

114,486 88,372

R2017F K 2016F 128310 RERZAHNESENRB(ERENSHEESNES
HIE) NIRRT :

HK$°000 T T HK$’000 T 7T
51,086 34,260

587 1,604

981 217

25 163

52,679 36,244

FEBEES R EMENTENREELTIERE :

2017 2016

Hong Kong dollar #& 7t
Renminbi A R #

South African rand B3 JFBi4S
Canadian dollar it
Australian dollar 27t
Singapore dollar 113 7T
South Korean won 7t
Other currencies Hfth &5 %

HK$000 F 3% 7T HK$’000 T35 7T
51,244 40,566

37,206 27,871

5,065 -

4,830 3,508

4,380 3,497

3,799 2,140

1,069 1,686

6,893 9,104

114,486 88,372
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E

26 Notes to consolidated statement of cash flows 26 O 0F B4 v i 2 bRk
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REELE 2B
HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F & T
Profit before income tax Bk TS 81 A1 K58 610,966 532,270
Adjustments for: LA FIE B A :
— Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 6) T8 {7 #& & 1 & 7 B # 85 (H43E6) 543 543
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) #12 - = & RE T E (Hi5E6) 24,152 21,915
— Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (Note 6) #13£ + B E KRB 2B AT (KizE6) 6,686 -
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 6) # & E# 85 (FfzE6) 2,446 1,717
— Impairment loss on inventories (Note 6) 7 & Z FEHE (KizE6) 523 -
— Write-off of inventories (Note 6) 775 & #H (FftzE6) 1,484 862
— Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) HHEY ¥ - BiE K& 1E 2 518 (KfizE6) 110 35
— Dividend income B Fl Ui &% (135) -
— Finance income, net (Note 9) BT # Uk 2 (3£ 9) (13,324) (7,870)
— Share of loss of investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 10)
i ER AN RZREEE (i 10) 42 1,809
— Impairment loss on an investment accounted for using the equity method (Note 10)
REREARZRERERTIR (MFE10) - 1,290
633,493 552,571
Changes in working capital: &E& &% :
— Inventories ¥ & (54,532) (22,256)
— Trade receivables and other current assets B 2 EWFIER Hitt R EEE (19,486) 13,590
— Trade and other payables & 5 & H b fE{$ K E 15,610 19,737
Cash generated from operations E&ffiEL ZHE 575,085 563,642
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of b) GUEBEE LD, HEWSE, WD BT s H S

property, plant and equipment comprise:

2017 2016

HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 F & T
Net book amount (Note 15) BEEFE (FizE15) 173 35
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) HHEY ¥ « BiE Rk & 1E 2 18 (KfizE6) (110) (39)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - = & =& 15708 63 -

§ 05> W D M b 7T oE o e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E

26 Notes to consolidated statement of cash flows (Continued) 26 O OF B4y R e G
(c) Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities (c) R T8 Bl e 21 ) BB < it ot

REHFBERABARIITHOREETHTELENRSREN I TNES -

This section sets out an analysis of cash flows of financial liabilities from financing activities and its
movement for each of the year presented.

2017 2016
HK$’000 &t HK$°000 T8 7t
Bank borrowing — variable interest rates f& 3 —Z &y F| & (605) (556)

Bank borrowing
due over 1 year

B —F R
RITEN

HK$°000 F#& 7T

Liability from financing activity as at 1 January 2016 R=ZE—~FE— B —BREZHNERE (561)
Foreign exchange adjustments [E 7 8% 5
Liability from financing activity as at 31 December 2016 A —ZE—XE+-A=+—H@ETHNEE (556)
Foreign exchange adjustments FE 5. 382 (49)
Liability from financing activity as at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F+-A=+—HABMEFHNEE (605)
27 Commitments 27 KB
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAKIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 &t HK$’000 F%& T
Contracted but not provided for 2 5T #1B R &5
— property, plant and equipment #13 - & E K2 E 3,281 2,761
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) FEEHEAHE
The Group leases various retail outlets, warehouses and staff quarters under non-cancellable operating REEREFATHELCLEHIBAZEZSEES  AEREIBFEE - HENF1E

lease agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and 10 years and certain lease agreements are 10 ETHATABEBLEREEHSHESEY -
renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BETTRHEECEHENARFERESFRAHENT
2017 2016
HK$’000 T3& 7T HK$’000 F3#& 7T
No later than 1 year 1A 65,193 52,591
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 1 L E R 5F LA 78,212 75,730
Later than 5 years 5F L & 9,623 8,433
153,028 136,754

T a o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 Significant related party transactions

At 31 December 2017, two subsidiaries of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies and
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. directly owned 38.05% and 33.62% of shareholding in the Company respectively. Tong
Ren Tang Ltd. is also the controlling shareholder of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Ltd.
effectively owns 71.67% equity interest in the Company. The remaining 28.33% of the shares are widely held.

The Board of Directors of the Company regards Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the immediate holding
company, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. as the intermediate holding company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings as the

ultimate holding company, all of which are companies incorporated in the PRC.

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of these consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales and purchases of products

B

5 DF WA 255 8 2 I i

28 W KBTI 28 %
R2017F12A31 8 A -EEELATANMENBARRCENERACERDERA
DR BEEEEARRT38.05% K 33.62% o AI-ERDERATATAERCEREH
ERBR - FACEROGERAFDNERFIERQAT71.67% RHE o 88 T 28.33% MK 121 &
A -
ARABESERECERFAEEERAF  ACERDVERATDBTEAERATARRBI
EEEARARRERDLT S 2R RPEZFMAL -
RZEEHURBREMEHAFEEN > THRS DHEBEESET

(a) STE B A

2017 2016

Sales of products to $HEE R T
Joint ventures & 13
Fellow subsidiaries [5] % [} & 2 &

An associate B 7]

Purchases of products from B LA~ 2 5 E B ZE M
Immediate holding company E #2412 8& 2 7
Intermediate holding company & i% 2 7]
Fellow subsidiaries [& % /& 2 7]

(b) Royalty fee income

Note KftzE HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 F3%& 7T
(i) 7,752 3,973

(i) 197,304 151,780

(i) 1,894 =
206,950 155,753

(i) 48,815 27,103

(i) 85,636 58,797

i) 1,013 2,012
135,464 87,912

(b) A B A

Royalty fee income from joint ventures RE & & ¥ 2 @IEFHB WS

2017 2016
Note FffsE HK$’000 35 7T HK$’000 T35 7T
(ii) 437 875

S &

§ SR RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B E I 15 £ H 3 E

28 Significant related party transactions (Continued) 28 KB TG 58 5 (1)

(c) Rental expenses (c) B

Note izt HK$’000 ¥ & T HK$’000 F#& 7T
Rental expense to: M T AR XS ZHEHX
Ultimate holding company & #& %% A & (i) 184 104
Fellow subsidiaries [E % [ B 2 & (i) 4,400 2,210
4,584 2,314
(d) Key management compensation (d) AN B
Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and senior management. The FTEEBAEBBRITRIVTESNSRAEEAE - REERBEONETEEEAES
emoluments paid or payable to key management for employee services is as follows: ERVESHHESHT :
2017 2016
HK$000 F %37t HK$'000 F 3% 7T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits & & 1 E th 5 SR 2 A 7,911 8,082
Pension costs — defined contribution plans K& M A — EZEE RS 178 169
8,089 8,251
Notes: B 2
(i) These transactions were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms mutually agreed (i) S E NP — R RBRE IR S ENBRRIESRET -

between the parties involved.
(i) REEABEDALRARERECAERBEUASEABEENTFREALOELEEN
(ii) The royalty fee is charged annually by the Company at predetermined rates ranging from 1% to 3% on turnover 1% E3%REWE - RIEZEHS  ZELSLPEEAUECE IREEEBRS -
of its joint ventures in accordance with the royalty agreements. Pursuant to these agreements, these joint
ventures are allowed to trade under “Tong Ren Tang” brand name.

S &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries and joint ventures at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

(a) Subsidiaries KB 2 &

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity  Principal activities and

a1 A 3 Y 30 B K%

EARRER

(i) Directly held by the Company A2 R E##&H

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International
Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd.
TRECZRREEFRAR O

Beijing Tong Ren Tang
Australia Pty. Ltd.
LTRECE RARE) BRDH

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts
(Singapore) Co Pte. Ltd.
LRECENINR (RE)MAFRAF

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc.
TRECE (ZRE)BRAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd.

TRECE(NEX)ERDE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC
TRECEREERAR

PRC, limited liability
company

HE - BRAF

Australia, limited
liability company

BARE - BRAF

Singapore, limited
liability company

K - ARAHE

Canada, limited
liability company

MER - BRAF

Canada, limited
liability company

mex  ERAR

United Arab Emirates,
limited liability
company

MR AKSERE
BRAF

place of operation

TEXBRBEHE

Sale and distribution of Chinese
medicine and
healthcare products

HERDHPEERERER

Beijing, PRC

HE bR

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine and healthcare
products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

HERTETEERERER
DR RMHAEDBRE

Sydney, Australia

BAFE - B

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine and healthcare
products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

HEREBETEERERER
DR R EDRRTE

Singapore

ESIIIE

Retail of Chinese medicine and
healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

ZEREEDRERERUR
REEPEDRRS

Toronto, Canada

meEkR - 2wz

Retail of Chinese medicine and
healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

ZEREERERERK
REPEDRRS

Vancouver, Canada

mEX  BIFE

Retail of Chinese medicine and
healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

ZEREERERERK
RUEPEDERE

Dubai, United Arab Emirates

M AKSERE  BE

29 FLHHE 2 vl R 28 5

T ORI B AL M R E

TXHEHFNN2017FEK 2016 F 12 A31 BN EEMBRARAMEE X ©

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRITRAFHR

HK$10,000,000
10,000,00075 7

AUD1,000,000
1,000,000 27

SGD857,000
857,000 #7103 T

CAD497,300
497,300 I A T

CAD1,000,000
1,000,000 INE A 7T

AED1,920,000
1,920,000 fil B 2 3 i 4

Effective equity interest held

i ER DS
2017

100% 100%
75% 75%
51% 51%
51% 51%
51% 51%
51% 51%

L
&
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29 T RHHE 2 [l A& 8 2 ()

29 Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures (Continued)

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity  Principal activities and Particulars of issued
o 17 AR L B 3t BE place of operation share capital Effective equity interest held

EARBER FREVREL W BRITRAFHE iEsy 13 £
2017

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) KB 2 & (&)
(i) Directly held by the Company (Continued) AR BB 1% 4 (&)

o

/102 Woday |[enuuy E panwi] Auedwo) suloipe|y essuly) Bue] usy Buoy Builleg

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Macao, limited Wholesale and retail of Chinese MOP1,000,000 51% 51%
Company Limited liability company medicine and healthcare 1,000,000 29 7t
TREECE (RF) BRAH B BRAE products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation
and treatments
HERZEREERERERR
REREDERE
Macao, PRC
FE R
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.o0. Poland, limited Retail of Chinese healthcare Zloty130,000 100% 100%
TREECE (R BRAH liability company products and provision of 130,000 4 {2
WHE o BRAE Chinese healthcare treatments
ZERBRRRUTEDRRY
Warsaw, Poland
BE o ED
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul) South Korea, limited Wholesale of Chinese medicine WON1,052,000,000 51% 51%
Company Limited liability company and healthcare products 1,052,000,000 & T
THRECE () K84t BE - ARAH HBHEERERRER
Seoul, Korea
CR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) New Zealand, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and NzD2,000,000 51% 51%
Company Limited liability company healthcare products and 2,000,000 HTF R T
TRECE (R BRAR HEE 0 BRAR provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments
TEPEERERERR
REDEDERY
Auckland, New Zealand
HEW RRHl
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Hong Kong, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and HK$10,000 100% 100%
Tong Le Company Limited liability company healthcare products and provision of 10,0007 T
TRECEROREERAF FE ARAH Chinese medical consultation
and healthcare treatments
TEPEERERRRREM
hEYRETBEERERS
Hong Kong, PRC
HE BB
Honour Essence Trading Limited Hong Kong, limited Wholesale of Chinese medicine HK$2,000 51% 51%
XEESERATA liability company and healthcare products 2,000 7T
B BRAR MEPEERERER
Hong Kong, PRC
TE - BE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver Canada, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and CAD750,000 51% 51%
Healthcare Center Co., Ltd liability company healthcare products and provision of 750,000 07T
TRECERFEREROBRAH mEX > ERAF Chinese medical consultation and
healthcare treatments
TEPEERERRRREM
REDREDEEERERS
Vancouver, Canada
mEX  BIFE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Africa (Pty) Ltd South Africa, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and ZAR24,000,000 51% =
TREACEFENERLT liability company healthcare products and 24,000,000 F IR

¥ ARAHE

provision of Chinese medical

consultation and treatments
TEFEERERRRK

REPEDRRE
Johannesburg, South Africa

B NBREE
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29 T RHHE 2 [l A& 8 2 ()

29 Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures (Continued)

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity  Principal activities and Particulars of issued
o 17 AR L B 3t BE place of operation share capital Effective equity interest held

EARBER FREVREL W BRITRAFHE iEsy 13 £
2017

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) KB 2 & (&)
(i) Indirectly held by the Company &2 8 E##iE

pajywi] Auedwo) auoips|y @sauly) Buel usy Buo) Bullleg
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Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Australia, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and AUD100,000 38% 38%
Pty Limited liability company healthcare products and 100,00032 7T
TRECE (BEX)BRAR BAFIE - BRAF provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments
ZEPEERERRRR
REREDRRG
Melbourne, Australia
BAFE  BEA
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu The Netherlands, limited  Retail of healthcare products and Euro650,000 45% 45%
Health Centre B.V. liability company provision of Chinese medical 650,000 & T
TR CEEEREROERAR T BRAE consultation treatment
ZERERRRHEHEDRERY
Den Haag, the Netherlands
Gl =i
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech The Czech Republic, Retail of healthcare products and CZK3,296,400 45% 45%
Republic SE limited liability provision of Chinese medical 3,296,400 #5252 £
TREECE (ER)BRAH company consultation and treatment
% ARAH ZERRMRREHTELERE
Prague, Czech Republic
B BhE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Sweden, limited Retail of healthcare products and SEK50,000 45% 45%
TRECE (RE) BRAE liability company provision of Chinese medical 50,000 % 2 5% B
W BRAHE consultation and treatment
ZERBRRRUTEDRRH
Stockholm ,Sweden
i BRmE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA Switzerland, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and CHF500,000 45% -
TR CERTRBERAE liability company healthcare products and 500,000 % 358D
Ht o BRAF provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments
TEREERERERUR
REHEDERE
Geneva, Switzerland
Wt HAR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming Qi United States, limited Wholesale and retail of US$200,000 60% 60%
Group, LLC liability company Chinese medicine and 200,000 =7t
T RECZERIEFRAR ZE - BRAR healthcare products
HERTEPEERERRER
New York, United States
ES=i |
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord United States, limited Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine US$800,000 51% 51%
New York LLC liability company and healthcare products and 800,000 %7t

TRECEGHRNERDE

XE - ARAH

provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments
HERBEPEERERBRUAR
REEPEDBRE
New York, United States

Il s> o o E bk TT 3 ok &
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29 T RHHE 2 [l A& 8 2 ()

29 Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures (Continued)

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity  Principal activities and Particulars of issued

o 17 AR L B 3t BE place of operation share capital Effective equity interest held

EARBER FREVREL W BRITRAFHE iEsy 13 £
2017

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) KB 2 7 (&)
(i) Indirectly held by the Company (Continued) A2 R B##& A (&

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los United States, limited Retail of healthcare products and US$600,000 51% 51%
Angeles Healthcare Center LLC liability company provision of Chinese medical 600,000 % 7T
LRECEEBERPOERAR %6 BRAR consultation and treatments

ZERBRREHPEDRRB
Los Angeles , United States
ESRN
United States, limited Retail of healthcare products and US$800,000
provision of Chinese medical 800,000 % 7T
consultation and treatments
TERERRREHETPEDRERHK
San Francisco, United States
=E - =%Fm

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Farlong 51% =
Healthcare Center LLC liability company

TRECEREARAF X BRAE

(b) Joint ventures & & %
(i) Directly held by the Company A2 R E##&H
Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD Malaysia, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and MYR1,900,000 60% 60%
TRECE (BRAER) BRAF liability company healthcare products and 1,900,000 55 %
BRAZ - BRAR provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments
ZETEERERRRUAR
REDBEDRRH
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

BRAD  FERK

Wholesale and retail of Chinese THB38,000,000 49% 49%
medicine and healthcare 38,000,000 Z&ék
products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation
and treatments
HEREETEERERER
DR R EDRRE
Bangkok, Thailand
Z=E A
Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, limited Retail of Chinese medicine and HK$10,000 50% 50%
REERERLDF liability company healthcare products and 10,0008 7T
&% BRATE provision of Chinese medical

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Thailand, limited
Co., Ltd. liability company
LRECE (RB)ERAEO ZE > BRDE

consultation and treatments
ZEREERERBRIUAR
REPEDRRS
Hong Kong, PRC
TE B

T a o

N
L

(1) The English names of the group companies incorporated in the PRC represent the best effort by the management of (1) RABEMRINEEQARDBEEARINEZE  ARXABRAKREERBERETXAE
the Group in translating from their Chinese names as they do not have official English names. BEMAK ©

panwi Auedwo) auloipay 8sauly) Bue] usy Buol Bullleg

(2 BELADIAFAZSERZINADN0%KRE  HHRRESEH R ASEROER
Keg RERBETHIHADIREGEBHARZS  MIFBRA A RELEZH R
BEEAYE HALAEERAAZSERDAQASERE -

2) Although the Company owns more or less than 50% of the equity interests in these entities, the directors of the
Company consider that these entities are joint ventures of the Company because their strategic operating, investing
2 and financing activities are jointly controlled by the Company and the joint venture partners in accordance with the
joint venture agreements rather than under the unilateral control or significant influence of the Company.

(B FENFZENMBARZIZEREZENMSHEEREEATE -

3) The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

/102 Hodey [enuuy
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The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2018 and was
signed on its behalf.

Ding Yong Ling Lin Man

Director Director

30 Balance sheet of the Company 30 ] A AR
Note Bz HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 F#& 7T
Assets EE
Non-current assets JEf 81 & &
Leasehold land A& 1 ith 16,008 16,551
Property, plant and equipment ¥2 - = & & & 173,215 177,410
Investment property & ¥ % 12,351 =
Investments in subsidiaries R E A & Z2’%E 282,590 265,531
Investments in joint ventures A& & REZIRE 26,942 26,942
Investments in associates RELE A & 23R E 3,930 3,930
Available-for-sale financial asset Al HESREE 15,318 13,313
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE# % - BERRENCH1RE 1,988 1,221
532,342 504,898
Current assets B & E
Inventories 7 & 127,164 120,283
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 EWRER 78 EE 244,196 187,600
Short-term bank deposits 58 H1$E 1T 17 7% 1,128,982 769,528
Cash and cash equivalents I & RFEEEY 571,777 644,713
2,072,119 1,722,124
Total assets EEH K 2,604,461 2,227,022
Equity and liabilities % R & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z& 2 T #H A FE{L
Share capital &7 938,789 938,789
Reserves f#f&
— Available-for-sale financial asset reserve A i & & B E E 45 1,530 (475)
— Retained earnings & & Wi 31 1,582,872 1,220,410
Total equity x5 2,523,191 2,158,724
Liabilities & 1&
Non-current liability JER B & &
Deferred income tax liabilities JEFE 155t & & 3,844 3,306
Current liabilities 8 & &
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b fE {3 718 47,654 35,413
Current income tax liabilities & IBH ARG 29,772 29,579
- 7426 64,992
Total liabilities /&A% 81,270 68,298
Total equity and liabilities # 25 & S48 58 2,604,461 2,227,022

AANEEEBRN2018EIA12AEEESHE  YHUTREEE -

EZE EFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 Reserves of the Company

At 1 January 2016 R 20161 H1H

Profit for the year & 78

Dividends relating to 2015 (Note 13) 2015 £ HE IR 2 (FizE 13)

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset A1t HE SR EE QA L EEEE
At 31 December 2016 #2016 512 A 31 H

At 1 January 2017 R 20171 81 H

Profit for the year & ;&

Dividends relating to 2016 (Note 13) 2016 ZEHE IR 2 (FizE 13)

At 31 December 2017 }A2017%12H 31 H

T ORI B AL M R E

31 2w fif fii

Available-for-sale

Retained financial
earnings asset reserve
REWzE THHESHEERE
HK$’000 F3& 7T HK$°000 F#& 7T
900,472 _
428,761 -
(108,823) -
- (475)
1,220,410 (475)
1,220,410 (475)
496,398 -
(133,936) -
- 2,005
1,582,872 1,530

T a o
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Information for Investors

Investor Calendar

27 April 2017

8 August 2017
27 October 2017
12 March 2018
7 May 2018

30 April to 7 May 2018
(Both days inclusive)

11 May to 15 May 2018
(Both days inclusive)

15 May 2018
On or before 31 May 2018

Share Information

Company Name
Listing

Stock Code
Listing Date
Board Lot Size

Issued Share Capital
as at 31 December 2017

2017 first quarterly results announcement
2017 interim results announcement

2017 third quarterly results announcement
2017 annual results announcement
Annual General Meeting

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at annual general meeting)

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who qualify for
the final dividend)

Record Date (for determination of shareholders who qualify for the final dividend)

Payment of final dividend

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

8138

7 May 2013

1,000 shares

837,100,000 shares

Investor Relations Department

Room 1405-1409, Convention Plaza, Office Tower
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2881 7989
Fax: (852) 2881 0839
Email: ir@tongrentangcm.com

Website: www.tongrentangcm.com

Shareholders Service and Enquiries

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or address, transfer of shares, loss of share
certificates or dividend cheques, registrations and requests for annual/interim/quarterly report copies, please contact
the Company'’s share registrar and transfer office:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Website: www.computershare.com

BeEH HIE

20174 A27H
20178 HA8H
2017 10H27H
20183 A12H
2018F5A7H

20184 A30HZEZ5HA7H
(BEERMA)

20185811 HE5H15H
(BFEERWA)

2018458 15H
20185 A 31 HEZ Al

JBe By £ R

REEHE

£

BRAD SR

EWEH

BFEHEM

BZ2017F1283182
BEITRA

BEE 4 B £%

EBEFBEE IR

SRESHAKIEZ1405-1409 F

E5E ¢ (852) 2881 7989
fHHE : (852) 2881 0839

Z ) : ir@tongrentangcm.com
#4t © www.tongrentangcm.com

e SNl 25 I 2 it

BeE AR

17T FE—ZEXEBENE

2017 FHHEAEBENSE

17TEFE=FEEENE

017 FFEXEBE NS

BRBEFAE

EERERMBFECTE (BEEREERRBFEAE
WHRELREZRR)

HERERMBFECTE (RESERKEBREAREMN
B®R)

R H (BESERKERERENRE)

IRAS REARR 2

S RECEEEERAT
BEEBBEXSMAERATGEM
8138

2013%5AH7H

1,000 B2 Bz 19

837,100,000 %

BHE BTREEEASIMBIEE  ROER BLAREIREZZNEZEZREZMEE
B/ ZERE)NEH  FHELAQ2AROELRBFE

EEBPRESFSRLERLE
BEBEFERKNER1835

AR N17TE17T12-1716 556

EFE : (852) 2862 8555

fEE : (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Z 0 : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk

#1t © www.computershare.com
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Corporate Information

Directors

Non-executive Director
Mei Qun (Chairman)

Executive Directors
Ding Yong Ling
Zhang Huan Ping
Lin Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Zhao Zhong Zhen

Chan Ngai Chi

Audit Committee

Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman)

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Zhao Zhong Zhen

Nomination Committee

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman)

Chan Ngai Chi

Ding Yong Ling

Remuneration Committee

Zhao Zhong Zhen (Chairman)
Chan Ngai Chi
Ding Yong Ling

Company Secretary

Lin Man

Compliance Officer

Ding Yong Ling

Authorised Representatives

Ding Yong Ling
Lin Man

Stock Code

8138

Hong Kong Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Company’s Website

www.tongrentangcm.com

Registered Address

Room 1405-1409, Office Tower
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Legal Adviser

DLA Piper Hong Kong

17th Floor, Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong
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Glossary

AGM
Articles of Association

Audit Committee
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group

Board
CG Code
Code Provision(s)

Company

Company Secretary

Competition Executive Committee

Competition Supervisory Committee

Controlling Shareholders
Director(s)

EGM(s)

ESG

ESG Report
Exchange

GEM

GEM Listing Rules

GLSPC

Group, we or us

Hong Kong or HKSAR
HK$

INED(s)

Listing

Annual general meeting of the Company

Articles of Association of the Company

An audit committee of the Company, consists of Chan Ngai Chi, Tsang
Yok Sing, Jasper and Zhao Zhong Zhen, and is chaired by Chan Ngai Chi

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and
its associates (including the Group)

The board of directors of the Company

Corporate Governance Code, Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules

Code Provisions in the CG Code

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong, the securities of which are listed on
the GEM board of the Exchange

Company Secretary of the Company

A competition executive committee of the Company, consists of Zhang
Huan Ping and Lin Man

A competition supervisory committee of the Company, consists of Tsang
Yok Sing, Jasper, Zhao Zhong Zhen and Chan Ngai Chi, and is chaired
by Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Tong Ren Tang Ltd., Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings

Director(s) of the Company, including all executive directors, non-
executive director and independent non-executive directors

Extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company

Environmental, Social and Governance

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

GEM operated by the Exchange

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM

Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules
manufactured by the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

Independent Non-executive Director(s) of the Company

The Company was listed on GEM of the Exchange on 7 May 2013
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Glossary

Macao

Nomination Committee

Non-PRC market
Owned Product(s)

Parent Group
PRC

Prospectus

Remuneration Committee

SFO
Share(s)
Shareholder(s)

Tai Po Production Base

TCM
Tong Ren Tang

Tong Ren Tang Holdings or TRT Holdings

TRT International Natural-Pharm

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or TRT Ltd.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies or TRT
Technologies

UAE
UK
US or United States

Year

The Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC

A nomination committee of the Company, consists of Tsang Yok Sing,
Jasper, Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Tsang Yok
Sing, Jasper

Markets outside of the PRC

The product(s) manufactured by the Group

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and
its associates (other than the Group)

The People’s Republic of China and for the purpose of this annual report,
excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan

Prospectus of the Company dated 25 April 2013

A remuneration committee of the Company, consists of Zhao Zhong
Zhen, Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Zhao Zhong
Zhen

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571

Share(s) of the Company

Shareholder(s) of the Company

The research and development and production base of the Company
located at Tai Po Industrial Estate, Hong Kong

Traditional Chinese medicine

Beijing Tong Ren Tang

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC on 17 August 1992 and is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited, a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 18 June 1997, the shares of which have been
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 1997, and is the
intermediate holding company of the Company

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 22 March 2000, the H shares of which have
been listed on GEM since 2000 and have been transferred to the Main
Board since July 2010, and is the immediate holding company of the
Company

The United Arab Emirates

The United Kingdom

The United States of America

Fiscal year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017
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